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MINUTES OF THE ORDINARY MEETING OF THE STRATHBOGIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
HELD ON TUESDAY 16 APRIL 2019 AT THE NAGAMBIE BOWLS CLUB (6-12 

MARIE STREET, NAGAMBIE), COMMENCING AT 6.00 P.M.

Chair:

Councillors:

Officers:

BUSINESS

1. Welcome

2. Acknowledgement of Traditional Land Owners
‘I acknowledge the Traditional Owners o f the land on which we are meeting.
I pay my respects to their Elders, past and present’

3. Apologies

Councillor Malcolm Little (Hughes Creek Ward)
Phil Howard - Director, Innovation and Performance (DIP)

4. Confirmation of Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on Tuesday 19
March.2019 and Special Meetings of Council held on Tuesday 26 March 2019 
and Tuesday 2 April 2019

88/19 CRS MASON/WILLIAMS : That the Minutes o f the Ordinary Meeting of Council 
held on Tuesday 19 March. 2019 and Special Meetings o f Council held on 
Tuesday 26 March 2019 and Tuesday 2 April 2019 be confirmed

CARRIED

Amanda McClaren (Mayor) (Lake Nagambie Ward)

Debra Bower 
John Mason 
Kate Stothers 
Alistair Thomson 
Graeme (Mick) Williams

(Lake Nagambie Ward) 
(Seven Creeks Ward) 
(Honeysuckle Creek Ward) 
(Mount Wombat Ward) 
(Seven Creeks Ward)

Steve Crawcour - Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
David Roff - Group Manager, Corporate and Community (GMCC) 
Jeff Saker - Group Manager, Community Assets (GMCA)

5. Disclosure of Interests
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6. Petitions

Nil.

7. Reports of Mayor and Councillors and Delegates

The Mayor and Councillors provided verbal reports on meetings / events 
attended over the past month.

8. Public Question Time

Public Question Time will be conducted as per Strathbogie Shire Council's 
Meeting Procedure Local Law No. 1, Clause 32. A copy of the required form for 
completion and lodgment, and associated Procedural Guidelines, are attached for 
information.

As the questions are a permanent public record and to meet the requirements of 
the Privacy Act, only the initials of the person asking the question will be used 
together with a Council reference number.

Question/s raised / responded to / Taken on Notice at the meeting:-

Council Ref: TM: 07 /2019

1. Grant money funding to Reserve Committees in the Shire, who is 
responsible for the project works carried out.
16 October 2013, Invoice 51 $4845 -
Date presented 4 June 2015. What is the funding for?

Question Taken on Notice

. 2. Shire of Strathbogie 25th year not abiding by the agreement of
amalgamation Goulburn, Euroa and Violet Town. Rates and charges 
exceptional high. Shire going backwards. I ask the Mayor to start the 
proceedings to dissolve the Shire as it does not meet commitments

Response provided at the meeting by the Mayor
The comments are noted.

Council Ref: SS: 08 /2019

1. Further to the Gazette report approx., 3 weeks ago, ARTC indicated they 
were interested in working with a community liaison group - does this 
mean ARTC have accepted the recommendations passed by Council at 
the Special Meeting in March?

2. What are the next steps in Council’s view?

Response provided at the meeting by the Mayor
Council will be discussing the response from ARTC to Council’s letter next
Tuesday 23 April 2019.
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9. Reports of Council Officers
9.1 Climate Change
9.2 Infrastructure
9.3 Private Enterprise
9.4 Public Institutions
9.5 Housing and Recreation
9.6 Tourism
9.7 Organisation

10. Notices of Motion

11. Urgent Business

12. Closure of Meeting to the Public to consider matters listed for consideration in
accordance with Section 89(2)(d) of the Local Government Act 1989

13. Confirmation of ‘Closed Portion’ Decision/s

An audio recording of this meeting is being made for the purpose of verifying the 
accuracy of the minutes of the meeting, as per Local Law No. 1 - Meeting Procedure 
(2014) or as updated from time to time through Council Resolution

NEXT MEETING

The next Ordinary Meeting of the Strathbogie Shire Council is scheduled to be held on 
Tuesday 21 May 2019, at the Euroa Community Conference Centre, commencing at
6.00 p.m.
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Public Question Time Form 
Ordinary Council Meeting

Council Ref. / 2019

Strathbogie Shire Council has allocated a time for the public to ask questions in the business of an 
Ordinary Meeting of the Council.
How to ask a question:
Questions submitted to Council must be:

(a) in writing, state the name, address and telephone number of the person submitting the 
question and generally be on this form, approved by Council; and

(b) submitted to Council in person or electronically.

The Chair may refrain from reading a question or having a question read if the person who submitted 
the question is not present in the gallery at the time when the question is due to be read. Please refer 
to the back of this form for procedural guidelines.

Question/s: (please print clearly with a maximum of 25 words)

1..............................................................................................................................................

2.

Name:..........................................................................

Address:......................................................................

Telephone Number:....................................................

Signature: (signature not required if submitted by email) 

Date of Ordinary Council Meeting:.............................

Privacy Declaration: Personal Information is collected on this form to allow Council to undertake follow- 
up /  response and to confirm identity for future reference where necessary. The questioner’s name only, 
together with a question reference number, wilt be included in Councils Minutes. Council Minutes are a 
public document which will be published on Council's Website and 3re available for public scrutiny at any 
time. Other personal details included on this farm wilt not be included in She Minutes and will be kept for 
Council reference only, unless disclosure is required for law enforcement purposes or under any other 
statutory requirement.
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Public Question Time - Procedural Guidelines

Question Time

(1) There must be a public question time at every Ordinary meeting to enable members of the 
public to submit questions to Council.

(2) Sub-clause (1) does not apply during any period when a meeting is closed to members of the 
public in accordance with section 89(2) of the Local Government Act 1989 (the Act).

(3) Public question time will not exceed in duration any time limit imposed by the Chairperson, in 
the Chairperson's discretion in order to ensure that Council has sufficient time in which to 
transact Council business.

(4) Questions submitted to Council must be:
a) in writing, state the name and address of the person submitting the question and generally 

be in a form approved or permitted by Council; and
b) submitted to Council in person or electronically.

(5) No person may submit more than 2 questions at any 1 meeting.
(6) If a person has submitted 2 questions to a meeting, the second question:

a) may, at the discretion of the Chair, be deferred until all other persons who have asked a 
question have had their questions asked and answered; or

b) may not be asked if the time allotted for public question has expired.
(7) The Chair, a Councillor or a member of Council staff nominated by the Chair may read to those 

present at the meeting a question which has been submitted in accordance with this clause.
(8) Notwithstanding sub-clause (6), the Chair may refrain from reading a question or having a

question read if the person who submitted the question is not present in the gallery at the time 
when the question is due to be read.

(9) A question may be disallowed by the Chair if the Chair determines that it:
a) relates to a matter outside the duties, functions and powers of Council;
b) is defamatory, indecent, abusive, offensive, irrelevant, trivial or objectionable in language

or substance;
c) deals with a subject matter already answered;
d) is aimed at embarrassing a Councillor or a member of Council staff;
e) relates to personnel matters;
f) relates to the personal hardship of any resident or ratepayer;
g) relates to industrial matters;
h) relates to contractual matters that are commercial in confidence;
i) relates to proposed developments;
j) relates to legal advice;
k) relates to matters affecting the security of Council property; or
I) relates to any other matter which Council considers would prejudice Council or any

person.
(10) Any question which has been disallowed by the Chair must be made available to any other 

Councillor upon request
(11) All questions and answers must be as brief as possible, and no discussion may be slowed 

other than by Councilors for the purposes of clarification.
(12) Like questions may be grouped together and a single answer provided.
(13) The Chair may nominate a Councillor or the Chief Executive Officer to respond to a question.
(14) A Councillor or the Chief Executive Officer may require a question to be put on notice. If a 

question is put on notice, a written copy of the answer will be sent within 14 days to the person 
who asked the question.

(15) A Councillor or the Chief Executive Officer may advise Council that it is his or her opinion that 
the reply to a question should be given in a meeting closed to members of the public. The 
Councillor or Chief Executive Officer (as the case may be) must state briefly the reason why 
the reply should be so given and, unless Council resolves to tie  contrary, the reply to such 
question must be so given.
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REPORTS INDEX

Page No.
9. REPORTS

9.1 Climate Change

9.2 Infrastructure

9.3 Private Enterprise

9.4 Public Institutions

9.5 Housing and Recreation

9.6 Tourism

9.6.1 Nagambie Waterways Advisory Committee 
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on 25 February 2019

1

9.6.2 Tourism Arts and Culture Advisory Group 
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15 February, 2019

7

9.7 Organisation

9.7.1 Strathbogie of Strathbogie Roads Advisory Committee 
-  Appointment of Councillor Representative and Amendment to 
the Roads Advisory Committee Charter and Duty Statement

13

9.7.2 Access and Disability Advisory Committee 
-  Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 1 February 2019

24

9.7.3 Access and Disability Advisory Committee 
-  Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019

30

9.7.4 Strathbogie Shire Council Audit Committee 
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019

38

9.7.5 Sustainable Development Reference Group 
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Thursday 14 March 2019

50

9.7.6 2017-2021 Strathbogie Shire Council Plan (2019 Review) 
(incorporating the 2019/20 to 2023/24 Strategic Resource Plan)
- Amended Actions and Strategic Indicators for Year Ending 30 
June 2020

57

9.7.7 Draft 2019/20 Strathbogie Shire Council Budget 
- Preparation of Budget for Exhibition and Comment

60

9.7.8 Climate Change by Cities Power Partnership - Call for Federal 
Action

65

9.7.9 Strathbogie Community Pools Strategy 2019-2029 
- For Consideration and Adoption

68

9.7.10 Business Management System 111

10. NOTICES OF MOTION 131

11. URGENT BUSINESS 131
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12. CLOSURE OF MEETING TO THE PUBLIC 131

To consider matters in accordance with Section 89(2) of the 
Local Government Act 1989 -  
(d) Contractual Matters

Contractual Matters
C.P. 1 Contract No. 18/19-17 ~ Evaluation Report 

- Provision of Banking and Bill Payment Services

13. CONFIRMATION OF ‘CLOSED PORTION’ DECISION/S 132

Contractual Matters
C.P. 1 Contract No. 18/19-17 ~ Evaluation Report 

- Provision of Banking and Bill Payment Services
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9.6 Tourism Reports index

9.6.1 Nagambie Waterways Advisory Committee 
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on 25 February 2019

1

9.6.2 Tourism Arts and Culture Advisory Group 
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15th February, 2019

7
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9. REPORTS

9.6 TOURISM

9.6.1 Nagambie Waterways Advisory Committee
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on 25 February 2019

Author & Department
Visitor Economy & Events Coordinator / Corporate & Community Directorate

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest in relation to advice provided in this 
report
The author of this report and officers/contractors providing advice in relation to this 
report do not have a direct or indirect interest, as provided in accordance with the 
Local Government Act 1989.

Summary
Attached are the draft meeting minutes of the Nagambie Waterways Advisory 
Committee held on 25 February 2019, for Council’s endorsement.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council endorse the draft Minutes of the Nagambie Waterways 
Advisory Committee meeting held on 25 February 2019.

89/19 CRS MASON/BOWER : That the Recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED

Background
The Strathbogie Shire Council has resolved to appoint a Special Committee to 
advise policy and direction for the Nagambie Waterway, to ensure that the 
activities on the Nagambie Waterways meet the objectives and the vision of 
Council.

In 2015 the Council approved a new Terms of Reference for the committee and a 
new committee was appointed, to provide strategic direction for the waterways to 
the Council.

Alternative options
The author and other officers providing advice in relation to this report have 
considered potential alternative courses of action. No feasible alternatives have 
been identified.

Risk Management
The author of this report considers that there are no significant Risk Management 
factors relating to the report and recommendation.

Strategic links - policy implications and relevance to Council Plan
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Council 
Policies and key strategic documents.
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9.6.1 Nagambie Waterways Advisory Committee
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on 25 February 2019 (cont.)

Best Value / National Competition Policy (NCP) / Competition and Consumer 
Act 2010 (CCA) implications
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Best Value, 
National Competition Policy and competition and consumer Act requirements have 
been considered and applied in development of the report and recommendation.

Financial/Budgetary implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no capital or 
recurrent budget considerations.

Economic implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant 
economic implications for Council or the broader community.

Environmental/Amenity implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant 
environmental or amenity implications for Council or the broader community.

Community implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant 
environmental or amenity implications for Council or the broader community.

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006
The author considers that the recommendation does not limit any human rights 
under the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006.

Legal/Statutory implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no legal or 
statutory implications which require the consideration of Council

Consultation
The author of this report consulted with all the user groups of the waterways, 
relevant agencies, and the community at the recent meeting -  see attached copy 
of minutes.

Attachments
• Draft Minutes of the Nagambie Waterways Advisory Committee held on 25 

February 2019
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NAGAMBIE WATERWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING and GENERAL MEETING MINUTES 

held at the Nagambie Lakes Regatta Centre 
on Monday 25th February 2019 at 5.05 pm

Cr. Amanda McClaren 
Cr. Debra Bower 
Steve Crawcour 
David Roff 
Libby Webster 
Scott Wikman 
Wally Cubbin 
John Beresford 
Robert Kean 
Pat McNamara 
Ian Matheson 
Craig Stewart 
Lee Rowlands 
Alister Purbrick

AGM MINUTES
Mayor Strathbogie Shire Council (Chair) 
Councillor Strathbogie Shire Council 
CEO Strathbogie Shire Council 
Group Manager SSC 
Strathbogie Shire Council (Secretary) 
GMW
Nagambie Angling Club 
Commercial Developers 
Riparians
Nagambie Rowing Club 
GVW
Commercial Boating Operator 
Commercial Boating Operator 
GoNagambie

Apologies:
Inspector Peter Koger 
Sgt Tony Watson

Victoria Police -  Mitchell Division 
Nagambie Police

1. Conflicts of Interest - none declared

2. Chair’s Report -  see attached

3. Election of Committee

Received Nominations for the Committee, as per the Terms of Reference: 
Chair Cr Amanda McClaren Strathbogie Shire

Council
Ward Councillor Cr Debra Bower
Secretary Libby Webster

Skills Based Representatives, Recreational & Commercial Stakeholders
Nagambie Riparian 
Nagambie Angling Club 
Nagambie Rowing Club 
GoNagambie 
Commercial Developers

Commercial Operators

Robert Kean/Tony Hammond 
Wally Cubbin
Patrick McNamara/Henry Moss 
Alister Purbrick/Sissy Hoskin 
John Beresford -  Nagambie Developments 
Andrew Peters -  Hallmarc
Craig Stewart -  Goulburn Explorer 
Lee Rowlands -  Nagambie Boat Hire

16/04/19
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Reference Group
Steve Crawcour 
David Roff 
Scott Wikman 
Ian Matheson 
Inspector Peter Koger 
Sgt Tony Watson

CEO SSC
Group Manager Corporate & Community SSC 
Manager of Dams Operations GMW 
Operations Project Coordinator GVW 
Mitchell PSA VicPol 
Nagambie Police

Nominations to be forwarded to the Council for confirmation. 
AGM closed 5.12pm

GENERAL MEETING MINUTES
Commenced: 5.13

1. Welcome/apologies (As above)

2. Conflicts of Interest None Declared

3. Review minutes of previous Meeting 10/12/18
Matters arising/ Action List 

Steve Crawcour reported that the Loddings Lane boat ramp had been signed off with 
GBCMA today, which is the final agency approval required. The approval includes the 
requirement for the car park to be set back an extra 5m from the river, so bilge water will 
flow onto grass. A floating landing, to be installed beside the ramp, has been purchased 
from Murrindindi Shire (Lake Eildon) which shows good cooperation between the Shires. 
Work on the ramp to start asap. The Tender for the construction was approved last week 
by Council. The water in this part of the River is 8m deep and the ramp will be long 
enough to hold a boat and a trailer, with a lip at the end. There will be 12 designated car 
parks on the river side and overflow will park in the Regatta Centre ground opposite.

The Minutes of the 10th December 2018 meeting were tabled and unanimously accepted 
as a true and correct record of the meeting.

4. Correspondence -  Libby tabled a letter received from John Whitford of 
Langwarrin re concern about the unlimited speed limit on the water in the Goulburn Weir 
area, where the water can be shallow and stump laden.
Scott Wikman commented that there are a number of GMW water storages that have 
submerged stumps and GMW regard these as the responsibility of the operator of the 
vessel.

David Roff has written to Mr Whitford, in reply, noting that the letter would be tabled at the 
Waterways Advisory Committee for consideration.

This is another example of the issue of speed limits in the various areas of the waterways. 
It could be a 19/20 budget consideration for the Shire to allocate funds towards appointing 
a consultant to undertake the process of a review and community consultation, of the 
zoning and speed limits, on the Nagambie Lakes and Goulburn River waterways.
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The Committee recommended that the Strathbogie Shire Council allocate a budget for this 
review in the 19/20 budget, and appoint an appropriate consultant to undertake the review 
and community consultation of the speed and water use zoning on Nagambie Lakes and 
the Goulburn River.

5. Chinamans Bridge Update -  Steve Crawcour reported that representatives from
DWELP, Heritage Victoria and VicRoads have developed an MOU with regard to the 
maintenance and safety issues of Chinamans Bridge. This is now being considered by 
these agencies for endorsement. The Acting Director of VicRoads will inspect bridges, 
prior to the MOU agreement endorsement. The Officer from DWELP has been very 
supportive. Steve Crawcour has also met with VicRoads regarding extending the Armco 
to block off access to the boat ramp under the bridge.

Extra buoys were added to the Chinamans Bridge transit lane to give it clearer 
delineation. This was at the request of Marine Safety Victoria, who made the request at 
very short notice. Brett Fothergill installed the buoys in quick time, which was 
appreciated.

Alister Purbrick commented that this was a positive first step. He suggested that a request 
be made to Heritage Victoria for short term/medium term/long term plans and solutions to 
fund the restoration or removal of the bridge.

6. Duck Hunting Map - Scott Wikman tabled the updated map with extended areas
for no duck hunting, as per the committees suggestions. This has been shared with the 
Game Authority who will relay the message to the Duck hunters this season. Libby to 
work with Scott on maps for boat ramps etc.

7. Boat Ramp Fees -  David Roff reported that the recently re-elected Victorian 
Government made an election promise to abolish boat ramp fees on all Victorian public 
boat ramps. The Government has indicated that they will offer compensation, but have 
not indicated if this will be recurrent or a one off. Government requested estimate of 
foregone revenue, this has been supplied and a response is yet to be received.

8. Onwater events -  Libby tabled the spreadsheet of on water events in 2019.
There are a number of events coming up.

Libby reported that the Japanese Rowing Team visit was a huge success. They usually 
trained in France (as their head coach is French) but they preferred to come to Australia 
as the time zone is similar to Japan and we drive on the same side of the road. The really 
enjoyed the natural rowing environment of Nagambie. Thanks to Sykes who provided the 
boats and the contacts. Nagambie Rowing Club provided ergos for training.

9. General Business - .
Craig Stewart commented that he had noticed Fisheries Officers in an unmarked boat, 
who collected a lot of fines for speeding in 5kn zone. Steve Crawcour commented that 
previously the Shire had funded an unmarked patrol boat, which was cost neutral, but as 
the Shire was no longer receiving the fines, this was no longer viable. The Shire has not 
changed the stance of a ‘no tolerance’ policy, but it was more difficult to police in a 
marked vessel.
Scott Wikman commented that GMW don’t have compliance on water at Eildon or Lake 
Eppalock
Steve and Amanda are looking for every opportunity to lobby the relevant Ministers and 
agencies for funding opportunities.
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Alister Purbrick put forward a motion re funding of an Economic Development Masterplan. 
Steve Crawcour commented that the Shire has taken the Nagambie Development 
Tourism Infrastructure Business Case and broken it down in to individual plans, so there 
may be much of the required information in these plans. Is there a possibility that GMW 
could co-fund the completion of the report?
Amanda McClaren thanked John Beresford and Tim Goodacre for being part of a Shire 
delegation to Canberra to advocate for funding for Nagambie and the Shire.
Scott Wikman noted that GMW will lower the water level of the Lake and river system on 
the 15th May, similar to 2016, for 2 months so they can work on the Goulburn Weir wall. 
GMW’s Comms Depart will be sending out information for media releases and they have 
written to all affected customers.
Wally noted that there are over 1,000 registered participants for GoFish with 400 - 500 
boats expected on the river. Scott commented that his feedback was that the event had 
been booked out, which is incorrect. Ian Matheson asked that the organisers contact him 
re pumping of sewerage. It was suggested that Rod Lockwood be invited to 8th April 
meeting.
Patrick McNamara commented that he had attended the recent Canoe Polo 
Championship, which he thoroughly enjoyed.
Meeting closed 6.25pm

CONFIRMED MEETING SCHEDULE FOR 2019:
Monday 8 April 
Monday 17 June 
Monday 12 August 
Monday 14 October 
Monday 9 December 

Signed as a true and correct record of the meeting.

Amanda McClaren 
Chair
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9.6.2 Tourism Arts and Culture Advisory Group
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15 February, 2019

Author & Department
Manager Arts, Culture and Economy / Corporate and Community Department

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest in relation to advice provided in this report
The author of this report and officers/contractors providing advice in relation to this 
report do not have a direct or indirect interest, as provided in accordance with the 
Local Government Act 1989.

Summary
Attached are the draft minutes of the Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory Group for 
the meeting held on Friday 15 February, 2019.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council endorse the draft minutes of the Tourism, Arts and Culture 
Advisory Group meeting held on Friday 1 February, 2019.

90/19 CRS BOWER/WILLIAMS : That the Recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED

Background
The objectives of the Strathbogie Shire Council Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory 
Group are:

• To provide a formal mechanism for Council to consult with key 
stakeholders, seek specialist advice and enable community participation in 
the development and implementation of a Tourism, Arts and Culture 
Strategy Plan.

• Act as advocates and champions for Tourism, Arts and Culture programs 
and projects with the Shire that are of community benefit.

• Provide a forum for discussion of tourism, arts and culture industry trends 
and best practice in the Local Government sector.

The role of the Committee is to carry out the following functions:
• To assist with the development and implementation of a Tourism, Arts and 

Culture Strategy Plan.
• Respond to issues referred by Council to the committee.
• Assist Council to work strategically to encourage, foster, value and promote 

tourism, arts and culture.
• Provide a consultative mechanism for Council on tourism, arts and culture 

activities within the Shire.
• Assist in identifying and responding to key issues relating to tourism, arts 

and culture in the Shire.
• Provide advice on the review and implementation of the future Tourism, 

Arts and Culture Strategy Plan.

The Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory Group Charter was adopted by Council on 
15 August, 2017.
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9.6.2 Tourism Arts and Culture Advisory Group
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15 February, 2019 (cont.)

Alternative Options
The author and other officers providing advice in relation to this report have 
considered potential alternative courses of action. No feasible alternatives have 
been identified.

Risk Management
The author of this report considers that there are no significant Risk Management 
factors relating to the report and recommendation.

Strategic Links -  policy implications and relevance to Council Plan
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Council 
Policies, key strategic documents and the Council Plan.

Best Value / National Competition Policy (NCP) / Competition and Consumer 
Act 2010 (CCA) implications
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Best Value, 
National Competition Policy and Competition and Consumer Act requirements.

Financial / Budgetary Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no capital or 
recurrent budget considerations.

Economic Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant 
economic implications for Council or the broader community.

Environmental / Amenity Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant 
environmental or amenity implications for Council or the broader community.

Community Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant 
community or social implications for Council or the broader community.

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006
The author of this report considers that the recommendation does not limit any 
human rights under the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities 
Act 2006.

Legal I Statutory Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no legal or 
statutory implications which require the consideration of Council.

Consultation
The author of this report considers that the matter under consideration did not 
warrant a community consultation process.

Attachments
• Draft minutes of the Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory Committee of Friday 

15 February, 2019
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TOURISM, ARTS AND CULTURE 
ADVISORY GROUP

MEETING MINUTES
Friday 15th February 2019 
Nagambie. Muse Restaurant - Mrtchelton 
2:00pm -  3:00pm

Anticipated Attendees

Strathbogie
s m r e

Cr Debra Bower Councillor (CHAIR) Sissy Hoskins So Nagambie
Claire Taylor Strathbogie Shire Janelle Toomey Community Representative
Debra Ellis Strathbogie Shire Rosa Purbrick Community Representative
Kristen MacKenzie Community Representative

Apologies
Tess Noonan Egan Community Representative Leanne Hulm Goulbum River Valley Tourism
Cr Amanda McClaren Councillor Dan Capobianco Community Representative
Kathi Clark-Orsanic Community Representative

ITEM ACTION ITEMS
1. WELCOME MEMBERS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF COUNTRY CHAIR

2. APOLOGIES

3. MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MINUTES 

Acceptance of minutes from last meeting 4/12/18 

Moved: Janelle Toomey 

Seconded: Rosa Purbrick 

Update on Urban Planning projects:

3.1.1 Southern Aurora Memorial
Two years in the planning for this event - engaged assistance with the 
Shire early in the events development and to seek funding. 
Commemoration events took place over a 4 day period.
Vigil event was the same day as the black Saturday anniversary. Ghost 
train very impactful
Sunday launch - 300-400 attendees Theme helping hands, attendees 
could write messages on the hands. Well organised event to 
commemorate this historic event, culture of the township and its people 
working together
Raised issue of post traumatic stress volunteers are subjected to (50yrs 
since a young 20yr old volunteer returned to the site)

3.1.2 Nagambie Water Tower
Budget allocation of $20,000 in current 2018/2019 budget for this. Deb 
Bower has spoken to J3clyn Symes who advised that there would be a 
small amount of funding to access. Geny Ryan has queried what is 
happening with the tower - keen to see something happen with this.

Rosa conveyed that she thought businesses in Nagambie would like to 
see something happen with this and may support. Needs to have a 
working group driving the project to determine the theme/design - who

CARRIED
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should be involved??

Deb B is passionate about the project, and discussion with the group 
occurred regarding what, if any, engagement should occur with community 
regarding this project. With the terms of the charter stating that the TACAG 
group will 'Act as advocates and champions for Tourism, Arts and Culture 
programs and projects with the Shire that are of community benefit’, the 
question was posed as to who in the group would be 'willing to be a 
champion for this project.

Janelle Toomey indicated that she would be willing to investigate potential 
artists and artwork.

Action:
Janelle will assist to start moving this project again and will contact Minna 
Leunig and Gus Leunig. Also to approach Rosa Purbrick regarding 
potential design. Other artists are welcome to contribute. Suggested 
theme around nature and water. Will bring back this infomiation to the next 
meeting.

Janelle T

4. STRATEGY/PLAN DEVELOPMENT 

4.1 Update on Framework
Attendance by members of Council, officers and CEO of Goulbum Valley 
Regional Libraries and at a workshop on 22/01/19 by John Smithies from 
Cultural Development Network (CDN) which provided an overview of a 
recognised framework for moving forward with the development of the Arts & 
Culture Strategy.

Provided a summary of the PowerPoint presentation given at the workshop for 
members. Discussion regarding outcomes and activities and understanding 
this - great conversation

Action: Claire/Deb will refine existing document to be sent to CDN for review 
and comment, then this will be presented to the group. Claire / Deb E

5. ARTS & CULTURE

5.1 Gannawarra Shire -  Case Study
5.2 Showcase Victoria 2019 -  14 to 16 Mav. 2019
5.3 Creative Victoria -  Small Reqional Presenters Fundinq 
Ganawarra Shire has a similar demographic to Strathbogie Shire, no central 
township, similar landscape and population, lots of halls. Brought to the group 
for consideration as a possible project. Funding available, but we would not be 
able apply this year.

Potential to work with the model from Ganawarra Shire and work with 
Showcase on potential acts to perform as a future possible community project

As a result of networking with these groups, Claire has been asked to be on 
the panel for the assessments of the 2019 applications for funding. Showcase 
is a two day event to see all the potential performances that are available to 
tour.

Action: TACAG members to ad as conduits to potential champions. Claire will 
contact Adam Palmer at Northern Republic, Fin Murphy at Sevens, Jill Hayes 
at Butter Factory. Claire to find out about funding and how many people who 
would be able to attend

ALL
Claire
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6. COMMITTEE MEMBERS

6.1 Calendar and venue dates for 2019
Discussion regarding meeting times and days. Fridays work well with some 
members. Make the meetings as a lunch meeting on Fridays at 12 - 2pm 
Discussion regarding the venue; Tabilk, Fowies, White Hart Hotel, Northern 
Republic, Community Cafe VT

Action: Decision for Longwood cm Friday 22nd March 12:00- 1:00pm (lunch) 
1:00pm -  2:00pm (meeting) Claire to send out meeting invite for this

7. OTHER BUSINESS

Rosa -  advised she may not be in attendance at the next meeting

Deb E -  Buckley Park mural maintenance; still following up with Vin Edwards 
regarding sectioning off the area and height safety requirements

8. MEETING CLOSED @ 3:05pm
9. NEXT MEETING:
Friday, 22/03/19 -  White Heart Hotel, Longwood -  2:00pm to 3:00pm
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9.7 ORGANISATION

9.7.1 Strathbogie Shire Roads Advisory Committee
-  Appointment of Councillor Representative and Amendment to the Roads 
Advisory Committee Charter and Duty Statement

Author & Department
Group Manager Community Assets / Community Assets Directorate

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest in relation to advice provided in this report
The author of this report and officers/contractors providing advice in relation to this 
report do not have a direct or indirect interest, as provided in accordance with the 
Local Government Act 1989.

Summary
In accordance with the Council Plan 2017-2021, Strathbogie Shire Council 
resolved to appoint a Roads Advisory Committee. The role of the Committee is to 
advise Council on the following:

• Development and review of policy and strategy relating to the road 
network;

• Policy relating to the management of roadsides; and
• Potential advocacy priorities regarding road safety issues and initiatives of 

community benefit.

Due to the recent resignation of Councillor Alistair Thomson as a Councillor 
representative from the Roads Advisory Committee, there is a requirement to 
appoint a Councillor as a replacement on the Committee.

As a result of Council concern, this report also recommends amending the Roads 
Advisory Committee Charter and Roads Advisory Committee Duty Statement to 
include reference to footpaths as an objective of the Committee.

RECOMMENDATION

That in accordance with the Roads Advisory Committee Charter, Council -

1. Appoint Cr ............. as a Councillor representative on the Roads
Advisory Committee.

2. Amends the second dot point of the Objectives of the Committee as
stated in the Roads Advisory Committee Charter and the Roads 
Advisory Committee Duty Statement to include reference to footpaths 
as follows: To advise Council on policy relating to the management
of roadsides including footpaths.
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9.7.1 Strathbogie Shire Roads Advisory Committee
-  Appointment of Councillor Representative and Amendment to the Roads 
Advisory Committee Charter and Duty Statement (cont.)

RECOMMENDATION (cont.)

CRS MASON/WILLIAMS -

Amendment:

That in accordance with the Roads Advisory Committee Charter, Council -

1. Appoint Cr Malcolm Little as a Councillor representative on the Roads 
Advisory Committee.

2. Amends the second dot point of the Objectives of the Committee as
stated in the Roads Advisory Committee Charter and the Roads 
Advisory Committee Duty Statement to include reference to footpaths 
as follows: To advise Council on policy relating to the management
of roadsides including footpaths.

91/19 ON BEING PUT, THE AMENDMENT BECAME THE MOTION

92/19 ON BEING PUT, THE MOTION WAS CARRIED

Background
One of the key strategies for 2017/2018 in the Council Plan 2017 -  2021, under 
Our Goals 3, is “To provide quality infrastructure” for Council to “Develop terms of 
reference for a Roads Advisory Committee”.

In accordance with the Council Plan action, at the 15 May 2018 ordinary Council 
meeting, Council adopted the draft Roads Advisory Committee Charter, May 2018 
(and draft Duty Statement) as the Terms of Reference for the Roads Advisory 
Committee. Committee membership, nomination process and other governance 
arrangements for the functioning of the Committee are included in the Charter. 
The Duty Statement outlines the selection criteria required of potential community 
members.

The Charter also states that committee membership will include two (2) 
Councillors and representation from VicRoads. Following a public process, 
Council appointed two Councillor Representatives, three community 
representatives and appointed two members from VicRoads to the Committee.

Due to the recent resignation of Cr Thomson as a Councillor representative from 
the Roads Advisory Committee, there is a requirement to appoint a Councillor as a 
replacement on the Committee. This will ensure compliance with the Roads 
Advisory Committee Charter, May 2018.
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9.7.1 Strathbogie Shire Roads Advisory Committee
-  Appointment of Councillor Representative and Amendment to the Roads 
Advisory Committee Charter and Duty Statement (cont.)

As a result of Council concern, this report also recommends amending the second 
dot point of the Objectives O f the Committee as stated in the Roads Advisory 
Committee Charter and in the Roads Advisory Committee Duty Statement to 
include reference to footpaths as follows:

“To advise Council on policy relating to the management o f roadsides 
including footpaths”

Alternative Options
The author and other officers providing advice in relation to this report have 
considered potential alternative courses of action.

Risk Management
The author of this report considers that that there are no significant risk 
management factors relating to this report and recommendation.

Strategic Links -  policy implications and relevance to Council Plan
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Council 
Policies, key strategic documents and the Council Plan.

Best Value I National Competition Policy (NCP) / Competition and Consumer 
Act 2010 (CCA) implications
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Best Value, 
National Competition Policy and Competition and Consumer Act requirements.

Financial / Budgetary Implications
There are minimal financial implications in the operations of this Committee which 
will be limited to meeting and administrative costs.

Economic Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant 
economic implications for Council or the broader community.

Environmental / Amenity Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant 
environmental or amenity implications for Council or the broader community.

Community Implications
The Committee Charter includes sections that define Committee Membership, the 
skills and experience required of community members, the Term of Appointment of 
members, Nomination of Membership and the Code of Conduct to be adhered to 
by members.

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006
The author of this report considers that the recommendation does not limit any 
human rights under the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities 
Act 2006.
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9.7.1 Strathbogie Shire Roads Advisory Committee
-  Appointment of Councillor Representative and Amendment to the Roads 
Advisory Committee Charter and Duty Statement (cont.)

Legal / Statutory Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no legal or 
statutory implications which require the consideration of Council.

Consultation
The adoption of the Strathbogie Shire Roads Advisory Committee Charter, May 
2018 (and Duty Statement) and the appointment of Community Representatives to 
the committee has been subject to public consultation and previous Council 
reports.

Attachments
• Draft Amended Shire of Strathbogie Roads Advisory Committee Charter, April 

2019
• Draft Shire of Strathbogie Roads Advisory Committee Duty Statement, April 

2019
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Strathbogie
shire

Strathbogie Shire 
Roads Advisory Committee 

Charter

Reviewed and Endorsed by Council: 16 April Æ-Mw-2019*

Strathbogie Shire Roads Advisory Committee Charter
I Endorsed by Ccundl — 1ô Aon I 5 May 2DÌ&&
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STRATHBOGIE SHIRE COUNCIL 

CHARTER OF THE ROADS ADVISORY COMMITTEE

1. CONSTITUTION

1.1 Tine Strathbogie Shire Council ("CounciP) has resolved to appoint a Roads
Advisory Committee (aCommittee:').

1.2 The Council will review the Roads Advisory Committee within 12 months after
the election of Councillors; which is every four (4) years.

2. OBJECTIVES OF THE COMMITTEE

The objectives of the Committee are:

• To advise Council on the development and review of policy and strategy 
relating to the road network;

• ‘To advise Council on policy relating to the management of roadsides 
including footpath s'-ie —adr i&c»—Gounoil on— poliay—roiot-ng to—th* 
management of raadsidas; and

• To advise Council on potential advocacy priorities regarding road safety 
issues and initiatives of community benefit.

3. TERMS OF REFERENCE

The role of the Committee is to carry out the following functions:

• To participate in the development of Council's Road Asset Management 
Plan and Road Management Plan.

• To participate in the development of levels of service for road 
infrastructure.

• Respond to issues referred by Council to the Committee associated with 
issues pertaining to traffic, freight and safety.

4. COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

4.1 The Council has resolved that the Committee shall consist of the 
following representatives:

* Councillors x Two
* Council Officers x Two (Manager Assets and Manager 

Infrastructure)
• Community representatives (Three by expression of interest)
• VicRoads Representative.

4.2 The Council or Committee may second people with technical expertise 
as required for a temporary period.

Strathbogie Shire Roads Advisory Committee Charter
| Endorsed by Council -  16 April 5 May 2D1&&
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4.3 A “Duty Statement" that outlines the criteria including skills and 
experience required of community members to be considered for 
appointment to this Committee Is attached to this Charter.

5. TERM OF APPOINTMENT

5.1 Public members hold their appointment in their own right whilst 
members nominated by a particular group will represent that group.

5.2 Public members of the Committee appointed for a period of two (2) 
years shall be eligible for re-appointment to the Committee for a 
further term of two (2) years each.

5.3 A member of the Committee may resign his/her position at any time.

5.4 The Committee is empowered to declare a Committee member's 
position vacant if he/she fails to attend three (3) consecutive meetings 
without leave by resolution duly passed.

5.5 The Council shall appoint another person to fill any vacancy caused by 
the resignation of any member of the Committee.

5.6 Any person appointed to till a vacancy on the Committee shall hold 
office for the unexpired portion of the previous member’s temi of 
office.

6. NOMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP

6.1 The Council shall invite nominees by expression of interest not less 
than one (1) month prior to the date of the termination of the temi of 
office of the representatives.

6.2 Council has the right to veto any nomination if the nominee is deemed 
to be unsuitable for the purpose of the Committee.

7. CHAIRPERSON

7.1 The Council will appoint a Councillor as Chairperson of the Committee 
to preside at all meetings at which he/she is present.

7.2 In the absence of the Chairperson, the Committee may elect one of 
the members to preside as Chairperson at the meeting.

7.3 The role of the Chairperson shall be:
(a) To chair all meetings of the Committee.
(b) To act as the liaison person between the Committee and Council.

8. SECRETARY

The Committee is to be serviced with the administrative and technical support
provided by Council.

16/04/19

Strathbogie Shire Roads Advisory Committee Charter
| Endorsed by Council -  16 Aoril 5 May 20164
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8.1 The Chief Executive Officer shall appoint a Council Officer to act as 
Secretary to the Committee.

8.2 The Secretary shall prepare the agenda and minutes for each meeting 
of the Committee and shall distribute, or arrange to be distributed, 
copies of the agenda and minutes to members of the Committee and 
Council.

9. REPORTING

9.1 The Committee shall submit its minutes to Council for inclusion in the 
next available Council Meeting Agenda.

10. DELEGATIONS

10.1 This Committee has no delegated powers to act on behalf of Council 
or commit Council to any expenditure until resolved explicitly by 
Council.

11. FINANCES

11.1 This Committee has no delegated authority to expend monies.

12. INSURANCES

12.1 The Council shall arrange and maintain a portfolio of insurances to 
cover all possible risks, including a Personal Accident Policy of 
committee members, a Voluntary Worker’s Policy and an Indemnity 
Policy for committee members.

13. MEETINGS OF THE COMMITTEE

13.1 All meetings off the Committee shall be conducted in accordance 'with 
Council’s Lo cal Law No. 1.

13.2 The Committee shall meet at least quarterly at a date and time to be 
determined at the first meeting. Additional meetings may be convened 
at the discretion of Council.

14. QUORUM

14.1 A quorum is formed 'when a simple majority of members of the 
Committee is present at a meeting.

15. REVIEW

15.1 The Council shall carry out regular reviews of the Committee's 
Charter.

15.2 The Council may carry out a special review of the Committee's 
Charter at the request of the Committee.

15.3 The Council shall consult with the Committee prior to the making of 
amendments or alterations to the Committee's Charter.

Strathbogie Shire Roads Advisory Committee Charter 
| Endorsed by Council -  16 A p rils  May 2D1&6
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16, PECUNIARY INTERESTS

16.1 Members of this Committee are not obliged to submit returns of pecuniary 
interest as there is no delegated power to the Committee.

17. CODE OF CONDUCT

17.1 Councillors on this Committee are to abide by the Councillor Code of 
Conduct, 21 February 2017

17.2 Council Officers on this Committee are to abide by the Staff Code of 
Conduct CEO Directive

17.3 Community Representatives are to abide by the Staff Code of Conduct 
CEO Directive and Voluntary Workers Policy^ DATE,

This Strathbogie Shire Council Roads Advisory Committee Charter is made on 
behalf of Strathbogie Shire Council by its Chief Executive Officer under the authority 
of the Instrument of Delegation.

SIGNED by Steve Crawcour
Chief Executive Officer of the Strathbogie Shire Council

Dated:

Strathbogie Shire Roads Advisory Committee Charter
I Endorsed b v  Council — 16 Ajori 15-Mw-2D1 &ft
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Strathbogie
shire

Strathbogie Shire 
Roads Advisory Committee 

Duty Statement

Reviewed and Endorsed by Council: 166 April -PAav-2019£

Slrath bogie Shire
Roads Advisory Committee Duty Statement 

I Endorsed by Council- 16 April-May-SDi&Ä
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In accordance with the Strathbogie Shire Roads Advisory Committee Charter, the 
Objectives of the Committee are:

• To advise Council on the development and review of policy and strategy 
relating to the road network;

* ‘To advise Council on policy' relating to the management of roadsides 
including footoaths'3^ —odvioo Co unoil—et=i—policy—minting to—tfc* 
management af roadsides; and

• To advise Council on potential advocacy priorities regarding road safety 
issues and initiatives of community benefit.

The role of the Committee is to carry out the following functions:

* To participate in the development of Council’s Road Asset Management 
Plan and Road Management Plan.

* To participate in the development of levels of service for road 
infrastructure.

• Respond to issues referred by Council to the Committee associated with 
issues pertaining to traffic, freight and safety.

The Council has resolved that in addition to two Councillors, Council Officers and a 
representative from VicRoads, the Committee shall include three Community 
members.

The following is a list of the criteria that Community representatives are required to 
meet to be considered for appointment to the Committee:

• Appropriate tertiary qualifications in a Civil engineering or a related discipline; 
and/or

* Demonstrated experience in either road safety, road traffic or strategic road 
management; and/or

* Practical experience; and/or
• An understanding of major State and Federal road management programs 

associated with freight, safety or funding opportunities.

The Strathbogie Shire Roads Advisory Committee Charter is to be read in 
conjunction with this Duty Statement as it provides detail of additional Temis of 
Reference for the Committee.

A copy of the Strathbogie Shire Staff Code of Conduct CEO Directive. 21 June 2017 
is attached to this document for reference.

This Strathbogie Shire Council Roads Advisory Committee Duty Statement is 
made on behalf of Strathbogie Shire Council by its Chief Executive Officer under the 
authority of the Instrument of Delegation.

SIGNED by Steve Crawcour
Chief Executive Officer of the Strathbogie Shire Council

Dated;................................................
Strathbogie Shire
Roads Advisory Committee Duty Statement

| Endorsed by Council -  16 April May 2D1&&
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9.7.2 Access and Disability Advisory Committee
-  Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 1 February 2019

Author & Department
Community Development Officer / Corporate and Community Directorate

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest in relation to advice provided in this report
The author of this report and officers/contractors providing advice in relation to this 
report do not have a direct or indirect interest, as provided in accordance with the 
Local Government Act 1989.

Summary
Attached are the minutes of the Access and Disability Advisory Committee 
meeting held on Friday 1 February 2019.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive the Minutes of the Access and Disability Advisory 
Committee meeting held on Friday 1 February 2019.

93/19 CRS WILLIAMS/THOMSON : That the Recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED

Background
The aim of the Strathbogie Shire Council Access and Disability Advisory 
Committee is to:
* liaise with community members who live with a disability;
■ provide advice and recommendations regarding access and equity to 

Strathbogie Shire Council; and
■ support and raise community awareness of the rights of persons with a 

disability.

The Access and Disability Advisory Committee Terms of Reference were adopted 
by Council on 21 August 2018.

Alternative Options
The author and other officers providing advice in relation to this report have 
considered potential alternative courses of action. No feasible alternatives have 
been identified.

Risk Management
The author of this report considers that there are no significant Risk Management 
factors relating to the report and recommendation.

Strategic Links -  policy implications and relevance to Council Plan
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Council 
Policies, key strategic documents and the Council Plan.
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9.7.2 Access and Disability Advisory Committee
-  Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 1 February 2019 (cont.)

Best Value I National Competition Policy (NCP) / Competition and Consumer 
Act 2010 (CCA) implications
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Best Value, 
National Competition Policy and Competition and Consumer Act requirements.

Financial I Budgetary Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no capital or 
recurrent budget considerations.

Economic Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant 
economic implications for Council or the broader community.

Environmental I Amenity Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant 
environmental or amenity implications for Council or the broader community.

Community Implications
The Access and Disability Advisory Committee Meetings provide an opportunity for 
advice and recommendations regarding access and equity to be presented to 
Strathbogie Shire Council.

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006
The author of this report considers that the recommendation does not limit any 
human rights under the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities 
Act 2006.

Legal I Statutory Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no legal or 
statutory implications which require the consideration of Council.

Consultation
■ Members of the ADAC will listen to issues raised by community members and 

report back to the ADAC
■ Community concerns will be a standing agenda item at each ADAC meeting 

and members given the opportunity to discuss any issues that have been 
raised with them

■ Any issues that then need to be taken to the Executive Management Team or 
Council will follow the “Communicating with Council” guidelines specified in the 
Terms of Reference.

■ ADAC members will advise community members that the ADAC member 
cannot act individually or provide an immediate response without consulting 
the group as any decisions rests with Council

Attachments
• Minutes of the Access and Disability Advisory Committee meeting held on 

Friday 1 February 2019.
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ACCESS AND DISABILITY ADVISORY
c o m m it t e e  Strathbogie

shire
MEETING MINUTES

1 February 2019 
Mitchelton Winery 
10am-12noon

Attendees
James Carter Community Representative 

(Chair)
Uwe Paffrath Strathbogie Shire

Grace Kenworthy Community Representative Georgina Bett Strathbogie Shire
Amanda Watkins Community Representative Daniel Maloney Strathbogie Shire
Vicki Bell 
Erica Bostock

Community Representative 
Community Representative

Lauren Dainton Access & Support Officer

Apologies
Cr Graeme 
Williams

Councillor Cameron Fraser Strathbogie Shire

Cr Malcolm Little Councillor Ashley Lythgo Intereach
Cr Deb Bower Councillor Tracey Reid Strathbogie Shire

1. WELCOME MEMBERS

Georgina welcomed members of the committee and thanked everyone for their 
attendance.

James Carter agreed to chair this meeting.

It was agreed that the March meeting would be held at the Shire offices. The 
committee members noted it was important that each venue needed to be easily 
accessible and provide a quiet and private space.

2. APOLOGIES

Received from Cr Williams, Cr Little, Cr Bower, Cameron Fraser, Tracey Reid and 
Ashley Lythgo.

3. CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES

Daniel Maloney moved that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 30 November 
2018 be confirmed.

Amanda Watkins seconded the motion.

4. ACTIONS FROM PREVIOUS MEETING

Actions Person Responsible Status

2019 meeting dates and 
venues to be finalised

Georgina Dates finalised. Venue for 
March meeting decided. 
Georgina to propose remaining 
venues at next meeting.
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Send February meeting 
invitation and book venue

Georgina Completed

Organise time for Lauren to 
visit Euroa to meeting 
everyone in Community 
Wellbeing and Customer 
Service Teams

Georgina Completed

Arrange a briefing with 
Councillors for Lauren to give 
overview of her work (in the 
new year)

Georgina To be arranged

Provide brochures/cards to 
Georgina for distribution to 
ADAC and Community Groups

Lauren Completed

Look at potential disabled 
parking to be included in plans 
for new Nagambie Visitor 
Centre

Daniel Discussed -  see below

Planning requested to provide 
update of the overpass 
upgrade in Anderson Street at 
the next meeting.

Cameron Discussed -  see below

5. ASSETS UPDATE

a) Euroa Visitor Centre

Plans nearly finalized and will be circulated to ADAC committee after meeting. 
Ramp will be provided to enable wheelchair access.

b) Euroa RSL

Verandah extension still in concept planning phase.

c) Nagambie Toilet Block

Toilet Block plans in design phase.

d) Street Lighting

For all future public lighting, LED lights will be installed. Further consultation 
on level of lighting temperature (white light or warm light) and how this affects 
mobility on streets and in parks. Current thinking is that warmer light is 
effective for predominate pedestrian activities while white light is more effective 
for predominate vehicle activities.

Discussion of ownership of light poles and therefore which entity (Power 
Distribution Company or Local Council) will be responsible to install and 
maintain. Discussion on need to ensure poles available at time of installation 
will allow for the use of future technologies.
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6. PLANNING UPDATE

a) Euroa’s Strategic Plan should be ready in early March. Community 
Consultation will take place in late March once draft plan has been reviewed 
by Council officers.

b) Violet Town & District Strategic Development Plan is under review.

c) Anderson Street Overpass upgrade

■ Council is working with ARTC in regards to the engineering drawings 
submitted for the proposed overpass upgrade.

■ James noted it was important that emergency vehicles have access to 
Train Platform.

■ Council will provide further update when appropriate.

7. RURAL ACCESS OFFICER UPDATE

This position is unlikely to be filled. Committee was disappointed about this news. 
James Carter moved the motion and recommended that the ADAC write to Steph and 
find the reason if she knew of the State Government reason for removing of financial 
support of this vital program.

8. CORRESPONDENCE AND COMMUNITY CONCERNS

No correspondence tabled.

9. GENERAL BUSINESS

Discussion about the number of businesses that do not display a disability access sign 
at entrance of premises.

• It was decided that further discussion on how best to address this at next 
meeting. It was suggested that perhaps consultation with the business 
committee to develop consistent approach/standard. Dan said he would bring 
this to Stephen Cooper’s attention.

• The position of chair was discussed and agreed that it would rotate amongst 
the committee members for the 2019 ADAC meetings. The schedule of 
meetings attached to these minutes records the nominated Chair for each 
meeting. It may be subject to change based on availability of committee 
member and Councilor.

• Georgina noted that the Guide Dog flyer and Vic Health Indicators Survey 
2015 Supplementary Report was tabled for committee’s information.

Next Meeting: Euroa - Conference Room, Friday, 15 March 2019, 10am-12noon
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Actions Person Responsible
Euroa Visitor Centre plans to be circulated to ADAC Uwe Paffrath/Georgina Bett
Plans for Nagambie Toilet Block and Euroa RSL Verandah 
extension to be circulated to ADAC once preliminary design 
plans have been produced

Uwe Paffrath/Daniel 
Maloney/Georgina Bett

Violet Town Development Strategy is under review. Daniel Maloney
Community Consultation on draft Euroa Town Development 
plan (late March)

Daniel Maloney

Disability Access signs at front of businesses

Further discussion about adopting a standard approach to 
signage

Daniel Maloney to discuss 
with Stephen Cooper

Committee

Access and Disability Advisory Committee (ADAC)
Meeting Schedule 2019

DATE TIME LOCATION CHAIR GUEST

Friday, 1 Feb 11am-1pm
Nagambie
Mitchelton

Winery
James Carter

Friday, 15 March 10am-12pm Euroa 
Shire Offices Erica Bostock

Friday, 3 May 10am-12pm Strathbogie 
Venue TBC Councillor

Friday, 14 June 10am-12pm Violet Town 
Venue TBC Lauren Dainton

Friday, 26 July 10am-12pm Avenel 
Venue TBC Grace Kenworthy

Friday, 6 September 10am-12pm Euroa 
Venue TBC Amanda Watkins

Friday, 18 October 10am-12pm Ruffy 
Venue TBC James Carter

Friday, 29 November 10am-12pm Longwood 
Venue TBC Vicki Bell

Tuesday 3 December International Day o f People with Disability
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9.7.3 Access and Disability Advisory Committee
-  Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019

Author & Department
Community Development Officer / Corporate and Community Directorate

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest in relation to advice provided in this 
report
The author of this report and officers/contractors providing advice in relation to this 
report do not have a direct or indirect interest, as provided in accordance with the 
Local Government Act 1989.

Summary
Attached are the draft minutes of the Access and Disability Advisory Committee 
meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019.

RECOMMENDATION

1. That Council receive the draft Minutes of the Access and Disability 
Advisory Committee meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019.

2. That Council note the Recommendations from the Access and 
Disability Advisory Committee meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019.

94/19 CRS MASON/THOMSON : That the Recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED

Background
The aim of the Strathbogie Shire Council Access and Disability Advisory 
Committee is to:
■ liaise with community members who live with a disability;
■ provide advice and recommendations regarding access and equity to 

Strathbogie Shire Council; and
■ support and raise community awareness of the rights of persons with a 

disability.

The Access and Disability Advisory Committee Terms of Reference were adopted 
by Council on 21 August 2018.

Alternative Options
The author and other officers providing advice in relation to this report have 
considered potential alternative courses of action. No feasible alternatives have 
been identified.

Risk Management
The author of this report considers that there are no significant Risk Management 
factors relating to the report and recommendation.

Strategic Links -  policy implications and relevance to Council Plan
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Council 
Policies, key strategic documents and the Council Plan.
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9.7.3 Access and Disability Advisory Committee
-  Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019 (cont.)

Best Value / National Competition Policy (NCP) / Competition and Consumer 
Act 2010 (CCA) implications
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Best Value, 
National Competition Policy and Competition and Consumer Act requirements.

Financial I Budgetary Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no capital or 
recurrent budget considerations.

Economic Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant 
economic implications for Council or the broader community.

Environmental /  Amenity Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant 
environmental or amenity implications for Council or the broader community.

Community Implications
The Access and Disability Advisory Committee Meetings provide an opportunity 
for advice and recommendations regarding access and equity to be presented to 
Strathbogie Shire Council.

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006
The author of this report considers that the recommendation does not limit any 
human rights under the Victorian Charter of Fluman Rights and Responsibilities 
Act 2006.

Legal I Statutory Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no legal or 
statutory implications which require the consideration of Council.

Consultation
■ Members of the ADAC will listen to issues raised by community members and 

report back to the ADAC
* Community concerns will be a standing agenda item at each ADAC meeting 

and members given the opportunity to discuss any issues that have been 
raised with them

■ Any issues that then need to be taken to the Executive Management Team or 
Council will follow the “Communicating with Council” guidelines specified in 
the Terms of Reference.

* ADAC members will advise community members that the ADAC member 
cannot act individually or provide an immediate response without consulting 
the group as any decisions rests with Council

Attachments
* Draft minutes of the Access and Disability Advisory Committee meeting held 

on Friday 15 March 2019.
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ACCESS AND DISABILITY ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES

15 March 2019 
Euroa Shire Offices 
10am-12noon

Attendees
Erica Bostock

Grace Kenworthy 
Amanda Watkins 
James Carter 
Erica Bostock

Apologies
Cr Graeme 
Williams 
Cr Deb Bower 
Daniel Maloney

1. WELCOME MEMBERS

Erica welcomed members of the committee and thanked everyone for their attendance.

2. APOLOGIES

Received from Vicki Bell, Cr Williams, Cr Bower, Daniel Maloney and Ashley Lythgo.

3. CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES

James Carter moved that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 1 February 2019 be 
confirmed.

Grace Kenworthy seconded the motion. 

4. ACTIONS FROM PREVIOUS MEETING

Actions Person Responsible Status

Euroa Visitor Centre plans to 
be circulated to ADAC

Uwe Paffrath Preliminary design plans have 
been circulated by Uwe for 
initial feedback. Once issues 
that may affect the entrance to 
the VIC have been resolved, 
the amended plans will 
circulated to ADAC to obtain 
further feedback.

Community Representative 
(Chair)
Community Representative 
Community Representative 
Community Representative 
Community Representative

Uwe Paffrath

Georgina Bett 
Daniel Maloney 
Cameron Fraser 
Lauren Dainton

Strathbogie Shire Council

Strathbogie Shire Council 
Strathbogie Shire Council 
Strathbogie Shire Council 
Access & Support Officer

Councillor

Councillor
Strathbogie Shire Council

Vicki Bell 

Ashley Lythgo

Community Representative 

Intereach

f t

Strathbogie
s m r e
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Plans for Nagambie Toilet 
Block and Euroa RSL 
Verandah extension to be 
circulated to ADAC once 
preliminary design plans have 
been produced

Uwe Paffrath Updated plans will be 
circulated when available.

Violet Town Development 
Strategy is under review.

Daniel Maloney To be carried over

Consultation with community 
regarding Euroa Strategic Plan 
to take place late March

Daniel Maloney To be carried over

Disability Access signs 
displayed on front door/wall of 
businesses.

Georgina Georgina to follow up with 
Council the procedure to be 
followed and design of access

Further discussion about 
adopting standard approach to 
display of signs

Committee

5. ASSETS UPDATE

e) Euroa Visitor Centre

James commented that handrail should be looped rather than straight out. The issue 
is one of safety i.e. sharp/straight rail.

Site Plan: James noted that there was no accessible staff parking bays marked on 
plan. He suggested there should be one. Uwe said this was due to the issue of the 
floor level. Discussion around floor level and accessible parking ongoing.

ACTION: Preliminary design plans have been circulated by Uwe for initial feedback. 
Once issues that may affect the entrance to the VIC have been resolved, 
the amended plans will circulated to ADAC to obtain further feedback.

f) Nagambie Toilet Block

Nagambie Toilet Block: Review and amendment of plans ongoing; water supply to be 
used in block under discussion.

ACTION: Updated plans will be circulated when available.

g) Euroa RSL Verandah

Plans being redrafted for verandah extension, to ensure external accessibility to the 
existing internal toilets by the RSL without interference to the Third Age Club.

h) Violet Town Expansion Plan

Cam Fraser reported that Daniel Maloney met with Violet Town community groups to 
discuss strategy. Once strategy finalized it will be submitted to Council for review and 
approval. The plan will need to align with Council and Community Plans.

ACTION: The approved plan will be circulated to the wider community for 
consultation.
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i) Euroa Township Strategic Plan

The plan is currently on hold due to the ARTC program. Once ARTC plan is closer to 
finalization the strategic plan will go to Council for review and comment. Plan will 
then be issued to the community for consideration and consultation.

j) Accessibility Signage

Committee discussed importance of having accessibility signs clearly displayed on 
the front of public and commercial buildings to assist those with a disability. Good 
access equals good business.

ACTION: Georgina to follow up with Council the procedure to be followed and 
design of access signs.

k) Euroa Traveller’s Rest

ADCA reviewed the supplied plans and found the design to be appropriate for the 
intended uses

The funding for the proposed works, separated into three stages, shall be considered 
by Council.

Stage 1: Decking board will be constructed over the top of existing uneven concrete 
surface (running along creek).

Stage 2: Current decking at the Traveller’s Rest to be replaced with more durable 
material.

Stage 3: Existing split level asphalt access path to be replaced with all accessibilities 
ramp, including kerb, kerb rail, handrail and landings.

I) General

Footpath renewal program is almost completed within Nagambie and the missing link 
between footpaths just east of the Primary School in the process of being 
constructed.

The proposed crossing formalisation over Kirkland Avenue, outside Burtons, is to 
commence within the next week. The works entail a kerb extension which would 
result in a shorter distance to cross the road.

Council’s Bicycle and Walking Path Strategy is under review. James recommended 
that, as part of the review, to refer to the Euroa Town Ship Plans drawn up some 10 
years, as it contains recommendations from ADAC.

ACTION: Georgina to search for Euroa Township Plans drawn up about 10 years 
ago.

James commended Council on the repair work done on footpath outside "The Corner 
Store” (Clifton Street).

Grace asked about proposed pathway work on Anderson Street in Avenel. Uwe said 
that Council was aware of it as it forms part of Council’s Bicycle and Walking Path 
Strategy.
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6. PLANNING UPDATE 

Whroo Vale Estate

Discussion about what could be done to enhance the liveability of Whroo Vale Estate. Erica 
suggested the planting of trees would soften the appearance of the estate.

Work continuing in relation to the installation of exercise equipment along the APEX track in 
Euroa.

7. RURAL ACCESS OFFICER UPDATE

Georgina advised that funding for Rural Access Officer had been extended to end of 2019. 
The Greater Shepparton Shire advertised internally and externally for the role, however, they 
did not receive any applications. As a result they have handed the funding back to DHHS.

There was considerable discussion in relation to the importance of the role until the end of 
December 2019. Lauren Dainton expressed interest in the role.

8. CORRESPONDENCE AND COMMUNITY CONCERNS

James tabled email in relation to his appointment to the V-Line Disability Reference Group 
representing the Goulburn Valley & North East Victoria region. The committee congratulated 
James on his appointment.

9. GENERAL BUSINESS

• Avenel Railway Crossing
Grace advised signage and lines at crossing were confusing and need to be 
moved/removed. Uwe advised that this was a VicRoads project, however, he was 
looking at funding options to get major funding for improvements. This is a two year 
plan.

Further discussion about railway crossings within the Shire, ARTC involvement and 
wish to improve layout of railway crossings for all users, will be discussed at future 
meetings once further details come to hand.

ACTION: Review the railway crossings within the Shire in September 2019.

• Nagambie Railway Station
James lead a general discussion about the Nagambie Station, rail line and shelter all 
needed updating to improve accessibility. In relation to the shelter, suggested that 
the Nagambie Action Group and Senior Citizens may be able to provide assistance.

There is no facility to use the myki ticketing system. Ticketing system also requires 
improvement for all passengers.

However this is outside the scope of the ADAC.

• Collaboration between Shepparton and Strathbogie Access and Disability 
Advisory Committees
James Carter suggested it may be worth meeting with the Shepparton ADAC to have 
a general discussion about the difficulties they face and their approach to improving 
access.

ACTION: James to draft letter to Shepparton ADAC re possible collaboration
between our two ADAC committees. Letter to be tabled for review and 
approval by Strathbogie ADAC before it is despatched.
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a. Access to Public and Commercial Buildings
James spoke about front door access to public and commercial buildings. He noted 
that very few buildings provided this access and that back door access made people 
with a disability feel like second class citizens. James proposed that Council should 
adopt a policy that in the future renovated or new public and commercial buildings 
should have front door access. He also suggested a meeting with the Shire’s 
Chamber of Commerce.

ACTION: James to prepare and distribute to the ADAC committee a draft agenda for 
the meeting with Council’s representative to discuss Good Access = Good 
Business

RECOMMENDATION: James moved that a recommendation be put to Council that 
Council Policy should state that in future any renovated or 
new public or commercial buildings should have front door 
access.

This recommendation was seconded by Grace Kenworthy.

Meeting closed at 11.33am

Next Meeting: Strathbogie -  Strathbogie General Store, 3 May at 10-12noon

Actions Person Responsible

Look at potential disability parking to be included in plans for 
new Visitors Centre

Daniel -  carried over

Distribution of amended plans for Nagambie Toilet block Uwe Paffrath
Circulate approved plans of Violet Town Expansion Dan Maloney
Distribute amended strategic plans for Euroa Township Uwe Paffrath
Prepare and distribute to the ADAC committee a draft agenda 
for the meeting with Council’s representative to discuss Good 
Access = Good Business

James Carter

Distribute revised Euroa Visitor Centre plans Uwe Paffrath
Identify any procedures or requirements regarding placement of 
accessibility signs on public and commercial buildings

Georgina

Find and distribute plans drafted approximately 10 years ago of 
Euroa Township Strategy

Georgina

Draft a letter to Shepparton ADAC suggestion possible 
collaboration with Strathbogie ADAC and Strathbogie ADAC for 
discussion by committee.

James Carter

Review the railway crossings within the Shire in September 
2019.

Uwe Paffrath

Recommendation Proposed Seconded
Recommendation be put to 
Council that Council Policy 
should state that in future any 
renovated or new public or 
commercial buildings should 
have front door access

James Carter Grace Kenworthy
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Access and Disability Advisory Committee (ADAC)
Meeting Schedule 2019

DATE TIME LOCATION CHAIR GUEST

Friday, 1 Feb 11am-1pm
Nagambie
Mitchelton

Winery
James Carter

Friday, 15 March 10am-12pm Euroa 
Shire Offices Erica Bostock

Friday, 3 May 10am-12pm
Strathbogie 
Strathbogie 

General Store
Councillor

Friday, 14 June 10am-12pm Violet Town 
Venue TBC Lauren Dainton

Friday, 26 July 10am-12pm Avenel 
Venue TBC Grace Kenworthy

Friday, 6 September 10am-12pm Euroa 
Venue TBC Amanda Watkins

Friday, 18 October 10am-12pm Venue TBC James Carter

Friday, 29 November 10am-12pm Longwood 
Venue TBC Vicki Bell

Tuesday 3 December International Day o f People with Disability
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9.7.4 Strathbogie Shire Council Audit Committee
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019

Author / Department
Group Manager, Corporate and Community /  Corporate and Community Department

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest in relation to advice provided in this report
The author of this report and officers/contractors providing advice in relation to this 
report do not have a direct or indirect interest, as provided in accordance with the 
Local Government Act 1989.

Summary
Attached are draft unconfirmed Minutes of the Audit Committee meeting held on 
Friday 15 March 2019.

Amongst items considered by the Committee were:

• Internal Audit on Information Technology and Cyber Security
• Internal Audit on Governance
• Audit Strategy Budget and Council Plan timetable
• Banking Tender
• Risk Management update

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the draft Minutes of the Audit Committee meeting held on Friday 15 
March 2019 be received.

2. That Recommendations from the Audit Committee be endorsed.

95/19 CRS WILLIAMS/MASON : That the Recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED

Background
The Strathbogie Shire Council Audit Committee is a Committee appointed by Council 
and pursuant to Section 139 of the Local Government Act 1989.

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to assist Council in the effective 
conduct of its responsibilities for financial reporting, management of risk, good 
corporate governance, maintaining a reliable system of internal controls and 
facilitating the organisation’s ethical development.

Alternative Options
The author and other officers providing advice in relation to this report have 
considered potential alternative courses of action. No feasible alternatives have 
been identified.
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9.7.4 Strathbogie Shire Council Audit Committee
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019 (cont.)

Risk Management
The author of this report considers that there are no significant Risk Management 
factors relating to the report and recommendation.

Strategic Links -  policy implications and relevance to Council Plan
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Council Policies, 
key strategic documents and the Council Plan.

Best Value I National Competition Policy (NCP) I Competition and Consumer 
Act 2010 (CCA) implications
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Best Value, 
National Competition Policy and Competition and Consumer Act requirements.

Financial / Budgetary Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no capital or 
recurrent budget considerations.

Economic Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant 
economic implications for Council or the broader community.

Environmental / Amenity Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant 
environmental or amenity implications for Council or the broader community.

Community Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant 
community or social implications for Council or the broader community.

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006
The author of this report considers that the recommendation does not limit any 
human rights under the Victorian Charter of Fluman Rights and Responsibilities Act 
2006.

Legal / Statutory Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no legal or statutory 
implications which require the consideration of Council.

Consultation
The author of this report considers that the matter under consideration did not 
warrant a community consultation process.

Attachments
• Draft Minutes of the Strathbogie Shire Council Audit Committee meeting held on 

Friday 15 March.
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9.7.4 Strathbogie Shire Council Audit Committee
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019 (cont.)

f i

STRATHBOGIE SHIRE COUNCIL
Strathbogie

snire

Minutes of a meeting of the Strathbogie Shire Council Audit Committee held on Friday 
15 March 2019 in Meeting Room 2 at the Strathbogie Shire Council Offices,

commencing at 9.30 a.m.

Committee Members:

Officers:

Internal Auditors: 

External Auditors:

Ms Claire Taranto (Chair)- 
Mr Robert Gardner 
Mr Alister Purbrick 
Cr Graeme Williams

Mr Steve Crawcour 
Mr David Roff

Mr Chaminda Ranwala

Mr Brad Ead

Jonathan Kyvelidis

Community Representative 
Community Representative 
Community Representative 
Council Representative

Chief Executive Officer 
Group Manager, Corporate and 
Community

Manager Finance

AFS & Associates

Victorian Auditor-General's Office

1. Welcome

2. Acknowledgement of Traditional Land Owners

7 acknowledge the Traditional Owners o f the land on which we are meeting. I 
pay my respects to their Elders, past and present, and the more recent 
custodians of the land’

3. Apologies

Mr Phil Howard - Director, Innovation and
Performance / Deputy CEO 

M rJeffSaker - Group Manager Community
Assets

4. Disclosure of Interests

Nil.



Strathbogie Shire Council
Ordinary Council Meeting Minutes

Page 41 16/04/19

9.7.4 Strathbogie Shire Council Audit Committee
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019 (cont.)

5. Confirmation of Minutes

Confirmation of the Minutes of the Audit Committee meeting held on 14 December 
2018

08/19 ALISTER PURBRICK/GRAEME WILLIAMS : That the Minutes o f the Audit
Committee meeting held on 14 December 2018 be confirmed

CARRIED

6. Business

7. Items raised by Committee Members

8. Next Meeting
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9.7.4 Strathbogie Shire Council Audit Committee
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019 (cont.)

6. Business Report Page 
No.

6.1 Internal Audit Reports:
• Information Technology and Cyber security
• Governance
• Review of Past Issues
• Program Status update
• Audit Committee quarterly update for Councils
• Asset Reporting
• Contract Management
• VAGO Performance Audit

1

6.2 Audit Strategy 2018/19 2
6.3 2019/20 Budget and Council Plan Update 3
6.4 Banking Tender 3
6.5 Rate Arrears 5
6.6 Key Strategic Indicators

• Customer Statistics
• Human Resources data

6

6.7 Risk Management Update 6
6.8 Shared Services Update 7
6.9 Investigations / Chief Executive Officer Reports 7

7. Items Raised by Committee Members 8

8. Next Meeting - Friday 14 June 2019 8
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9.7.4 Strathbogie Shire Council Audit Committee
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019 (cont.)

6. BUSINESS

6.1 Internal Audit Reports

Completed
For the information of Audit Committee members, copies of the following reports 
were provided for review:

o Information Technology and Cyber security 
o Governance

Review of Past Issues

A detailed review of Past issues has been conducted in conjunction with the 
Internal Auditor and two documents were provided for the Committee to consider:

• 2019-02 Review of Past Issues which recommends that 2 items be
removed as completed

• A Summary of the balance of issues which has been investigated in detail 
and notes have been provided by officers and the Internal Auditor to 
facilitate a concerted attempt to have those items addressed , some of 
which are ongoing in nature.

Program Status Update and Audit Committee Quarterly update for Councils 

were provided for the information of the Committee.

Internal Audits in Progress 

Asset Data Recording
In addition to the Internal Audit program, a Review of Asset Management 
reporting processes has been undertaken to look at the linkages and processes 
between the Financial and Assets systems, matters which have been the subject 
of previous comment in audit reports. The Draft Report has been received and 
workshopped by relevant staff, and comments are in the process of being 
finalised so they can be provided to AFS to enable issuing of the Final Report.

Contract Management and Outsourced Services
Fieldwork has been completed and a Draft report issued for Management 
comment, which is in the process of being recorded

VAGO Performance Audit
As part of the Auditor General’s program of Performance Audits, Strathbogie was 
one of 4 Councils selected for an assessment of Fraud Management controls .

Field work is complete and a report is scheduled for release in May.
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9.7.4 Strathbogie Shire Council Audit Committee
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019 (cont.)

6.1 Internal Audit Reports (cont.)

RECOMMENDATION

That the Internal Audit Reports:

2018-05 Information Technology and Cyber Security 
2018-07 Governance

be noted.

That:
Review of Past Issues
Program Status Update and Audit Committee quarterly update for Councils 
Internal Audits in Progress 
VAGO Performance;

be noted.

09/19 GRAEME WILLIAMS/ALISTER PURBRICK : That the Recommendation 
be adopted.

CARRIED

6.2 Audit Strategy 2019/20

The proposed Audit Strategy for 2019/20 is currently being finalised and will be 
provided to the Committee for discussion and noting when it is received.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee note the Audit Strategy for 2019/20.

10/19 ROBERT GARDNER/AUSTER PURBRICK : That the Recommendation 
be adopted.

CARRIED
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9.7.4 Strathbogie Shire Council Audit Committee
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019 (cont.)

6.3 Budget and Council Plan 2019/20 Update

The Budget and Council Plan Review for 2019/20 are currently under preparation 
to meet the timetable provided to Committee members.

To date activities have included:

Council Plan Review
• Review of progress against existing actions
« Workshop of current document with Councillors
• Input from management team
® The document will be further considered by Council on 19 March 

Budget
« Midyear review adopted by Council at its February meeting
• Development of detailed Draft 10 Year Capital Works Program (new)
• Input of that draft into Long Term Financial Plan module (new)
• Review of Operating Budget
• Review of Fees and Charges
• Modelling of Rating scenarios following receipt of annual revaluation data

RECOMMENDATION

That Budget and Council Plan progress be noted.

11/19 GRAEME WILLIAMS/ALIS TER PURBRICK : That the Recommendation 
be adopted.

CARRIED

6.4 Banking Tender

Following expiry of its previous contract for the provision of Banking and Bill 
Payment Services, Council invited quotations from suitably qualified and 
experienced providers for banking and bill payment processing services for the 
period commencing 1st July 2019 for a period of three (3) years.

It was the preference of Council to award the Contract to a single service 
provider, who would complete all banking requirements associated with day to 
day Council banking functions, and all functions associated with the receipting of 
transactions for rate payments, and other payments made to and by Council. The 
Council Corporate Card Programme was excluded from this offer.

An Evaluation Panel was established comprising:

• Group Manager Corporate and Community
• Manager Finance
• Contracts and Procurement Officer
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9.7.4 Strathbogie Shire Council Audit Committee
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019 (cont.)

6.4 Banking Tender (cont.)

External assistance was engaged to assist in both preparation of the specification 
and evaluation of responses which were to be evaluated on the following 
attributes:

Attribute Weighting %
Price
Based on calculations across high volume channels. 40%

Product Sophistication
Ability to meet Council processing requirements, security 
levels and data import specifications

20%

Relationship Management Support
Support team applied including location, use of help-desks. 10%

Commitment to the Community
Information provided on sponsorships, grants, participation 
and other support including Branch representation.

10%

Ability to Implement
Project management approach over an 8-week period. This 
measure is to include proposed changeover costs should 
implementation of a new Contractor be required.

5%

Degree of innovation
New products and strategies to assist Council and ratepayers 
with a focus on migration from paper to electronic channels.

15%

The broad timetable to be followed was:

Tender advertised 
Tender closes
Preparation for submission to Council 
Submission to Audit Committee
Council approval and Tenderers advised 
New contract signed 
Implementation begins (if required) 
Implementation completed 
Go “live” date

Tuesday 20 November 2018
2.00 p.m. Monday 31 December 2018
By 31 January 2019
By mid-March 2019
By mid-April 2019
By end April 2019
1 May 2019
30 June 2019
1 July 2019

The above timetables have been adhered to and a detailed Evaluation report 
prepared.

A verbal update was provided to the Committee.
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9.7.4 Strathbogie Shire Council Audit Committee
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019 (cont.)

6.4 Banking Tender (cont.)

RECOMMENDATION

That the update be noted.

12/19 ROBERT GARDNER/ALISTER PURBRICK . That the Recommendation
be adopted.

CARRIED

6.5 Rating Arrears

Previous Audit Committee meetings have discussed the issue of rate arrears and 
how that is managed. Essentially rate notices are issued which is then followed 
up with a Reminder Notice, and should the ratepayer either not pay or make an 
arrangement the matter is referred to Council’s debt collection agency for 
recovery, with costs of such action being recoverable from the ratepayer. The 
situation at 30 June of the previous 3 financial years is as follows:

Year Levy as per Annual 
Accounts

Outstanding balance end of 
financial year

% Outstanding

2015/16 17,234,171 1,114,050 6.5
2016/17 18,066,579 1,141,194 6.3
2017/18 18,525,521 1,173,549 6.3

Of the amount outstanding at 30 June 2018, $101,318 related to Fire Services 
Levy which is passed on to State Government.

Since that date, there has been an additional rate levy, payments and one 
instalment is not due yet. At the current date, rates worth $366,000 are subject to 
regular payment arrangements and $261,000 are subject to legal action.

RECOMMENDATION

That the information be noted.

13/19 ALISTER PURBRICK/GRAEME WILLIAMS That the Recommendation
be adopted.

CARRIED
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9.7.4 Strathbogie Shire Council Audit Committee
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019 (cont.)

6.6 Key Strategic Indicators

Provided to Audit Committee members for information were:

• Customer Service Statistics
• Human Resources Reports

RECOMMENDATION

That these items be noted.

14/19 ROBERT GARDNER/ALISTER PURBRICK . That the Recommendation
be adopted.

CARRIED

6.7 Risk Management Update

Risk appetite represents how much risk Council is willing to take on to achieve 
our strategies and goals. The risk appetite statement (RAS) is a shared 
understanding of what is acceptable and unacceptable risk taking at Council. This 
statement helps to avoid personal perceptions and biases that can adversely 
influence risk based decisions.

Council’s draft risk appetite and tolerance statements were scheduled for further 
development when the Risk Management Framework went to the Audit 
Committee for approval at its previous meeting and now that now the RAS 
statement is finalised in regards to what Council’s tolerances would be, it now 
needs to be presented to the Audit Committee for approval.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee approve the Risk Appetite Statement.

15/19 GRAEME WILLIAMS/ALISTER PURBRICKB That the
Recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED
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9.7.4 Strathbogie Shire Council Audit Committee
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019 (cont.)

6.8 Shared Services Update

An update was provided on the Shared Services project.

RECOMMENDATION

That the verbal report be noted.

16/19 GRAEME WILLIAMS/ALISTER PURBRICK . That the Recommendation
be adopted.

CARRIED

11.10 a.m.
Mr Robert Gardner left the meeting due to another commitment.

6.9 Investigations / Chief Executive Officer Reports

A verbal briefing on any investigations currently being undertaken by Council was 
provided.

RECOMMENDATION

That the verbal report be noted.

17/19 ALISTER PURBRICK/GRAEME WILLIAMS That the Recommendation
be adopted.

CARRIED

7. ITEMS RAISED BY COMMITTEE MEMBERS

8. NEXT MEETING

Friday 14 June 2019

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS, THE MEETING CLOSED A T 11.45 A.M.
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9.7.5 Sustainable Development Reference Group
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Thursday 14 March 2019

Author & Department
Team Leader Climate Change and Environment, Community Assets Directorate

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest in relation to advice provided in this 
report
The author of this report and officers/contractors providing advice in relation to 
this report do not have a direct or indirect interest, as provided in accordance with 
the Local Government Act 1989.

Summary
Included are recommendations and report from the Sustainable Development 
Reference Group held on 14 March 2019.

RECOMMENDATION

1. That Council accept the Sustainable Development Reference Group 
draft minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 14 March 2019, as 
presented.

2. That Council notes Item 7 in the Minutes of the Sustainable 
Development Reference Group meeting of Thursday 14 March 2019, 
and investigates these points further.

3. That Council send a letter congratulating the Victorian Civil and 
Administrative Tribunal and Department of Environment, Land, Water 
and Planning, on supporting evidence-based decisions on retaining 
biodiversity in over-cleared landscapes to the Regional Manager, 
Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning (c.c. 
Secretary).

96/19 CRS STOTHERS/BOWER : That the Recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED

Background
1. The SDRG and its serving Councillors acknowledge the efforts that 

Strathbogie Shire Council has made in previous years to acknowledge climate 
change with the Municipal Association of Victoria, in the 2013 and 2017 
Council Plans, and in commissioning significant studies such as the 2011 
Strengthening Strathbogie in a Changing Climate: Risk Assessment and 
Adaptation Strategy.

2. The SDRG felt that although climate change is a term commonly used to 
access funding, in the media, and in general conversation, that many in 
Council and the community do not have all the facts in an accessible, easy to 
read format. Climate Science is not often discussed as a profession, nor are 
the indicators climate scientists use to inform us that climate change is an 
imperative, readily available.
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9.7.5 Sustainable Development Reference Group
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Thursday 14 March 2019 (cont.)

3. The SDRG feels that the Climate Change Position Statement for Strathbogie 
Shire Council, which is common in many organisations, is an information tool, 
and can act as a point of reference for Strathbogie Shire Council when 
making decisions and communicating about climate change.

4. Specific to rural areas the combined financial, social and environmental 
burden of climate change presents significant risks to Council and the 
community as identified back in the 2011 Risk Assessment and Adaptation 
Strategy. It identified a number of extreme risks with ‘catastrophic’ 
consequences due to climate change which included:

a. Reduced availability of water for emergency services
b. Isolation of communities due to bushfires
c. Increased anxiety and stress leading to loss of life
d. Lack of compliance with bushfire/flooding protection conditions

5. The SDRG recognises rural councils like Strathbogie Shire Council have 
limited resources, but are already experiencing profound climate changes in 
their regions like the above risks. Since joining the Climate Council’s City 
Power Partnership and Victorian Government’s Take2 pledge programs in 
2017 Council is viewed by many of its contemporaries as a leader in this 
space which is taking action on these issues, and enhancing local 
knowledge.

6. The SDRG recognise the significant support and opportunities that joint 
action brings to our programs and community. In December 2016 Darebin 
City Council passed a resolution “Council recognises that we are in a state o f  
climate emergency that requires urgent action by all levels o f government, 
including by local councils. This follows some 425 Councils across the world 
covering nearly 50million citizens, declaring a climate emergency. A 
summary of their latest news can be found here 
https://climateemerqencvdeclaration.org/cateqorv/news/

The Following motion was then passed at the MAV State Council with a 77% 
majority:

Motion 56. Climate Change 
Submitting Council: Darebin City Council 
Motion:
That the MAV recognise that:
(a) we are in a state of climate emergency that requires urgent action by all 
levels of government, including local councils
(b) human induced climate change stands in the first rank of threats to 
humans, civilisation and other species
(c) it is still possible to restore a safe climate and prevent most of the 
anticipated long-term climate impacts -  but only if societies across the world 
adopt an emergency mode of action that can enable the restructuring of the 
physical economy at the necessary scale and speed;
(d) the MAV has a particular role in assisting local governments in this regard.

7. By declaring a Climate Emergency Strathbogie Shire Council sends a strong 
signal to our community and our contemporaries that we recognise the depth 
of the climate issue, and are prepared to mitigate and adapt with new 
partners, knowledge, eco business and approaches.

https://climateemerqencvdeclaration.org/cateqorv/news/
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9.7.5 Sustainable Development Reference Group
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Thursday 14 March 2019 (cont.)

Alternative options
As per the Sustainable Development Reference Group Charter, all options are 
considered and recommended by the Sustainable Development Reference Group 
to Council.

Risk Management
The author of this report considers that there are no significant Risk Management 
factors relating to the report and recommendations.

Strategic links - policy implications and relevance to Council Plan
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Council 
Policies, key strategic documents, including the draft Sustainable Strathbogie 
2030 Strategy.

Best Value / National Competition Policy (NCP) / Competition and Consumer 
Act 2010 (CCA) implications
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Best Value, 
National Competition Policy and competition and consumer Act requirements 
have been considered and applied in development of the report and 
recommendations.

Financial/Budgetary implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendations have no capital or 
recurrent budget considerations.

Economic implications
The Sustainable Development Reference Group considers that the
recommendations lead to positive economic outcomes for Council and the 
broader community.

Environmental/Amenity implications
The Sustainable Development Reference Group considers that the
recommendations lead to positive environmental and amenity outcomes for 
Council and the broader community.

Community implications
The Sustainable Development Reference Group considers that the
recommendations lead to more equitable engagement outcomes for Council and 
the broader community.

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006
The author considers that the recommendations do not limit any human rights 
under the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006.

Legal/Statutory implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendations have no legal or 
statutory implications which require the consideration of Council.
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9.7.5 Sustainable Development Reference Group
- Draft Minutes of the Meeting held on Thursday 14 March 2019 (cont.)

Consultation
The Sustainable Development Reference Group members are drawn from 
members of the Strathbogie Shire community for the purposes of more 
transparent consultation with residents. No broader consultation for these 
recommendations was required.

Attachments
* Draft Sustainable Development Reference Group Minutes -  March 2019.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
REFERENCE GROUP
MEETING MINUTES

Thursday 14 March 2019 
Conference Room, Council Offices 
5.30pm -  6.30pm

Committee

Strathbogie
s h i r e

Cr Kate Stothers Councillor
r Charfie Brydon___________r Friends qfthc_Scvcns Crcok_
^Dpyid Jamieson__________ £ St/^hbo2io_P^DmActionmGroupm

Cr Deb Bower Councillor
Peter RcWnson 
Carole Hammond^ _  ' Strathbaqjo Slurq_

1 Vic Farmers Federation _l
I " rZ .iir .  1

^Anna Tojand_____________^Aj}rUMltura!JSGctor_
Carolena Heiderman , Euroa Arboretum

Shirley_Saywe[[ , Euroa Environment Group
Jeff Saker________, Manager Assets _L

L

1. WELCOME MEMBERS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

We acknowledge tlie Traditional Owners of the land on which we are meeting. We pay our respects to their 
Elders, past and present and emerging.

2. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATIONS

Conflicts of interest in relation to any of the items on the meeting agenda are to be declared by all 
attendees. Unaffected committee members are to determine and justify the extent the affected member 
should or should not participate in the discussion and voting on the agenda item, and minute this for the 
record.
No conflicts were recorded.

3. APOLOGIES
P Scott, P Robinson, J Saker, A Toland

4. MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS (February) MINUTES

ACTION: Carole to also scope survey questions on Survey Monkey. Place article Into School
Newsletters and create Poster.

ACTION: Cr Deb Bower to take to Tourism Arts and Culture Group

ACTION: Presentation of the Sustainable Strathbogie 2030 Strategy, Survey and Art Competition to
local schools

ACTION: Council to send letter congratulating VCAT & DELWP, and supporting evidence based decisions
on retaining biodiversity in over cleared landscapes to Regional Manager DELWP (cc Secretary)

ACTION: Carole to prepare a Report for the Mayor to present on behalf of Strathbogie Shire Council to
the MAV State Council outlining the issues and opportunities of the Roadside Weed and Pest 
Program.

ACTION: David Jamieson to discuss the auspice of an urban landcare group with the Granite Creeks
Landcare Network.

ACTION: Upcoming Agenda Item -  "Roadside Tree Removal and Management".

ACTION: Kate to invite Carole to the next CFA Captains Meeting.

ACTION: Carole to finalise Council TFN Report (2na Gen) with clear recommendations.

Owing to the short meeting time, March Matters Arising was held to the April 2019 Meeting.____________
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5. ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 

RECOMMENDATION:
That the February minutes of the Sustainable Development Reference Group be accepted.

M O VED -Shirley S.
SECO ND ED -D avid  J.

6. SEVEN CREEKS WATERWAY PRESENTATION

Jim Castles o f the Goulburn Broken CMA presented on the work of the Strathbogie Streams program, 
targets, and achievements for the four year program.

■ For Hughes Macquarie perch and Seven Creeks -  Macquarie Perch and Trout Cod
* Signage -  Seven Creeks and Hughes about fishing and closed areas
* Installation of altenative watering points 4 yr target 44.4% complete
■ Completion o f 6.09 fencing Hughes
* Grazing regime changes over 228HA of riparian land
■ 6 riparian agreements on Hughes
■ Seven Cks outputs down slightly
■ 1 alternative watering point
■ 4.2ha woody weed control
■ 19.3 ha Grazing Regime Change
■ 4 Rock Groynes
■ Giving money to Landcare and CMNs
■ Southern Pygmy perch 2 to 123 over 5 years
■ Red fin went crazy in Seven Creeks 294 and 46 Carp
■ Evidence o f illegal fishing (skeletal remains)
* Fish in poor condition because o f lack o f food
* Red fin and carp eradication 2017/18 -  so not eating the babies of MP and TC
■ Fish deaths in Seven Creeks recently -  lack of oxygen
■ Now having weekly updates from CMA and ARI in Hughes, Seven, King Parrot
* Fish will get taken to Snobs creek if flows get too low as a risk management strategy.

ACTION: David J. to  talk to Sue Kosch about funding for woody weeds in riparian areas (Strathbogie).
ACTION: Carole to speak to Carolcna to get location for Jim on Manna Gums near Dykes Road roadside.

7. STRATHBOGIE SHIRE COUNCIL CLIMATE CHANGE POSITION STATEMENT

For discussion. Carole presented the draft Climate Change Position Statement, confirming that it is built on 
facts and evidence based climate science.
Cr Stothers talked to another initiative, Darebin City Council's call to declare a Climate Emergency 
https://climateemergencydeclaration.org/ with the list of Councils who have declared 
http://www.caceonline.org/councils that have declared.html

RECOMMENDATIONS:
1. That SDRG recommend Council build on what it has included in past resolutions and 

acknowledge previous work in this area.

2. That SDRG propose Council join other local government councils and declare a climate 
emergency.

3. That SDRG recommend Council endorse the Climate Change Position Statement.

M O VED -Shirley S.
SEC O N D ED -C r Deb B.

4^

https://climateemergencydeclaration.org/
http://www.caceonline.org/councils
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8. SUSTAINABLE STRATHBOGIE 2030 STRATEGY: CONSULTATION

Discussion on timelines and activities. It was agreed that an art and photography competition was too 
extensive fo r the resources that council has, and that a series of workshops across the Shire was more 
effective and doable. Suggestion for a 'walk and talk' style workshop to engage people in offering feedback. 
A couple o f venues were mentioned as opportunities.

ACTION: Carole to continue working on consultation and email group with info updates.

9. OTHER BUSINESS

10, REVIEW OF ACTIONS

11.AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING

SDRG -  Terms of Reference, Priorities and Sub-committees
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9.7.6 2017 -  2021 Strathbogie Shire Council Plan (2019 Review) (incorporating the 
2019/20 to 2023/24 Strategic Resource Plan)
- Amended Actions and Strategic Indicators for Year Ending 30 June 2020

Author / Department
Group Manager, Corporate and Community / Corporate and Community 
Directorate

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest in relation to advice provided in this 
report
The author of this report and officers/contractors providing advice in relation to 
this report do not have a direct or indirect interest, as provided in accordance with 
the Local Government Act 1989.

Summary
In accordance with the requirements of Section 125 of the Local Government Act 
1989, Council has amended the Actions and Strategic Indicators to its 2017 -  
2021 Council Plan, which incorporates the 2019/20 to 2023/24 Strategic 
Resource Plan. Copies of the draft amendments to the Council Plan have been 
circulated to Councillors and a copy will be tabled for information and 
identification purposes, and appended to the Minutes of the meeting. The 
Strategic Resource Plan will also be tabled for information and identification 
purposes, and appended to the Minutes of the meeting. Council is required, 
under Section 125 (2) (c), to exhibit the changes for comment to the public for at 
least 28 days, under Section 223 of the Act, when the Strategic Indicators which 
monitor achievement of the objectives have changed.

A resolution of Council is now required to give public notice that the amended 
Council Plan will be available for inspection, in accordance with Section 125 (9) of 
the Act, from 19 April 2019. Submissions will close at 5.00 pm on Tuesday 21 
May 2019. A Special Council meeting will be held on Tuesday 11 June 2019 to 
receive / hear submissions to the amended Council Plan.

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the adjustment to the strategic indicators and actions in the
draft amended Council Plan be proposed.

2. That the Chief Executive Officer be authorised to give public notice
of the proposed adjustments in accordance with Sections 125 and 
223 of the Local Government Act 1989. Submissions will close at 
5.00 p.m. on Tuesday 21 May 2019.

3. That Council considers any:

(a) submission on the proposed adjustments made in 
accordance with Sections 125(9) and 223 of the Local 
Government Act 1989, and
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9.7.6 2017 -  2021 Strathbogie Shire Council Plan (2019 Review) (incorporating the 
2019/20 to 2023/24 Strategic Resource Plan)
- Amended Actions and Strategic Indicators for Year Ending 30 June 2020 (cont.)

RECOMMENDATION (cont.)

(b) recommendations or Notices of Motion to make the 
adjustments proposed

at a Special Meeting of Council to be held on Tuesday 11 June 2019, 
commencing at 5.00 p.m. at the Euroa Community Conference 
Centre.

4. That Council adopt the 2017-2021 Strathbogie Shire Council Plan 
(2019 Review) at a Special Meeting of Council to be held on Tuesday 
25 June 2019, commencing at 5.00 p.m. at the Euroa Community 
Conference Centre.

97/19 CRS THOMSON/WILLIAMS : That the Recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED

Background
Council is required at least once in each financial year under the Local 
Government Act 1989 Section 125 (7) to consider whether the current Council 
Plan requires any adjustment in respect of the remaining period of the Council 
Plan. As such, Council has reviewed the 2017 -  2021 Council Plan and adjusted 
the Actions and Strategic Indicators for year ending 30 June 2020.

The Council Plan is a strategic document of Council that sets its Vision / Mission / 
Goals and Objectives for the (4) four year term of the Council. The Actions that 
sit under each Goal ensure the organisation delivers what the Council has set as 
its long term strategic vision for its community.

Alternative Options
The author and other officers providing advice in relation to this report have 
considered potential alternatives. No feasible alternatives have been identified 
as it is a requirement of the Local Government Act 1989

Risk Management
The author of this report considers that there are no significant Risk Management 
factors relating to the report and recommendation.

Strategic Links -  policy implications and relevance to Council Plan
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Council 
Policies, key strategic documents and the current Council Plan.
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9.7.6 2017 -  2021 Strathbogie Shire Council Plan (2019 Review) (incorporating the 
2019/20 to 2023/24 Strategic Resource Plan)
- Amended Actions and Strategic Indicators for Year Ending 30 June 2020 (cont.)

Best Value / National Competition Policy (NCP) / Competition and Consumer 
Act 2010 (CCA) implications
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Best Value, 
National Competition Policy and Competition and Consumer Act requirements.

Financial / Budgetary Implications
The author has advises that the actions identified in the 2017 -  2021 Council Plan 
(2019 Review) are funded through the 2019/20 Draft Budget.

Economic Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant 
economic implications for Council or the broader community.

Environmental / Amenity Implications
The author has identified environmental benefits through the initiatives detailed in 
the 2017 -  2021 Council Plan (2019 Review).

Community Implications
The author of this report has identified significant community and / or social 
benefits for the community as detailed in the 2017 -  2021 Council Plan (2019 
Review).

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006
The author of this report considers that the recommendation does not limit any 
human rights under the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities 
Act 2006.

Legal I Statutory Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no legal or 
statutory implications which require the consideration of Council.

Consultation
The community will have an opportunity under Section 223 of the Local 
Government Act 1989 to make comments / submissions on the 2017 -  2021 
Council Plan (2019 Review).

Attachments
Nil.

Tabled Document/s
• Draft 2019 Review of 2017-2021 Council Plan
• Draft Strategic Resource Plan 2019/20 - 2023/24
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9.7.7 Draft 2019/20 Strathbogie Shire Council Budget
- Preparation of Budget for Exhibition and Comment

Author & Department
Group Manager, Corporate and Community / Corporate and Community 
Directorate

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest in relation to advice provided in this 
report
Officers providing advice in relation to this report do not have a direct or indirect 
interest, as provided in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989.

Summary
In accordance with the requirements of Section 127 of the Local Government Act 
1989 (the Act), Council has prepared a budget for the financial year ending 30 
June 2020.

Copies of the draft Budget have been circulated to Councillors for their 
information. A copy of the draft Budget will be tabled at the meeting for 
identification purposes, and will be appended to the Minutes of the meeting.

A resolution of Council is now required to give public notice that the budget will be 
available for inspection, in accordance with Section 129 of the Act.

Submissions on the proposed budget will be invited in accordance with Section 
223 of the Act. Submissions will close at 5.00 pm on Tuesday 21 May 2019. A 
Special Council meeting will be held on Tuesday 11 June 2019 to receive / hear 
submissions to the draft Budget.

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the draft Budget annexed to this resolution and initialled by the 
Mayor for identification be the budget prepared by Council for the 
purposes of Section 127 of the Local Government Act 1989.

2. That the Chief Executive Officer be authorised to give public notice 
of the preparation of such budget, in accordance with Sections 129 
and 223 of the Local Government Act 1989. Submissions will close 
at 5.00 p.m. on Tuesday 21 May 2019.

3. That Council receive / hear any submission on any proposal (or 
proposals) contained in such budget, made in accordance with 
Sections 129 and 223 of the Local Government Act 1989, at a Special
Council meeting to  be held on Tuesday 11 June 2019, commencing 
at 5.00 p.m. at the Euroa Community Conference Centre.
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9.7.7 Draft 2019/20 Strathbogie Shire Council Budget
- Preparation of Budget for Exhibition and Comment (cont.)

RECOMMENDATION (cont.)

4. That Council authorise the Chief Executive Officer to undertake 
minor editorial changes, if required.

5. That the 2019/20 Strathbogie Shire Council Budget be adopted at a 
Special Meeting of Council to be held on Tuesday 25 June 2019, 
commencing at 5.00 p.m. at the Euroa Community Conference 
Centre.

98/19 CRS THOMSON/WILLIAMS : That the Recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED

Background
In accordance with the requirements of Section 127 of the Local Government Act 
1989 (the Act), Council has prepared a budget for the financial year ending 30 
June 2020.

In preparing the 2019/20 Draft Budget, the Council has considered many factors 
in an effort to continue to balance community expectations and benefits with 
financial responsibilities. The Council is pleased to place on public display a draft 
budget that works hard to maintain existing service levels and deliver strong 
investment in capital works across the municipality. The Council will continue to 
provide significant funding for renewal works on our ageing and outdated 
infrastructure, based on the requirements of the Road Management Plan and 
taking into account financial constraints.

The Council is proposing a 2.25% per cent increase in the average rate for 
2019/20. This increase is below the State Government cap of 2.5% under the 
'Fair Go Rates’ legislation and is the second year that Council has delivered an 
increase less than the cap. This level allows for maintenance of existing service 
levels, fund a number of significant new initiatives and continue to allocate 
sufficient funds for the continuing strategic renewal of Council's infrastructure.

Waste charges will increase by 4.1 % with Council incurring additional costs due 
to challenges in relation to disposal of recycling materials.
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9.7.7 Draft 2019/20 Strathbogie Shire Council Budget
- Preparation of Budget for Exhibition and Comment (cont.)

The 2019/20 Draft Budget provides for a $8.295 million capital works program 
with the following highlights:

ACTIVITY EXPENDITURE (m)
Roads - including resealing, re sheeting and 
rehabilitation

3.897

Bridges .450

Pedestrian Bridges .250

Aquatic Facilities .382

Drainage .516

Footpaths .247

Plant and Machinery .580

Buildings .532

Information Technology .255

Parks and Open Spaces 1.186

TOTAL 8.295

Funding of $1 million is also provided to commence rehabilitation of the Violet 
Town Landfill.

In addition to the four year period covered by this Budget the Long Term Financial 
Plan has been extended to cover a ten year period which allows for a total 
expenditure over that period of $88.1 m including:

Renewal and upgrade of aquatic facilities 9.05 m

Rehabilitation of the Violet Town Land fill 4.00 m*

Roads 46.67 m

Buildings, Recreation, Open Spaces 8.55 m

Road Bridges and Culverts 4.70 m

Pedestrian Bridges .60 m

Footpaths 2.40 m

Drainage 3.25 m

Plant and equipment renewal 5.46 m

Information Technology 3.43 m

* Treated as a progressive reduction in the landfill provision and cash, similar effect to 
capital spend, so not shown in Capital Works Statement.
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9.7.7 Draft 2019/20 Strathbogie Shire Council Budget
- Preparation of Budget for Exhibition and Comment (cont.)

The 2019/20 Budget provides for expenditure of $27.79 million on services 
including:

ACTIVITY EXPENDITURE (m)
Libraries .267

Maternal and Child Health .212

Emergency Management .141

Waste Management 2.574

Swimming Pools and Beaches .363

Arts, Culture, Economy, Events .632

Planning .883

Parks and Reserves Maintenance 1.769

Roads and Bridges Maintenance 5.170

Saleyards .216

Youth Services .300

Sustainability .338

Animal Management .260

Alternative Options
Not applicable.

Risk Management
The author of this report considers that there are no significant Risk Management 
factors relating to the report and recommendation.

Strategic Links -  policy implications and relevance to Council Plan
The report is consistent with Council Policies, key strategic documents and the 
Council Plan.

Best Value / National Competition Policy (NCP) /  Competition and Consumer 
Act 2010 (CCA) implications
The report is consistent with Best Value, National Competition Policy and 
Competition and Consumer Act 2010 requirements.

Financial I Budgetary Implications
The budget is fiscally responsible and is prepared in accordance with the 
objectives of the Council Plan, Strategic Resource Plan and Long Term Financial 
Plan.

Economic Implications
The budget will provide long term economic benefit through increased investment 
in the renewal of community infrastructure assets.
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9.7.7 Draft 2019/20 Strathbogie Shire Council Budget
- Preparation of Budget for Exhibition and Comment (cont.)

Environmental / Amenity Implications
The budget has a number of initiatives which will provide positive environmental 
outcomes

Community Implications
The 2019/20 draft budget has been prepared using the current Council Plan and 
associated priorities and the long term strategic financial plan as the basis for 
Council decision making during the budget setting process.

The Council will, as of Wednesday 24 April 2019, place the statutory public 
notices in local newspapers advising that documents are now available for 
inspection and that written submission are being sought in accordance with 
Section 223 of the Local Government Act 1989.

Submissions will close at 5.00 p.m. on Tuesday 21 May 2019.

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006
The recommendations do not limit any human rights under the Victorian Charter 
of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006.

Legal I Statutory Implications
The recommendations have no further legal or statutory implications which 
require the consideration of Council.

Consultation
The budget will be advertised in the community and opportunity provided for 
submissions in accordance with Section 223 of the Local Government Act 1989

Attachments
Nil

Tabled Document/s
• Draft Model Budget 2019/20
• Draft Fees and Charges 2019/20
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9.7.8 Climate Change by Cities Power Partnership - Call for Federal Action

Author and Department
Group Manager Community Assets / Community Assets Directorate

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest in relation to advice provided in this 
report
The author of this report and officers/contractors providing advice in relation to 
this report do not have a direct or indirect interest, as provided in accordance with 
the Local Government Act 1989.

Summary
Council has received a request from the Climate Council to include the 
Strathbogie Shire Council signature on a joint statement by our partner in a 
proactive program that we are signatory to -  “The Cities Power Partnership”.

In light of the upcoming Federal election, the Cities Power Partnership would like 
to harness the voices of its 100 member Councils to jointly call upon the Federal 
Government to make tackling climate change a top priority.

This joint statement will be issued to national media in the lead up to or directly 
following the election.

From the youth climate strikes to a joint statement from climate and energy 
experts stressing that without further action Australia will not meet its 2030 
pollution reduction target, the momentum behind this message is building and our 
collective voice is very powerful to enforce it.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council endorse the inclusion of Strathbogie Shire Council as a 
signatory to the Climate Council’s joint statement, as indicated below, in 
relation to our Cities Power Partnership.

99/19 CRS STOTHERS/THOMSON : That the Recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED

Background
Council has received a request from the Climate Council to include the 
Strathbogie Shire Council signature on a joint statement by our partner in a 
proactive program that we are signatory to -  “The Cities Power Partnership”.

The joint statement reads as follows:

“As members o f the Cities Power Partnership local government climate alliance, 
we demand national action and call upon the Federal Government to jo in us in 
making tackling climate change a top priority.
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At the local level we’re working with our communities and with each other to 
develop a strong climate response, and to support Australia's shift to clean 
energy.

All tiers o f government have a role to play in driving down Australia’s greenhouse 
gas pollution, and we need swift action at the Federal level to address our 
escalating national emissions.

We demand three major actions from our Federal leaders:

• Strong national climate policy aligned to the science and a national 
commitment to rapidly transitioning to 100% clean energy

• Support the rapid phase out o f fossil fuel subsidies which contribute to 
climate change

• Provide long-term finance to support implementation o f clean energy and 
sustainable transport, such as rooftop solar, battery storage, electric 
vehicle charging stations, public and active transport infrastructure in 
council and community areas. ”

Alternative Options
The author and other officers providing advice in relation to this report have 
considered potential alternative courses of action. No feasible alternatives have 
been identified.

Risk Management
The author of this report considers that there are no significant Risk Management 
factors relating to the report and recommendation.

Strategic Links -  policy implications and relevance to Council Plan
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Council 
Policies, key strategic documents and the Council Plan.

Best Value I National Competition Policy (NCP) I Competition and Consumer 
Act 2010 (CCA) implications
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Best Value, 
National Competition Policy and Competition and Consumer Act requirements.

Financial / Budgetary Implications
The author of this report considers there are no current or future budgetary 
implications.

Economic Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant 
economic implications for Council or the broader community.

Environmental / Amenity Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation is an advocacy 
action, and has no detrimental environmental or amenity implications for Council 
or the broader community, but aims to lead to positive environmental outcomes.
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9-7.8 Climate Change by Cities Power Partnership - Call for Federal Action (cont.)

Community Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation is an advocacy 
action, and has no detrimental community or social implications for Council or the 
broader community but aims to lead to positive community outcomes.

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006
The author of this report considers that the recommendation does not limit any 
human rights under the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities 
Act 2006.

Legal / Statutory Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no legal or 
statutory implications which require the consideration of Council, other than those 
identified.

Consultation
The author of this report considers that the matter under consideration did not 
warrant a community consultation process.

Attachments
Nil.



Strathbogie Shire Council
Ordinary Council Meeting Minutes

Page 68 16/04/19

9.7.9 Strathbogie Community Pools Strategy 2019-2029 
- For Consideration and Adoption

Author and Department
Group Manager Community Assets / Community Assets Directorate

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest in relation to advice provided in this 
report
The author of this report and officers/contractors providing advice in relation to 
this report do not have a direct or indirect interest, as provided in accordance with 
the Local Government Act 1989.

Summary
Strathbogie Shire and Consultants, Otium Planning Group have been working 
since July 2017 to develop a strategy to guide Council’s planning for aquatic 
recreation facilities.

The consultants have been guided by Council’s Pools Working Group, acting as a 
Steering Committee, for Council’s consideration.

Following community consultation, the draft Community Pools Strategy has been 
updated and is presented to Council for consideration.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

1. Note the management model review for the 2018/2019 pool season;

2. Adopt the revised format of the draft Strathbogie Community Pools 
Strategy 2019-2029 document;

3. Endorse the formalisation of the Pools Working Group as an 
Advisory Group to Council;

4. Endorse the recruitment of an Aquatics and Recreation Manager to 
oversee the future management of Strathbogie’s pools and other 
recreation facilities prior to the commencement of the 2019/2020 pool 
season;

5. Endorse and fund the provision of a Lifeguard training course at no 
cost to Shire residents and that participants that successfully 
complete the training are then considered for seasonal employment 
in Strathbogie’s pools;

6. Request Officers to investigate and report back on the feasibility of 
engaging a direct management service delivery model utilising a 
directly engaged labour source including lifeguards (senior and 
junior) and a hybrid model that utilises lifeguards (senior and junior) 
from an external service provider and report back to Council in June 
2019 allowing time to commence recruitment and other advertising in 
August 2019 for the 2019/2020 pool season or to allow time to

______ conduct a tender process for the external management of the pools;
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9.7.9 Strathbogie Community Pools Strategy 2019-2029 
- For Consideration and Adoption (cont.)

RECOMMENDATION (cont.)

7. Advertise an Expression of Interest (EOI) for the management of the 
kiosks at the Avenel, Euroa, Nagambie and Violet Town pools by 
local community groups for the 2019/2020 pool season and report 
back to Council in August 2019 with the results of this EOI process;

8. In consultation with the Pools Working Group and the community, 
develop a Marketing and Events Plan for the Community Pools by 30 
June 2019 for implementation prior to the 2019/2020 season;

9. Endorse the establishment of a fees and charges model including 
“Point of Sale” options for implementation prior to the 2019/2020 
season and for consideration with the adoption of the 2019/2020 
budget and review the model prior to the 2020/2021 season;

10. Utilising additional revenue raised from Fees and Charges, develop a 
“Pool Reserve” for the ongoing management, maintenance and 
implementation of actions associated with the draft Community Pool 
Strategy;

11. Allocate funding over a 10 year period with Year One (2019/2020) to 
include an allocation for upgrade works, further detailed design and 
costings in preparation for future grant applications with the balance 
of the current allocation to be placed in the Reserve fund for pool 
upgrades;

12. Advocate and apply for external funding for identified and approved 
projects;

13. Retain the ability to extend opening hours on severe heat days and 
review the current opening hours to consider factors that impact on 
community use;

14. Consider extending the designated pool season (1 December to 
March long weekend) at either end of the pool season in the event 
that a consistent pattern of days above 30 degrees are forecast;

15. Continues to investigate the feasibility of solar heating the pools and 
that a report be presented at a future meeting for consideration;

16. Support the Friends of Avenel Pool to trial “winter blanketing” of the 
Avenel Pool over the 2019 winter period;
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9.7.9 Strathbogie Community Pools Strategy 2019-2029 
- For Consideration and Adoption (cont.)

RECOMMENDATION (cont.)

17. In consultation with the Pools Working Group, Friends of the Pools 
and the community, develop Management Plans for each individual 
pool/aquatic facilities and refer these to future budgets for funding 
consideration. These plans are to include improvements to the 
access to and around the pools while improving the physical 
environment of the pools;

18. Continues to advocate for more transport and access options to 
support all members of the community to access our pools;

19. Endorse commencement of community consultation and a feasibility 
study process including the costs, risks, management and other 
opportunities associated with the potential development of a Water 
Play area at Buckley Park in Nagambie;

20. Following completion of the community consultation and feasibility 
study processes, a further report be presented to Council for 
consideration regarding the future provision of aquatic facilities in 
Nagambie; and

21. Receive a report at the conclusion of the 2019/2020 pool season for 
further consideration.

CRS THOMSON/BOWER - 

Amendment:

That the Recommendation, as written, be moved, with one 
amendment to Recommendation 8 -

8. In consultation with the Pools Working Group and the 
community, develop a Marketing and Events Plan for the 
Community Pools by 30 June 2019 for implementation prior to 
the 2019/2020 season, and consider in this Plan an expanded 
Learn to Swim program;
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9-7.9 Strathbogie Community Pools Strategy 2019-2029 
- For Consideration and Adoption (cont.)

RECOMMENDATION (cont.)

CRS STOTHERS/WILLIAMS - 

Amendment to Motion in front of us:

To amend Recommendations 9 and 10 -

9. With regards to Pool fees and charges, extend the current voucher 
process for the 2019/20 season, with an extra addition of providing 
similar free season passes through a mechanism decided by Council 
for all people who can show they are living in the Shire;

10. Use Council budgetary processes over the next 12 months to 
provide for ongoing management, maintenance and implementation 
of actions associated with the draft Community Pools Strategy with 
the concept of a Pool Reserve to be reviewed during the 2020/21 
budgetary process;

100/19 ON BEING PUT, THE AMENDMENT BECAME THE MOTION

101/19 ON BEING PUT, THE MOTION WAS CARRIED

AMENDED RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

1. Note the management model review for the 2018/2019 pool season;

2. Adopt the revised format of the draft Strathbogie Community Pools 
Strategy 2019-2029 document;

3. Endorse the formalization of the Pools Working Group as an 
Advisory Group to Council;

4. Endorse the recruitment of an Aquatics and Recreation Manager to 
oversee the future management of Strathbogie’s pools and other 
recreation facilities prior to the commencement of the 2019/2020 pool 
season;

5. Endorse and fund the provision of a Lifeguard training course at no 
cost to Shire residents and that participants that successfully 
complete the training are then considered for seasonal employment 
in Strathbogie’s pools;
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9.7.9 Strathbogie Community Pools Strategy 2019-2029 
- For Consideration and Adoption (cont.)

RECOMMENDATION (cont.)

6. Request Officers to investigate and report back on the feasibility of 
engaging a direct management service delivery model utilizing a 
directly engaged labour source including lifeguards (senior and 
junior) and a hybrid model that utilizes lifeguards (senior and junior) 
from an external service provider and report back to Council in June 
2019 allowing time to commence recruitment and other advertising in 
August 2019 for the 2019/2020 pool season or to allow time to 
conduct a tender process for the external management of the pools;

7. Advertise an Expression of Interest (EOI) for the management of the 
kiosks at the Avenel, Euroa, Nagambie and Violet Town pools by 
local community groups for the 2019/2020 pool season and report 
back to Council in August 2019 with the results of this EOI process;

8. In consultation with the Pools Working Group and the community, 
develop a Marketing and Events Plan for the Community Pools by 30 
June 2019 for implementation prior to the 2019/2020 season;

9. With regards to Pool fees and charges, extend the current voucher 
process for the 2019/20 season, with an extra addition of providing 
similar free season passes through a mechanism decided by Council 
for all people who can show they are living in the Shire;

10. Use Council budgetary processes over the next 12 months to 
provide for ongoing management, maintenance and implementation 
of actions associated with the draft Community Pools Strategy with 
the concept of a Pool Reserve to be reviewed during the 2020/21 
budgetary process;

11. Allocate funding over a 10 year period with Year One (2019/2020) to 
include an allocation for upgrade works, further detailed design and 
costings in preparation for future grant applications with the balance 
of the current allocation to be placed in the Reserve fund for pool 
upgrades;

12. Advocate and apply for external funding for identified and approved 
projects;

13. Retain the ability to extend opening hours on severe heat days and 
review the curren t opening hours to  consider factors tha t impact on 
community use;

14. Consider extending the designated pool season (1 December to 
March long weekend) at either end of the pool season in the event 
that a consistent pattern of days above 30 degrees are forecast;

15. Continues to investigate the feasibility of solar heating the pools and 
that a report be presented at a future meeting for consideration;
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9.7.9 Strathbogie Community Pools Strategy 2019-2029 
- For Consideration and Adoption (cont.)

RECOMMENDATION (cont.)

16. Support the Friends of Avenel Pool to trial “winter blanketing” of the 
Avenel Pool over the 2019 winter period;

17. In consultation with the Pools Working Group, Friends of the Pools 
and the community, develop Management Plans for each individual 
pool/aquatic facilities and refer these to future budgets for funding 
consideration. These plans are to include improvements to the 
access to and around the pools while improving the physical 
environment of the pools;

18. Continues to advocate for more transport and access options to 
support all members of the community to access our pools;

19. Endorse commencement of community consultation and a feasibility 
study process including the costs, risks, management and other 
opportunities associated with the potential development of a Water 
Play area at Buckley Park in Nagambie;

20. Following completion of the community consultation and feasibility 
study processes, a further report be presented to Council for 
consideration regarding the future provision of aquatic facilities in 
Nagambie; and

21. Receive a report at the conclusion of the 2019/2020 pool season for 
further consideration.

CRS STO THERSA/VILLI AMS -

Amendment (Substantive Motion): (Note: this Motion includes the 
amendment put forward by Crs Thomson/Bower).

That the Substantive Motion be endorsed.

SUBSTANTIVE MOTION

That Council:

1. Note the management model review for the 2018/2019 pool season;

2. Adopt the revised format of the draft Strathbogie Community Pools 
Strategy 2019-2029 document;

3. Endorse the formalization of the Pools Working Group as an 
Advisory Group to Council;
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9.7.9 Strathbogie Community Pools Strategy 2019-2029 
- For Consideration and Adoption (cont.)

RECOMMENDATION (cont.)

4. Endorse the recruitment of an Aquatics and Recreation Manager to 
oversee the future management of Strathbogie’s pools and other 
recreation facilities prior to the commencement of the 2019/2020 pool 
season;

5. Endorse and fund the provision of a Lifeguard training course at no 
cost to Shire residents and that participants that successfully 
complete the training are then considered for seasonal employment 
in Strathbogie’s pools;

6. Request Officers to investigate and report back on the feasibility of 
engaging a direct management service delivery model utilizing a 
directly engaged labour source including lifeguards (senior and 
junior) and a hybrid model that utilizes lifeguards (senior and junior) 
from an external service provider and report back to Council in June 
2019 allowing time to commence recruitment and other advertising in 
August 2019 for the 2019/2020 pool season or to allow time to 
conduct a tender process for the external management of the pools;

7. Advertise an Expression of Interest (EOI) for the management of the 
kiosks at the Avenel, Euroa, Nagambie and Violet Town pools by 
local community groups for the 2019/2020 pool season and report 
back to Council in August 2019 with the results of this EOI process;

8. In consultation with the Pools Working Group and the community, 
develop a Marketing and Events Plan for the Community Pools by 30 
June 2019 for implementation prior to the 2019/2020 season, and 
consider in this Plan an expanded Learn to Swim program;

9. With regards to Pool fees and charges, extend the current voucher 
process for the 2019/20 season, with an extra addition of providing 
similar free season passes through a mechanism decided by Council 
for all people who can show they are living in the Shire;

10. Use Council budgetary processes over the next 12 months to 
provide for ongoing management, maintenance and implementation 
of actions associated with the draft Community Pools Strategy with 
the concept of a Pool Reserve to be reviewed during the 2020/21
budgetary process;

11. Allocate funding over a 10 year period with Year One (2019/2020) to 
include an allocation for upgrade works, further detailed design and 
costings in preparation for future grant applications with the balance 
of the current allocation to be placed in the Reserve fund for pool 
upgrades;
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9.7.9 Strathbogie Community Pools Strategy 2019-2029 
- For Consideration and Adoption (cont.)

RECOMMENDATION (cont.)

12. Advocate and apply for external funding for identified and approved 
projects;

13. Retain the ability to extend opening hours on severe heat days and 
review the current opening hours to consider factors that impact on 
community use;

14. Consider extending the designated pool season (1 December to 
March long weekend) at either end of the pool season in the event 
that a consistent pattern of days above 30 degrees are forecast;

15. Continues to investigate the feasibility of solar heating the pools and 
that a report be presented at a future meeting for consideration;

16. Support the Friends of Avenel Pool to trial “winter blanketing” of the 
Avenel Pool over the 2019 winter period;

17. In consultation with the Pools Working Group, Friends of the Pools 
and the community, develop Management Plans for each individual 
pool/aquatic facilities and refer these to future budgets for funding 
consideration. These plans are to include improvements to the 
access to and around the pools while improving the physical 
environment of the pools;

18. Continues to advocate for more transport and access options to 
support all members of the community to access our pools;

19. Endorse commencement of community consultation and a feasibility 
study process including the costs, risks, management and other 
opportunities associated with the potential development of a Water 
Play area at Buckley Park in Nagambie;

20. Following completion of the community consultation and feasibility 
study processes, a further report be presented to Council for 
consideration regarding the future provision of aquatic facilities in 
Nagambie; and

21. Receive a report at the conclusion of the 2019/2020 pool season for 
further consideration.

102/19 ON BEING PUT, THE SUBSTANTIVE AMENDMENT BECAME THE 
MOTION

103/19 ON BEING PUT, THE MOTION WAS CARRIED
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9.7.9 Strathbogie Community Pools Strategy 2019-2029 
- For Consideration and Adoption (cont.)

Background
Preparation of the draft Strathbogie Community Pools Strategy has involved the 
following:

• A review of Council’s existing strategic documentation, current operations, 
community demographics, and other facilities in the region;

• Stakeholder interviews and workshops;
• Community surveys;
• An assessment of Industry trends and new technologies; and
• Development of a draft strategy based on the findings.

The key recommendations of the draft strategy are:
1. Management Model;
2. Programming and activities to build patronage and revenue;
3. Fees and Charges;
4. Pool Operating Hours;
5. Water Temperature;
6. Water / Pool Management;
7. Marketing / Promotion;
8. Access;
9. Transport; and
10. Physical Environment.

The draft strategy was finalised on 2 May 2018. The draft strategy was then 
presented to Council for consideration on 15 May 2018. Council resolved to 
place the draft Community Pools Strategy on Public Exhibition for a 28 day period 
from 23 May 2018, closing on 22 June 2018 and to hear submissions at a Special 
Council meeting at 5pm on Tuesday 10 July 2018.

As a result of this public exhibition period, sixteen (16) submissions were received 
with one submitter requesting to be heard by Council on 10 July 2018.

The content of the submissions is summarised in Attachment A.

2018/2019 Pool Season

Following the tender process for the management of all four pools, Council 
appointed the previous contractor to manage the Euroa Pool. No tenders were 
received for the management of the Avenel, Nagambie and Violet Town pools.

As a result of this tender process, Council staff contacted suitably qualified and 
experienced providers advising them that a tender was being re-advertised for the 
management of the outdoor pools at Avenel, Nagambie and Violet Town for the 
2018/2019 pool season.

During these conversations, Council officers were advised that if the tender was 
for a longer period and if it included the Euroa pool, there would be greater 
interest in submitting a tender. None of these providers submitted a tender.
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Following an additional tender process seeking interest for the management of 
the Avenel, Nagambie and Violet Town pools and with the recommendations of 
the draft Pool Strategy in mind, Council resolved to manage the Avenel, 
Nagambie and Violet Town pools with direct labour and to provide free Lifeguard 
training for Strathbogie residents with the view of employing all successfully 
trained lifeguards on the roster for the 2018/2019 season.

An accredited Lifeguard training session was held in Euroa on 22/23 November 
2018 with seven participants, all of who successfully completed the course and 
were then employed by Council during the season.

In addition to the community members being trained, Council also trained four (4) 
outdoor staff members to provide options and “back up" in the event of the 
availability of lifeguards.

The ability and certainty of lifeguard availability was an issue as the season 
progressed which was partially due to lifeguards returning to university, accessing 
other paid work opportunities and to a lesser extent illness and holidays.

Council embarked on a recruitment process for a suitably qualified Pool 
Coordinator to manage the operations and rostering of lifeguards to work at the 
pools. Despite advertising, no applications were received in time for the pools to 
open. Co-ordination of the rostering and operations of the pools was shared by 
council officers.

Prior to the 2018/2019 season and again despite local advertising seeking 
expressions of interest from Community Groups to manage the kiosks at Avenel, 
Nagambie and Violet Town, there was no response from any Community Group. 
As a result of this advertisement, two local residents were engaged to staff the 
Violet Town kiosk.

In addition, the contractor who previously managed the Violet Town pool for a 
number of seasons was engaged to assist with grounds maintenance and water 
quality at the Violet Town pool. This person also provided advice and acted as a 
mentor for the lifeguards.

Ground maintenance and water quality was undertaken by Council staff at the 
Avenel and Nagambie pools.

During the 2018/2019 season a total of 54 days were experienced when one of 
more pools was not open. The breakdown per pool is as follows:

• Euroa -  9.5 days
• Avenel -  16.5 days
• Nagambie -  16.5 days
• Violet Town -  11.5 days
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The reasons were predominantly due to cool conditions with fluctuations in 
temperature being experienced between towns, storm activity, a faecal incident at 
Violet Town, a power outage at Avenel and Nagambie, and a minor water quality 
incident at Avenel.

The following table indicates annual attendances recorded at each pool for the 
past six (6) seasons, noting that "free access for ratepayers” was introduced in 
2014/2015:

Pool 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019

Avenel 3,544 3,189 4,890 4,404 4,815 3,679
Euroa 10,834 10,757 16,509 15,306 16, 108 17,325
Nagambie 1,677 3,429 2, 589 2,891 3,034 3,424
Violet
Town

12,708 13,680 19,422 16,163 12,154 6,468

TOTALS 28,763 31,055 43,410 38,764 36,111 30,896

You will note that following the introduction of free attendance for ratepayers prior 
to the 2014/2015 pool season, attendances increased in 2014/2015 by 2,292 or 
8%.

The following table represents the total' income received at each pool for the past 
six (6) seasons, noting that “free access for ratepayers” was introduced in 
2014/2015:

Pool 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019

Avenel $2,312 $325.00 $584.00 $344(pass 
es only)

$37.00
(passes
only)

$3,152 
(passes & 
kiosk)

Euroa $3,096 $3,060 $3,178 $2,791
(passes
only)

$3,371.00
(passes
only)

$3,566 
(passes & 
kiosk

Nagambie $1,271 $1,059 $491.00 $180.00
(passes
only)

$646.00
(passes
only)

$1,475 
(passes & 
kiosk

Violet
Town

$1,639 $998.00 $3,274 $1,681
(passes
only)

$2,267.00
(passes
only)

$8,638(pa 
sses & 
kiosk

TOTALS $8,318 $5,442 $7,527 $4,996 $6,321 $16,831

The 2018/2019 season saw a decrease in attendance of 5,215 or 14% when 
compared to the 2017/2018 season.
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9.7.9 Strathbogie Community Pools Strategy 2019-2029 
- For Consideration and Adoption (cont.)

Revenue increased by $10,888 or 197% when compared to the 2017/2018 
season. This is due to Council directly managing the kiosks by providing labour 
and stock and receiving all takings compared to 2017/2018 when revenue was 
restricted to the sale of passes only ($5,528).

During the 2018/2019 season, a total number of 1500 free passes were issued as 
per the following table:

Pool Family Pass Adult Pass Student Pass Totals
Avenel 98 4 52 154
Euroa 543 106 384 1033
Nagambie 105 12 20 137
Violet Town 108 43 25 176
TOTALS 854 165 481 1500

The total estimated cost associated with the provision of the pool service for the 
2018/2019 season is as follows:

Management o f the pools $255,521

Kiosk Supplies $ 4,735

Total Expenditure: $260,256

Less Income: $ 16,416

Total Net Cost: $243.840

Please note that these figures do not include costs associated with purchase of 
chemicals or payment of utilities as these have historically been paid for by 
Council and revenue generated from the Euroa Pool kiosk which was managed 
by the contractor.

Based on this figure, it can be suggested that the “hybrid model” undertaken 
during the 2018/2019 season when compared to the 2017/2018 season resulted 
in savings to Council.

During the 2018/2019 season, the following marketing, promotional activities and 
events took place:

• Production of a pools promotional video, which has been shared on social 
media and shown at the Euroa Cinema;

• A pools photo banner has been developed and attached to all Council staff 
emails and has been shared on Facebook, Instagram and on the Euroa IGA 
advertising screen;

• Evolve Youth of Strathbogie have hosted a pool party at Euroa and 
Nagambie;
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• Promotional videos have been filmed at each pool to assist with the promotion 
of the 2019/2020 pool season; and

• Pull up “teardrop” banners and additional town entry signage has been 
ordered for the 2019/2020 season.

In addition, staff worked with the Friends of the Avenel Pool to provide early 
morning lap swimming two days a week for a period of two (2) weeks. This 
proved successful and should be investigated further for the 2019/2020 season.

The Draft Strategy

In an attempt to make the draft Strategy more user friendly, a summary document 
has been developed and titled “Strathbogie Community Pools Strategy, 2018- 
2028". This document outlines the major focus and recommendations for 
consideration. Refer to Attachment B.

It is recommended that the document that was exhibited for community 
consultation be retitled the “Strathbogie Community Pools Background and 
Research Document”.

The draft strategy has a number of Key Directions and recommendations which 
are listed in the table below. Each of these recommendations has been 
addressed in the recommendations of this report:

Key Direction Recommendation

Management Model That Council consider the implementation o f an 
internal/external hybrid management for its community pools

Programming and 
activities to build 
patronage and revenue;

That provision and/or facilitation o f programming at the pools 
be a core pool management function into the future and that 
pool toys be purchased for use at each o f the pools to 
enhance the fun and waterplay aspects o f the local pool 
experience.

Fees and Charges That Council develop a fees and charges policy guide the 
réintroduction o f fees for entry into the pool to coincide with 
the recommended improvements to the programming and 
management services and physical improvements to the 
environment.

Pool Operating Hours That Council take a more flexible approach around the core 
opening hours for the pools and consider, where there is 
sufficient local demand, trialling local reguests to varying local 
pool opening hours.
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9.7.9 Strathbogie Community Pools Strategy 2019-2029 
- For Consideration and Adoption (cont.)

Key Direction Recommendation

Water Temperature That a cost benefit analysis be undertaken to determine if  a 
solar heating trial at Euroa Pool is feasible and, depending on 
the outcome of the feasibility o f a solar heating trial and 
possible subsequent trial at Euroa Pool, that solar heating 
feasibility and trialling at other pools be considered.

Water/Pool management That Council covers one pool over winter as a trial to gauge 
the local impact o f changing this long-standing practice and 
with a view to progressively introducing winter pool blanketing 
at all the pools if  successful.

Marketing /  Promotion That Council develop a Community Pools marketing plan to 
provide ongoing information about the proposed 
improvements to the pools and encourage people to ‘come 
back’ to the pools. It should:

• Complement/enhance local ‘friends o f  
communications about the pools

• Improve overall community awareness o f the 
pools and their activities and

• Build loyalty and interest in the pools

Access That universal access in and around the pools be a priority for 
improvement in the pool renewal and upgrade works

Transport That Council explore options to develop transport and access 
services to attract and support young people and others in the 
community with transport issues being able to get to and use 
the pools.

Physical Environment That Council adopt renewal and upgrade works program for 
the pools that will improve their physical environment and 
make them more attractive, comfortable, relevant and 
sustainable into the future.

Other opportunities and recommendations

During the preparation and consideration of the strategy, the following 
opportunities have also been investigated:

• Water Play Space for Buckley Park, Nagambie
• Management Plans for Each Pool
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Alternative Options
The author and other officers providing advice in relation to this report have 
considered potential alternative courses of action. Feasible alternatives have 
been identified.

Risk Management
The author of this report considers that there are significant Risk Management 
factors relating to the report and recommendation.

Despite the preferred management model for the pools, there is a risk. In the 
event that the operations and management of each or individual pools in 
contracted out, the risk can be shared with the provider.

In the event that Council adopts a hybrid model or a directly provided service 
delivery model, the risk increases.

Regarding insurance implications, Council currently has Professional Indemnity 
and Public Liability policies.

Council’s Public Liability policy has a $600,000,000 coverage.

As the pools are a Council asset, they are on our Asset Register. As such, they 
are automatically covered by Council’s annual insurance policy.

Strategic Links -  policy implications and relevance to Council Plan
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Council 
Policies, key strategic documents and the Council Plan.

Best Value / National Competition Policy (NCP) / Competition and Consumer 
Act 2010 (CCA) implications
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Best Value, 
National Competition Policy and Competition and Consumer Act requirements.

Financial / Budgetary Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no capital or 
recurrent budget considerations other than those included in the report.

Economic Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant 
economic implications for Council or the broader community.

Environmental / Amenity Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no significant 
environmental or amenity implications for Council or the broader community.

Community Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has community and 
social implications for Council or the broader community as described in the 
report.
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Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006
The author of this report considers that the recommendation does not limit any 
human rights under the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities 
Act 2006.

Legal / Statutory Implications
The author of this report considers that the recommendation has no legal or 
statutory implications which require the consideration of Council.

Consultation
Otium conducted extensive consultation with key stakeholders, including the 
Community Pools Working Group during the preparation of the draft Strategy.

Otium attended a meeting of the Strathbogie Community Pools Working Group on 
18 April 2018 to present an overview of the developing Strategy and the key 
actions identified. Committee members were asked to provide any feedback they 
might have by 27 April 2018 for presentation to Council alongside the draft 
strategy.

Feedback was provided by the Avenel Action Group, Euroa Pool representatives, 
a Nagambie Pool representative and a Violet Town Pool representative.

The draft strategy was finalised on 2 May 2018. The draft strategy was then 
presented to Council for consideration on 15 May 2018. Council resolved to 
place the draft Community Pools Strategy on Public Exhibition for a 28 day period 
from 23 May 2018, closing on 22 June 2018 and to hear submissions at a Special 
Council meeting at 5pm on Tuesday 10 July 2018.

As a result of this public exhibition period, sixteen (16) submissions were received 
with one submitter requesting to be heard by Council on 10 July 2018.

Councillors met with representatives from the Pools Working Group and Friends 
of the Pools on 9 April 2019 to discuss future management and opportunities 
associated with the pools.

Attachments
• Attachment A -  Summary of Public Submissions
• Attachment B -  Draft Strathbogie Community Pools Strategy, 2019 - 2029
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Attachment A

Summary o f Public Submissions

Submissions to Draft Community Pools Strategy Report

1 Strongly supports Euroa 
Pool development Information about the Euroa Swim Club not adequately stated.

In the report it states that the schools need to engage the pool more - 
however the pool is highly utilised by all three schools in Euroa.

Euroa has limited active spaces for young people. The pool creates 
a social hub and provides a space for health, fitness and 
rehabilitation purposes.

2 Strongly supports Euroa 
Pool development Query date of completion/opening of Euroa Pool?

Euroa pool not martceted effectively - programming could definitely be 
improved.
Extra suggestions - a blanket for the medium sized pod, removal of 
tree that drops leaves in toddler pool, provision for morning lap 
swimmers 2-3 mornings per week.

3 Avenel Pool Corrections * oaae 7 4.2 .....the Avenel Pool was built bv the community over
the 1966/67 period NOT 1980
*paae 9 4.2.6 Area Chance rooms and toilets.
It says that .. 'refurbish toilet/shower fit out, existing stalls are aged 
and deteriorating” Cost estimate $25,500 ...'Completed" in last 
column. This has not been completed nor started. The roof has been 
completed only - not the fit out.

4 General Comments Concern over pool entrance fees and impact on low income families 
that use the pool.
Not charging entrance fees or a more flexible "user pays" 
arrangement may cost lest to administer.

Support of various pool maintenance and improvements strategies.

5 Strongly supports Euroa 
Pool development Toddlers splash park would potentially increase patronage.

Incorporation of shade very important to make facility ’sun-safe’.
Change rooms are hardly utilised and need upqradinq.
Could the temperature of the pool be raised?

6 Euroa Pool Earlier opening hours would suit pensioner better.

7 General Comments All children in the Shire should have access to a local pod and not 
have to travel far to leam to swim and go swimming.

8 Strongly supports Euroa 
Pool development

Euroa Secondary College use all parts of the 50 metre pool, 
including the deep water section, and it is vita) to their swimming, 
sport, educational and water safety programs from Years 7 -12.
The changerooms require an urgent upgrade, as current facilities do 
not allow students to be able to adequately wash Chlorine off.

9 Supports Draft Report
Urges Council to commit to act on the report and support 
implementation of it.

General Comments Euroa pool is unique and should be repurposed, not removed.
Euroa Pool - Bring forward stage 3 to be stage 1.
Engage a professional grant writer to increase chances of success in 
applying for grants.

10 Supports Draft Report Member of the Pool Working Group - full endorsement of the Otium 
Report.

Strongly supports Euroa 
Pool development

Member of the Friends of the Euroa Pool for over 10 years.
Important for Council to adopt the strategy and implement its 
recomendatons by allocating budget funds and staff to carry out 
project.



Strathbogie Shire Council
Ordinary Council Meeting Minutes

Page 85 16/04/19

11 Supports Draft Report Supports Euroa Pool Development
Regularly uses Euroa Pool over summer.

12 Supports Draft Report
Would like Council to set up time frame for implementation of the
repot.

General Comments Suggests seeking assistance from local pool groups to prepare
State/Federal funding applications.
Obtain structural report on Euroa and Violet Town Pools.
Blanket pools over winter and use solar heating to extend swimming
season.
Upgrade amenities and change rooms.
Any carpark re-alignment should not impact on existing trees.
Admission to Euroa pool should be free or highly subsidised.
Conduct Feasability Stuefyfor Hydrotherapy pool.

13
Strongly supports Euroa 
Pool development

All Euroa Primary Schhoi students participate in swimming lessons 
each year at the Euroa Pool.
Euroa pool is used for swimming carnivals and social activities.
Euroa Pool is an invaluable community resource.

14 Supports Draft Report

Pools are an exceptional public assets - would Council prioritise 
urgent pool upgrades by progressing planning and financing of these 
upgrades.
Request that Council commission full structural assessment of 
Public pools immediately.
Please ensure Euroa pod will not lose any of its existing features - 
50m pool and dive poo! zone. This deep water zone could be used 
for a future water slide and is currently used for water safety 
programs. It was not included in the sketch on page 71.
The Community Pool Strategy strongly affirms the goals of the 
Council Plan 2017-2021.
There is a need to boost patronage at the Euroa pool. This could 
occur if the water was warmer, extending the pool season; provision 
of more shadp; provision of a sports and recreation program and 
other and provision of a community run kiosk.
User-pays system should be re-introduced.

Revitalisation could occur with participation of community members.
15 Supports Draft Report All pools need to be reviatlised, especially the Euroa Pool.

Funding opportunities have been lost - this needs to change.
Council please take action to enure water safety of our youth.

16
Stronger supports Euroa 
Pool development

St John's Primary School utilises the Euroa Pools for its swimming 
program and District competitions.
Upgrade of the Euroa pool needs to be a priority
Important place for students to socialise over the summer.
Query report statement that 'getting the school into the pool is a 
challenge’, as all three schools utilise the pool for numerous weeks 
with programs and carnivals.
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9.7.10 Business Management System

The April 2019 Business Management System Report includes reports as 
follows:-

H Building Department -  March 2019 Statistics
■ Planning Department -  Planning Application Approvals -  Development Cost 

(Capital Improved Value) - March 2019
H Customer Enquiry Analysis Report -  Report for March 2019
- Waste Management Reporting ~ Year to Date - February and March 2019
■ Actioning of Council Reports Resolutions -  Status Report
H Outstanding Actions of Council Resolutions to 31 March 2019
B Review of Council Policies and Adoption of new Policies -  March / April 2019
b Record of Assemblies of Councillors
- Record of Minutes of Meetings of Special Committees of Council received in

the past month

By reporting on a monthly basis, Council can effectively manage any risks that 
may arise. The Business Management System will also incorporate Council’s 
corporate goals and objectives.

RECOMMENDATION

That the report be noted.

104/19 CRS BOWER/WILLIAMS That the Recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED
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BUILDING ACTIVITY 

MARCH 2019

Twenty-three (23) permits, with a works value of $3,073,216, were lodged with Council in 
March. The majority of permits were spread fairly evenly over the Seven Creeks, 
Hughes Creek and Lake Nagambie Wards; however the greatest works value is 
attributed to the Lake Nagambie Ward due to a multi-dwelling development. The works 
proposed in the Hughes Creek Ward are mainly rural whereas the works proposed in the 
Seven Creeks and Lake Nagambie Wards are predominantly urban.

Honeysuckle Creek
S228.789.00

Hughes Creek
S760.558.00

Mount Wombat
S139.517.00

Lake Nagambie 
'S I.269.939.00

Seven Creeks
S674.413.00

Honeysuckle Creek

Permit Number Permit Date Works Building Use Town Cost Of 
Works

120190165/0 20/03/2019 Construction of Dwelling & Garage Violet Town $228,789.00

Hughes Creek

Permit Number Permit Date Works Building Use Town Cost Of 
Works

201801019 15/01/2019 Construction of Horse arena cover Locksley $254,021.00
201900144 22/03/2019 Construction of Farm Shed Nagambie $53,310.00
20192955/0 20/02/2019 Construction of Dwelling Avenel $290,000.00
20192966/0 19/02/2019 Construction of Farm Shed Tabilk $13,500.00
20192997/0 20/02/2019 Construction of Stables Longwood $138,000.00
20193012/0 22/03/2019 Construction of Shed Avenel $11,727.00
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Lake Nagam bie

Permit
Number

Permit
Date Works Building Use Town Cost Of 

Works
20183887/0 14/03/2019 Construction of Shade sail Nagambie $7,826.00
201900150 5/03/2019 Construction of Farm Shed Arcadia South $55,043.00
20190031/0 20/03/2019 Installation of Swimming Pool, Swimming Pool Barrier Nagambie $54,080.00
20190033/0 19/03/2019 Construction of Dwelling & Garage Nagambie $295,490.00
20190287/0 15/03/2019 Construction of Verandah Nagambie $7,500.00
20192956/0 18/02/2019 Construction of 4x Dwellings Nagambie $700,000.00
20192965/0 25/02/2019 Construction of Shed Nagambie $60,000.00
20194040/0 13/03/2019 Alterations & 

Additions to
Aged Care Building Nagambie $90,000.00

M ount W om bat

Permit Number Permit Date Works Building Use Town Cost Of 
Works

20192975/0 28/02/2019 Alterations & Additions to Dwelling (strathbogie $139,517.00 I

Seven Creeks

Permit Number Permit Date Works Building Use Town Cost Of 
Works

20183851/0 18/03/2019 Construction of Dependant Persons Unit Euroa $90,000.00
20190030/0 11/03/2019 Construction of Dwelling & Garage Euroa $303,235.00
20192967/0 18/02/2019 Extension to Shed Euroa $20,000.00
20192976/0 28/02/2019 Alterations & Additions to Dwelling Euroa $75,778.00
20192987/0 26/02/2019 Restump of Dwelling Euroa $9,300.00
20192998/0 6/03/2019 Restump of Dwelling Euroa $9,000.00
20193011/0 21/03/2019 Alteration to, Construction of Dwelling, Garage Euroa $167,100.00
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PLANNING APPLICATION APPROVALS -  DEVELOPMENT COST (CAPITAL 
IMPROVED VALUE)

MARCH 2019

Planning Applications Determined
March 2019

Honeysuckle Creek $743,000.00
Sheans Creek $340,000.00

Tamleugh $325,000.00

Violet Town $78,000.00

Hughes Creek $13,190.00
Longwood $13,190.00

Lake Nagambie $716,640.00
Goulburn Weir $15,000.00

Mangalore $250,000.00

Mangalore $56,640.00

Nagambie $395,000.00

Mount Wombat $46,305.00
Creightons Creek $14,500.00

Ruffy $31,805.00

Seven Creeks $150,000.00
Euroa $150,000.00

Strathbogie
s h ire

Total Value $1,669,135.00
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ACTIONING OF COUNCIL REPORTS RESOLUTIONS 
COUNCIL MEETING -  19 MARCH 2019

1 n

1 n -

R -
■ Dept Number of Reports

fi - ■ Reports Resolutions Actioned

A

9 _ 1
E Reports Resolutions Deferred

n - ■ Reports Resolutions in Progress

ô *

c f  *

I I I 1 I 1 I I I I

4? < ?  .¿ P  •cf' • Oh
F  <5̂  <<£ ¿>° ¿ ?P  s.<5> ¿P x>° ■ Reports Resolutions not 
■ /  « /  J -  J -  /  * *  / ■  /  Actioned 

■" O  ò O'- p  < P  P  
:< &  »Total Number of Report

« V  ^0 / /  Resolutions 
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OUTSTANDING ACTIONS OF COUNCIL RESOLUTIONS TO
31 MARCH 2019

This Report is to advise the Executive Management Team, Councillors and the 
community o f the status o f previous Council resolutions which are in progress but 
are yet to be finalised.

Council 
Meeting Date

Item
No.

Description

18/12/18 9.7.5 School Crossing Supervisor Review
18/12/18 9.7.11 Proposed Violet Town Recreation Reserve Toilet Block

REVIEW OF EXISTING COUNCIL POLICIES 
AND ADOPTION OF NEW POLICIES

Review of 
Policy / 

New Policy

Policy Name Period of 
Review

Outcome

Nil



Strathbogie Shire Council
Ordinary Council Meeting Minutes

Page 124 16/04/19

RECORDS OF ASSEMBLIES OF COUNCILLORS 

For period 6 March to 2 April 2019

Record in accordance with sections 77 and 80A(1) of the Local Government Act 1989

Note: Details of matters discussed at the meeting that have been designated confidential under 
section 77 of the Local Government Act 1989 are described in a separate “confidential addendum" 
that will be reported to the next closed Council meeting]

Name of Meeting:

Date of Meeting:

Time:

Attendees:
Councillors 
Amanda McClaren 
Debra Bower 
Malcolm Little 
John Mason 
Kate Stothers 
Alistair Thomson 
Graeme (Mick) Williams

Officer/s
Steve Crawcour (Chief Executive Officer)
Phil Howard (Director, Innovation and Performance)
David Roff (Group Manager Corporate and Community)
Jeff Saker (Group Manager, Community Assets)

Apologies
Nil

Declarations of Interest
1. Internal Workshop - ARTC Proposal/s
2. Budget Update
3. Violet Town Business Opportunity
4. Sustainable Strathbogie 2030
5. Councillors Discussions
6 . GoNagambie Update
7. Review of Draft February Ordinary Council Meeting Agenda
8. Assembly of Councillors

8.1 Mayor and CEO Meetings Attendances
8.2 Councillors Meetings Attendances
8.3 Community Planning Program Guidelines Review
8.4 Seven Creeks Park -  Proposed All Abilities Access Ramp and Walkway
8.5 Draft Memorandum of Understanding - Newhaven Rail Group P/L
8.6 Rural Councils Victoria - First Speaker Announcement for April Mayors, 

Councillors and CEOs Forum
8.7 Ruffy Gymkhana - Sunday 17 March 2019
8.8 Benalla - Euroa - Violet Town Group of Melbourne Legacy - Changeover 

Dinner

Councillors Forum 

Tuesday 12 March 2019 

9.30 a.m. - 5.00 p.m.
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8.9 Melbourne to Brisbane Inland Rail Project Symposium
8.10 Walking Track - Regatta Centre to Town (Nagambie)
8.11 Diesel Tank - Strathbogie Recreation Reserve 

9. Councillors / CEO Discussions

Councillor/s - Declaration of Interest/s / Direct or Indirect

Matter No. Names of Councillor/s who 
disclosed interest

Did the Councillor/s 
leave the meeting?

Item 6 Cr McClaren No

Item 8.11 Cr Mason Yes

Officer/s - Declaration of Interest/s / Direct or Indirect - NIL

Matter No. Names of Councillor/s who Did the Officer/s
disclosed interest leave the meeting?
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Record of Assembly of Councillors

Record in accordance with sections 77 and 80A(1) of the Local Government Act 1989

Note: Details o f matters discussed at the meeting that have been designated confidential 
under section 77 of the Local Government Act 1989 are described in a separate 
“confidential addendum” that will be reported to the next closed Council meeting

Name of Meeting: Councillors Forum

Date of Meeting: Tuesday 19 March 2019

Time: 9.30 a.m. - 7.00 p.m.

Attendees:
Councillors 
Amanda McClaren 
Debra Bower 
Malcolm Little 
John Mason 
Kate Stothers 
Alistair Thomson 
Graeme (Mick) Williams

Officer/s
Steve Crawcour (Chief Executive Officer)
Phil Howard (Director, Innovation and Performance) (apology for Item 9)
David Roff (Group Manager Corporate and Community)
Jeff Saker (Group Manager, Community Assets)

Apologies
Nil

Declarations of Interest

1. Briefing / Update by ARTC Representatives ~ Euroa Precinct Proposal/s
2. Councillors Discussions
3. Capital Works Update
4. Budget / Council Plan Review
5. Council Agenda Review
6 . Item/s for Discussion

6.1 Mayor and CEO Meetings Attendances
6.2 Councillors Meetings Attendances
6.3 VLGA Membership Renewal
6.4 Goulburn River Valley Tourism - Memorandum of
6.6 ARTC Briefing

7. Councillors / CEO Discussions
8. Informal Meeting with Community Members / Cuppa and Chat
9. Council Meeting
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Councillor/s - Declaration of Interest/s / Direct or Indirect

Matter No. Names of Councillor/s who 
disclosed interest

Did the Councillor/s 
leave the meeting?

Item 6.4 Cr McClaren No

Officer/s - Declaration of Interest/s / Direct or Indirect - NIL

Matter No. Names of Councillor/s who Did the Officer/s
disclosed interest leave the meeting?
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Record of Assembly of Councillors

Record in accordance with sections 77 and 80A(1) of the Local Government Act 1989

Note: Details o f matters discussed at the meeting that have been designated confidential 
under section 77 o f the Local Government Act 1989 are described in a separate 
“confidential addendum” that will be reported to the next closed Council meeting

Name of Meeting: Councillors Forum

Date of Meeting: Tuesday 26 March 2019

Time: 10.00 a.m. - 5.30 p.m.

Attendees:
Councillors 
Amanda McClaren 
Debra Bower 
Malcolm Little 
John Mason 
Kate Stothers 
Alistair Thomson 
Graeme (Mick) Williams

Officer/s
Steve Crawcour (Chief Executive Officer)
Phil Howard (Director, Innovation and Performance)
David Roff (Group Manager Corporate and Community)
Jeff Saker (Group Manager, Community Assets)

Apologies
Nil

Declarations of Interest

1. Councillors Discussions 
Declarations of Interest
2. Euroa Flood Management Program, including easements
3. Matthew Burns - Chief Executive Officer, Taungurung Land and Waters Council
4. Budget Review
5. Special Council Meeting Agenda Review
6 . Planning Agenda Review / Planning Matters
7. Goulburn River Valley Tourism - briefing by Chair and Executive Officer
8. Item/s for Discussion

8.1 Mayor and CEO Meetings Attendances
8.2 Councillors Meetings Attendances
8.3 Violet Town RSL Sub-Branch ~ invitation to ANZAC Day 2019 

Commemorations
8.4 Australian Local Government Association ~ request for Council’s support

of 2019 Yellow Ribbon National Road Safety Week.
8.5 Meeting to be held on Tuesday 30 April 2019 (fifth Tuesday of the month)

9. Councillors / CEO Discussions
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10. Planning Committee Meeting
11. Special Council Meeting

- Australian Rail Track Corporation (ARTC) - Inland Rail

Councillor/s - Declaration of Interest/s / Direct or Indirect

Matter No. Names of Councillor/s who 
disclosed interest

Did the Councillor/s 
leave the meeting?

Item No. 6 & 10/6.2 Cr Mason Yes

Item No. 7 Cr McClaren No

Officer/s - Declaration of Interest/s / Direct or Indirect - NIL

Matter No. Names of Councillor/s who Did the Officer/s
disclosed interest leave the meeting?
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RECORD OF MEETINGS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL

RECORD OF MINUTES OF MEETINGS RECEIVED IN THE MARCH / APRIL 2019
PERIOD

Name of Special Committee Date of Meeting

Gooram Soldiers Memorial Hall Committee of 
Management

13/02/2019

Violet Town Hall Committee 04/03/2019
Creighton’s Creek Recreation Reserve 05/03/2019
Euroa Citizen’s Band 19/03/2019
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10. NOTICES OF MOTION

Nil.

11. URGENT BUSINESS

Nil.

12. CLOSURE OF MEETING TO THE PUBLIC

7.24 p.m.

CRS WILLIAMS/MASON -

That Council, in conformance with Section 89(2) of the Local Government 
Act 1989, resolve to close the meeting to members of the public for the 
purpose of considering items relating to:- 

Ground(s) under section 89(2):
89(2)(d) Contractual Matters

C.P. 1 Contract No. 18/19-17 ~ Evaluation Report
- Provision of Banking and Bill Payment Services

105/19 ON BEING PUT, THE MOTION WAS CARRIED

7.28 p.m.

CRS WILLIAMS/MASON -

That Council open the meeting to members of the public and resume 
normal business.

107/19 ON BEING PUT, THE MOTION WAS CARRIED
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13. CONFIRMATION OF ‘CLOSED PORTION’ DECISION/S 

Closed Portion Decision/s -

C.P. 1 Contract No. 18/19-17 ~ Evaluation Report
- Provision of Banking and Bill Payment Services

RECOMMENDATION

That Council having publicly advertised for tender proposals relating to
Contract 18/19-17 -  Provision of Banking and Bill Payment Services and
evaluated the compliant tender proposals received:

1. Award the contract to the Commonwealth Bank of Australia of Level
20, 727 Collins Street, Docklands VIC 3008 for a total amount of 
$133,780 excluding GST for a period of three years with two twelve 
month options for extension (five years in to ta l);

2. Advise the other tenderers that they have been unsuccessful;

3. Endorses the signing and sealing of the Contract documents once
received.

106/19 CRS MASON/WILLIAMS : That the Recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED

RECOMMENDATION

CRS MASON/BOWER -

That the decision/s of Council’s ‘Closed Portion’ considerations be
confirmed.

108/19 ON BEING PUT, THE MOTION WAS CARRIED

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS, THE MEETING CLOSED A T 7.29 P.M.

Confirmed as being a true and accurate record of the Meeting

Chair Date
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Strathbogie
shiV'e

Strathbogie
Shire
Council Plan
2017-2021
“Our plan to build flourishing communities.” 

Our Vision
“Together we are building a flourishing community.”

Our Mission
“To support our community to grow through effective 
partnerships, engagement and equitable and efficient 
delivery o f services.”

Our Values
“To be a respectful, innovative, open and transparent, 
inclusive, fa ir and ethical Council.”

Our Commitment to Engagement and 
Communication
“W e will be a more inclusive Council, by engaging 
and communicating in an open and honest manner 
with our local community and key stakeholders.”





Our Goals Strathbogie
strive

1 . To enhance community health and wellbeing

Our key strategies to achieve this goal...

Plan for improved community health, wellbeing and liveability

2 Engage and participate with the community in Council / Community initiatives

3 Enhance community resilience including supporting and increasing the participation of volunteers

4 Support and drive community, arts and cultural events

Plan for improved community health wellbeing and liveability

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Work with the Strathbogie Health and Community Services Consortium to 
deliver relevant projects

X X

Work with Euroa Health in the development of a Wellness Centre X

Deliver initiatives which will support the prevention of family violence including 
achievement of accreditation as a workplace under the White Ribbon Australia 
Workplace Accreditation Program

X

Complete the expansion of the Avenel Pre-School and Maternal and Child 
Health project

X

Continue to review and implement priorities from the Walking Tracks and Trails 
Strategy and the Footpath Strategy (including but not limited to the Apex 
Walking Track Euroa)

X X

Implement the 2017-2021 Liveability Plan 12 month Action Plans X X
Improve recreation spaces within the Shire using the Play and Recreation 
Framework as a reference document

X X

Work with the community to implement provision of dogs off leash areas X
Promote responsible pet ownership through the implementation of Council’s 
Domestic Animal Management Plan 2017-21

X X

Review Council’s Community and Meeting Procedure Local L a w -to  reflect 
contemporary issues

X

In conjunction with Nagambie Health progress Nagambie Healthy Ageing Hub 
concept and seek funding for delivery

X X
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Engage and participate with the community in Council / Community initiatives

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Continue to support local community planning processes across the Shire X X

Seek to implement priority projects from Community Action Group Plans
X X

Progress Youth Hub for Nagambie X

Enhance Community resilience, including supporting and increasing the participation of volunteers

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Work with registered indigenous representative groups to support settlement 
agreements

X

Work with State Government to seek funding from Transport For Victoria for 
audit of transport services within the Shire

X

Recognise and profile the importance of volunteers in our local community X X

Investigate provision of emergency power at relief centres within the Shire X

Continue consultation with Fire Brigade Captains to explore Fire Management 
Planning and CFA Best Practice

X

Implement revised Community Grants program X

Support and drive community, arts and cultural events

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Develop and implement equitable Shire wide youth programs that focus on 
cultural activities, training and development, pathways to employment and 
civic participation

X X

Complete and prioritise actions from Arts and Culture Strategy including art 
work on Nagambie Water Tower

X
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Our Goals
2 .  To sustainably manage our natural and built environment

Our key strategies to achieve this goal...

1 

2
3  

4

Provide efficient and effective waste management programs 

To prom ote and support sustainable environm ental in itia tives

Promote and support sustainable environmental initiatives 

Mitigate and adapt to a changing climate 

Protect and enhance our natural environmental assets 

Protect and enhance our built environment

Strathbogie
sncv'e

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Continue to support Landcare groups and Catchment Management Networks 
to target weed and pest animal management on roadsides

X X

Pursue "Zero waste’’ events across the Shire through use of Shire Event 
Policy and Approvals process

X

Support sustainable energy Initiatives in the Strathbogie Shire in conjunction 
with the Sustainable Development Reference Group

X

Support a community clean up targeting Lake Nagambie and surrounds X

As part of Municipal Strategic Statement and Planning Scheme review, explore 
opportunities for native vegetation protection overlays on roadsides

X

Continue to support the Goulburn Broken Greenhouse Alliance X X
Initiate a community-council working group which will frame the overarching 
objectives and charter for a Sub-Committee for the Transition of the 
Strathbogie Forest to alternative uses

X

Implement the recommendations of Council’s Domestic Wastewater 
Management Plan, including working with Goulburn Valley Water to explore 
small town sewer schemes

X X

M itigate and adapt to a changing clim ate

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Develop a Council Policy on Climate change X

Implement initiatives contained within the Sustainable Strathbogie 2030 Plan X X

Hold a flood mitigation / drainage update meeting in Violet Town to form a 
consensus on future actions after completion of works in 2018/19 Budget

X

Include urban forestry into urban design frameworks to increase the shaded 
environment of our townships and implement pilot program

X X

Develop a program to assist rural landholders in land management -  
strategies for climate change, planning controls, vegetation management

X
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Protect and enhance our natural environmental assets

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Implement Tree Management Guidelines X X
Investigate controls to preserve landscapes as part of Planning Scheme 
review

X X

Continue to assist new land owners in land management through New 
Residents booklet, website and other means

X X

Protect and enhance our built environment

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Implement priority actions from the Stormwater Management Plan X X
Identify priority areas for additional street lighting and opportunities to X X
implement additional street lighting

Provide efficient and effective waste management

I Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Implement the Waste Management Strategy X X

Work with Goulburn-Murray Water to review and implement improved waste 
collection techniques on our waterways

X



Our Goals strathbogie
3. To provide quality infrastructure ^

Our key strategies to achieve this Goal...

! Provide best practice management of all assets including roads, bridges and facilities 

1  Provide passive and active recreational facilities

Provide best practice management of all assets including roads, bridges and facilities

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Investigate and implement asset rationalisation X X
Investigate options in consultation with the community for footpaths, kerb and 
channeling and parking at Queen, Belmont and the east end of Bank Street, 
Avenel

X

Target major capital works projects to seek government funding to reduce 
Council’s costs

X X

Undertake condition assessment of public toilets and develop a strategy for 
future development

X

Provide passive and active recreational facilities

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Investigate and consult in relation to providing link bridge at Rockies over the 
Seven Creeks and over Hughes Creek between Kent Street and Watson 
Street in Avenel.

X

Construct pedestrian bridge linking Memorial Oval Euroa and Friendlies 
Reserve

X

Continue to investigate funding opportunities for female change facilities at 
Euroa Memorial Oval

X

Prioritise and implement the outcomes of the Community Pools Strategy X X
In partnership with the community support the priorities of the Nagambie 
Recreation Reserve Master Plan

X X

Review Recreational Facilities for female friendly and All Abilities Access X

Work with Friendlies Reserve Committee of Management to identify future 
funding models for upgrades

V  
/ \

Review Violet Town Recreation Reserve Master Plan X

Seek Stage 2 funding for Stage 2 boardwalk Seven Creeks Park X X
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Our Goals Strathbogie
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4 .  To support and drive economic development

Our key strategies to achieve this goal...

Promote and support local business and produce 

Support tourism and business development 

Provide innovative and sustainable land use planning 

Attract new residents

Grow investment and employment opportunities

Promote and support local business and produce

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Encourage local produce sales in towns throughout the Shire through 
development of marketing collateral and actions in Economic Development 
Master Plan

X

Promote local businesses through a Business Awards program X
Support and engage with local representative business groups X X

Support tourism and business development

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Develop options to facilitate camping at appropriate locations within the Shire X

Partner with business groups to develop support programs X X

Promote Graytown and other smaller communities through an increased 
presence on the Strathbogie Shire website and the investigation of 
interpretive signs and historical information

X X

Seek funding and support from Federal and State Governments to implement 
Nagamble Infrastructure Development Business Case

X X

Develop a Policy on town entry and roadside signage and progress 
implementation

X

Implement preferred option for involvement in regional tourism X

Investigate installation of a dump point in Nagambie X
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Provide innovative and sustainable land use planning

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Review rural land strategy and have these outcomes (including landscape 
protection) included into the Municipal Strategic Statement

X

Review, in conjunction with the community, to identify options for 
improvements to Cowslip Street, Violet Town

X

Review Nagambie Growth Management Plan X

Formalise Euroa parking arrangements following Euroa Township Plan 
Issues and Opportunities report

X

Progress planning for future growth in Avenel X X

Attract new residents

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Review effectiveness of rating incentive package in new residents to the 
Strathbogie Shire

X

Explore options to highlight the availability of employment opportunities within 
the Shire

X

Grow investment and employment opportunities

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Review, update and resource the Economic Development Master Plan and 
implement priority actions

X X



¥

1

Our Goals
5. Tobe a high performing Shire

Our key strategies to achieve this Goal...

1

2
3

4
5

Strathbogie
sntre

To proactively develop and deliver quality services that achieve high customer 
satisfaction

Continue to focus on operational efficiencies

Continue to create a secure investment environment through sound financial 
management

To be equitable and fair in all decision making processes

To communicate and engage effectively with our community and key 
stakeholders

To proactively develop and deliver quality services that achieve high customer satisfaction

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Continue to enhance customer experiences through ongoing development of 
customer relationship management system

X X

Continue to focus on operational efficiencies

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Continue the service plan process to assist decision making and identify 
service enhancements

X X

Continue to explore opportunities through collaboration with other Councils in 
service delivery

X X

Conduct an organisation wide cultural change / innovation program that 
promotes a "can do philosophy”, continuous improvement processes, culture 
of collaboration and a willingness to embrace positive change

X X

Prioritise outcomes of ICT strategy to aid business transformation through 
finalisation of “Roadmap”

X

Link results of Community Satisfaction Survey to Council Plan actions X X
Improve access to 'in the field’ software and hardware for key Council 
functions to improve response times to permit applications and customer 
queries

X X

Continue to create a secure investment environment through sound financial management

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Upgrade Long Term Financial Plan to cover Ten Year period X
Review Contract Management Process and Guidelines X
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To be equitable and fa ir in all decision making processes

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Ensure strategies are developed in conjunction with key 
stakeholders on a regional basis -  North East Local Gove 
Network

rnment
X X

Promote open and transparent reporting of Council decisit 
Know Your Council Data

:n making including X X

To com m unicate and engage effectively w ith ou r com m unity and key stakeholders

Key Strategies 2019/20 2020/21

Review Communications and Engagement Strategy in line 
pending changes to Local Government Act.

; with X

Work with local business associations to develop a Shire \ 
skills bank that values and recognises local knowledge

A/ide X

Actively seek partnerships to achieve our Council Plan X X



Strathbogie
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6 .  The Strath bogie Shire will advocate on behalf o f our com m unity forthe follow ing:

Key Areas W hat we will do
Diplomacy In partnership with Federal and State Government Departments host foreign 

trade missions to deliver potential economic growth opportunities

Support advocacy programs of State government, MAV and ALGA where it 
supports Council priorities

Education Advocate to relevant education providers for an education precinct in Nagambie

Advocate for continuation of free bus services for students attending Euroa 
Secondary College

Environment Advocate for increased funding to support roadside management, including pest 
plant and animal eradication

Funding Advocate to both Federal and State Governments to ensure that the current 
funding formulas provide equitable funds to Local Government

Health Advocate for services to assist both veterans and emergency services personnel

Public Transport Advocate to V/Line for a bus stop in Longwood 

Advocate for fast rail services in the region
Explore options for an improved train services between Albury and Seymour and 
Shepparton and Seymour
Advocate for upgraded Nagambie Railway Station

Inland Rail Advocate for community’s preferred outcome with Euroa overpass

Indigenous Affairs Advocate for Council’s resolution on the Uluru statement

Child Care Advocate for restoration of Government funding for Violet Town Occasional Child 
Care

Roads Advocate to VicRoads for more explicit traffic signage at Bank Street rail 
crossing to improve traffic flow and therefore improve safety

Continue to advocate to VicRoads for the construction of an interchange on the 
Hume Freeway at the Service Centre crossing in Avenel

Advocate to VicRoads for a road exchange to address issues at the Bank and 
Queen Street -  and Queen Street -  Ewings Road - intersections in Avenel to 
reduce the impact of heavy vehicles. Continue to focus on safety issues at these 
intersections

Telecommunications Advocate for improved telecommunications infrastructure and connectivity in the 
Strathbogie Shire

Tourism Continue to advocate for funding to progress the tourism infrastructure projects 
at Lake Nagambie
Lobby for Council’s preferred position on the Strathbogie Forest 
Advocate for inclusion of the Shire in a recognized tourism body

Transport Linkages Continue to advocate to the Federal and State Governments to support the 
Mangalore Airport Master Plan

P a g e | 13 2019 Review



Utilities Advocate to Goulburn Valley Water and Goulburn Murray-Water for use of 
recycled water in townships.

Advocate to Goulburn Valley Water and Goulburn Murray Water to assist in 
delivery of actions within the Domestic Wastewater Management Plan for 
improved sewerage in townships.

Advocate to Goulburn Valley Water to provide potable water to Strathbogie 
township, Kirwans Bridge and Goulburn Weir

U tilitie s / N a tura l 
Resources

Advocate for natural gas and increases in the quality of other utility services 
across the Shire growth areas of the Shire.
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1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 Introduction
The Strategic  Resource Plan (SRP) is the key medium te rm  financial plan produced by Council 
on a ro ll ing basis th a t  summarises the  resourcing forecasts fo r  at least fou r  years. The SRP 
fo rm s part o f the Council Plan.

Resource planning is im portan t fo r  ensuring th a t a Council remains sustainable in the long 
te rm  and good practice is to  extend forecasting fo r  a ten year period, to  take account o f long 
lived assets such as road and drainage in frastructure . Strathbogie  Shire Council has prepared 
a 10 year long te rm  financial plan to  enable a longer te rm  perspective o f  the ongoing financia l 
sustainabil i ty  o f  the  Council and the impact o f f inancia l decisions into the  longer term.

In preparing the SRP Council must take into account all o the r plans and strategies in regards to  
services and in it iatives which comm it f inancial and non-financial resources over the fou r  year 
period.

Section 125(1) o f the Local G overnm ent Act 1989  (the Act) requires Councils to  prepare a SRP 
and include th is in the Council Plan. The SRP outl ines the  resources required to  achieve 
Council's strategic objectives expressed in the Council Plan. Section 126 o f  the  Act expects 
tha t:

a. The SRP is a plan o f the  resources to  achieve the  Council Plan strategic objectives;
b. The SRP will :

i. Include financial s tatements describing the financia l resources in respect 
o f at least the next fo u r  f inancia l years;

ii. Include sta tements describ ing the  non-financial resources including the 
human resources in respect o f  the  next fo u r  financia l years;

iii. Take in to  account services and in it iatives conta ined in any plan adopted 
by Council and if the Council proposes to  adopt a plan to  provide services 
or take initiatives, the resources required must be consistent w i th  the 
SRP;

iv. Review the SRP during the preparation o f the Council Plan; and
V. Adopt the  SRP no later than 30 June each year and a copy must be

available fo r  public inspection at the Council off ice and on the Council 
in te rne t website.

c. In preparing the SRP, Council should comply  w ith  the  principles o f sound financial 
management as prescribed in the Act, being to:
i. Prudently manage financial risks re la t ing  to  debt, assets and liabil it ies
ii. Provide reasonable stabil i ty  in the level o f rate burden
iii. Consider the financial effects o f council decisions on fu tu re  generations
iv. Provide fu ll, accurate and t im ely  disclosure o f financial in form ation .

Significant changes to  this revised SRP 2019/20 are:

Council w i l l  increase the capped average rate by 2.25 percent in the 2019/20 
f inancia l year. This level allows Council to  maintain existing service levels, fund a 
num ber o f  new init iatives and continue to  allocate addit ional funds to  renew the 
municipality 's in frastructure;

Page 8 of 84



SRP 2018

• Capital Expenditure is $9,295 million in 2019/20; and
• New borrowings o f $ nil in 2019/20.

1.2 Purpose of Strategic Resource Plan
The purpose o f the Strategic Resource Plan is to:

Establish a financial fram ew ork  over the  next 4 years to  ensure Council 's 
strategic objectives, as expressed in its Council Plan, are achieved;

• Provide an assessment o f the resources (financial and non-financial) required to 
accomplish the objectives and strategies included in the Council Plan;

• Establish a basis to  measure Council's adherence to  its policies and strategies; 
and

• Assist Council to  comply w ith  sound financia l management principles, in 
accordance w ith  the Act and to  plan fo r  the  long-term financial sustainabil i ty  o f 
the municipality.

The diagram below details the  key strategic areas covered by the SRP and the integration

required between Council 's financia l strategies.

Figure 1: Strategic Resource Plan -  Key Strategic Areas
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1.3 SRP Objectives
The 2019/20  SRP is intended to  contr ibu te  to  the fo l low ing  objectives in the  10-year 
t im e fram e :

Maintain the  existing range and level o f  service provision and improve the 
understanding o f  the range and levels o f  service provided;
Maintain a viable cash position, ensuring Council remains f inancia lly sustainable 
in the long-term;
Achieve operating sta tem ent surpluses w ith  the  exclusion of all non-opera tiona l 
i tems such as granted assets and capital income w ith in  the  10 year t im e fram e  o f 
the long te rm  financial plan;
Reduce debt to  a low to  moderate level to  a llow capacity to  fund fu tu re  
in frastructure ;
Continue to  pursue recurrent grant fund ing  fo r  strategic capital funds from the 
State and Federal government; and
Provide fo r  rate increases tha t establish a fund ing  level fo r  renewal demand 
being invested at 100 percent.

1.4 Strategic Financial Direction
A num ber o f  strategic challenges remain ahead including renewing existing assets, continuing 
to  provide an appropria te  range and level o f  services to  a growing comm unity , mainta in ing a 
sound f inancial position and addressing the need fo r  capital expansion.

The o the r  related issues are the risks and liabil it ies tha t Council and the com m un ity  face if 
Council does not invest in asset renewal at an adequate rate.

Council, as part o f  establishing its SRP, revises its borrow ing  strategy, asset management, 
capital investment, d iscretionary and s ta tu to ry  reserves, capital works program, the  range and 
level o f  services provided and the revenue-raising strategy.

The SRP establishes the  strategic financial d irect ion fo r  Council to  meet the  fund ing  and 
investm ent challenges th a t  lie ahead in the next 10-years.

The SRP is prepared in conjunction w ith  the Council Plan to  ensure the a ffo rdab il i ty  of 
activ it ies included in the  Council Plan.

A Glossary o f  Terms is attached in A ppend ix  A.

A p pe n d ix  B deta ils  Council 's Financial Statements which are an outcome o f this SRP.
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1.5 Key Strategic Directions
The fo l low ing  table highlights the  key strategies o f th is SRP.

Each section includes detailed analysis to  support the  strategies.

The key strategies provide d irect ion fo r  the  preparation o f  the 2019/20 Budget.

Section Strategic Direction
Section 3
Financial Sustainability

1. That Strathb ogie  Shire Council continues to 
benchmark w ith  o the r  V ictorian Councils and 
those w ith in  the Small Rural category.

2. That Strathb ogie  Shire Council applies the 
outcomes o f this SRP to  the 2019/20 Budget.

That Strathbogie  Shire Council achieves an operating 
surplus over the life o f this SRP.

Section 4
Service  Provis ion  and  
Planning

1. That Strathb ogie  Shire Council continue the 
Service Planning process in 2019/20 via a 
strategic service planning fram ew ork  
incorpora ting  annual budget, departm enta l 
operational plans, capital works evaluation and 
long te rm  financia l plan leading to  a 
de te rm ina tion  o f the  appropria te  range and 
levels o f service fo r  the community .

2. That Strathb o gie  Shire Council, as part o f  the 
deve lopm ent o f its Service Plans, consults w ith  
the com m un ity  to  determ ine how service levels 
w il l  be reached including a combination o f 
improved revenue raising, review o f existing 
service levels, asset disposal and composit ion o f 
the asset portfo l io .

Section 5
Capital W o rks  Program

1. That Strathbogie  Shire Council maintains its 
capital works com m itm ent at levels th a t  meet or 
exceed the  targets established in this SRP, and 
develops a 10-year capital works program.

2. That Strathb o gie  Shire Council in it ia lly  focuses 
capital works on maintain ing a crit ical renewal 
level based on maintain ing a m in imum service 
level at levels indicated in Table 7 (Section 6.5 
Condition Assessm e n t), with  the next p rior ity  
on renewal, upgrade and expansion.

3. That any bids fo r  expansion, new and upgrade 
o f assets come from  the Service Managers as 
arising from  th e ir  Service Plans.
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Section Strategic Direction
Section 6
Asset Management

1. That Strathbogie Shire Council, having 
established its crit ical renewal investment 
levels, maintains detailed Asset M anagem ent 
Plans (focused on renewal demand) fo r  all 
classes o f Council assets incorpora ting  service 
level assessments.

2. That Strathbogie Shire Council, as part o f the 
deve lopm ent o f its Service Plans, consults w ith  
the  com m un ity  to  determ ine  how service levels 
w i l l  be reached including a combination o f 
improved revenue raising, review o f existing 
service levels, asset disposal and composit ion o f 
the  asset portfo lio .

3. That Strathbogie Shire Council adopts as policy 
the  annual a llocation o f funds to  meet 100 per 
cent o f the  communities in frastructu re  renewal 
needs before it elects to  upgrade or construct 
new assets.

Section 7
Long-term Borrowing 
Strategies

1. No borrowings are proposed during the  te rm  of 
this SRP although substantial capacity will  be 
available should it be required

Section 8 
Restricted Assets

1. That Strathbogie Shire Council builds into its 10 
year f inancial plan the estimated movements in 
restr ic ted assets and provides fo r  at least $3 
million to  $4 million in work ing  capital to  meet 
day to  day needs.

2. That to  ensure suffic ient funds are available to  
meet operational needs, Strathbogie Shire 
Council retains a cash position o f  at least $3 
million to  $4 million after deducting restricted 
assets, i.e. cash received but not spent or cash 
to  be spent fo r  specific purposes such as 
deve loper contr ibu tions ( in frastructure), waste 
fac i l i ty  deve lopment, security deposits etc.
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Section Strategic Direction
Section 9
Rating and Other Revenue 
Strategies

That Strathbogie Shire Council;

1. retains capital improved value (CIV) as its 
va luation base;

2. provides a municipal charge o f $133 fo r  2019/20 
to  ensure an equ itab le  contr ibu t ion  towards the 
unavoidable fixed costs o f Strathbogie Shire 
Council;

3. considers fu tu re  increases in tree  and waste 
management charges based on EPA, regulatory 
and safety requirements , to  cope w ith  
challenges in recycling markets and the  need to 
sustain the  Council's long te rm  waste operations 
strategy;

4. in 2019/20, adopts an percent capped average 
rate increase o f 2.25% fo r  general rates 
(excluding supplementaries) and a 4.1 percent 
increase in waste collection charges including 
fund ing the  cost o f  disposal o f domestic waste, 
recycling co llection and the tree  management 
levy;

5. pursues recurren t grant fund ing and strategic 
capital fund ing  aligned w ith  Council Plan 
objectives, including benchmarking o f results 
w ith  o the r  Councils; and

6. undertakes deta iled analysis on the level of 
existing fees and charges and investigates new 
revenue sources and report recommendations 
to  Council.

Section 10
Strategic Financial Plan

The SRP continues to  provide a financial f ram ew ork  fo r  
Council, enabling an assessment o f  Council resources and 
assisting Council to  plan and fund capital in frastructure  and 
meet fu tu re  com m un ity  aspirations.

Table 1: Key S trateg ies- 2 0 1 9 /2 0
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2. LINK BETWEEN STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN 
AND COUNCIL PLAN

2.1 Planning and Reporting Framework
The Local G overnm ent Performance Reporting Fram ew ork  is a key part o f  the  local 
governm ent planning and accountabil i ty  reform. The P lanning and R e porting Fram ew ork  
details the  relationship between the Council Plan, the  Strategic Resource Plan and Annual 
Budget.

Effective report ing  by Councils, on the spending o f public money to  deliver services and 
in frastructure , is essential fo r  ensuring transparency and accountab il i ty  to  the  com m un ity  and 
o the r  levels o f  government.

The fo l low ing  diagram shows the relationship between the  key planning and report ing 
documents th a t make up the planning and accountab il i ty  f ram ework  fo r  local government.

Time horizon Planning Reporting Timing

Medium term

Short term

Figure 2: Planning and Reporting Fram ework

It also shows th a t  there  are opportun it ies  fo r  com m un ity  and stakeholder input and feedback 
at each stage o f  the planning and report ing cycle.

This is im p o r ta n t to  ensure accountabil i ty  to  residents and ratepayers.
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3. FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

3.1 Background
Financial sustainabil i ty  as defined by The Australian Local Government Association (ALGA) is 
w o r th  noting:

"A Council's long-term financial performance and position is sustainable 
where planned long term service and infrastructure levels and standards are 
met without unplanned increases in rates or disruptive cuts to services."

It is against this defin it ion  th a t the sustainability  o f Stra th b o gie  Shire Council can be assessed.

The precise financia l strategy which supports f inancia l sustainabil i ty  and which balances 
com m un ity  expectations w ith  the  capacity to  pay, challenges Councils.

As part o f  this process strategies, services and investment in in frastructure  must be developed 
th a t meets the comm unity 's  needs whils t  s imultaneously remain ing affordable.

The question o f  what is 'f inancial sustainabil i ty ' and the  appropria te  strategy to  support this 
position w i l l  be answered d if fe ren tly  by every Council.

However, there  are some common questions th a t should be asked by Councils in the  strategic 
deve lopm ent process. These include:

• the  range and level o f Council services th a t are to  be offered;
• the  a ffo rdab il i ty  o f  new assets; 

the  u til isation o f existing assets;
the  quantum o f the  renewal investment compared to the  renewal demand; 
the  su itab il i ty  o f borrowings;
w he the r  rate and charge increases are sustainable w ith in  the  rate capping 
requirements; and

• i f  the  com m unity  is w i ll ing  to  pay fo r  services and infrastructure.

One mechanism Councils use to  support th e ir  f inancia l strategic deve lopm ent is to  benchmark 
th e ir  f inancia l performance to  like sized Councils or th e ir  neighbours.

How Councils compare and w hy they  are d if fe ren t are in teresting questions th a t assist 
Councils to  make u lt im ate  decisions about these complex questions.

This repor t contains a summary o f relevant benchmarking data fo r  Council to  enable this 
comparat ive  analysis to  occur.

3.2 Financial Comparisons - Benchmarking
Council Annual Reports generally contain standard and consistent financial data.

These Reports have been reviewed to  produce the data used fo r  benchmarking purposes in 
th is SRP.

The num ber o f Councils in each category is shown in the tab le  below.
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Category Councils

Description within
Category

Inner M etropo li tan 22

Interface M etropo li tan 9

Régional Cities 10

Large Shires 19

Small Shires 19

TOTAL 79

Table 2: Num ber of Councils in each C ategory- 2018 /1 9

These key performance indicators are detailed w ith in  the  relevant chapters o f  the SRP, and 
assist Council to  compare its position to  o ther Sm all Rural Councils.

3.3 Analysis of Council's Financial Sustainability

3.3.1 Financial Sustainability
The concepts most people use in th e ir  personal and business lives are basically the same as 
those th a t should be applied to  local government; however, those concepts need some 
modif ica tion.

Councils are perpetual corporations tha t manage in tergenerationa l com m un ity  services and 
assets.

Councils provide the legal fram ew ork  by which communit ies own in frastructu re  and assets 
collectively.

Underlying Operating Position (Surplus/Deficit)

The underly ing operating result as defined by the In s titu te  o f  C hartered Accountants  (2009) is 
a measure of the  financial sustainabil i ty  o f a Council.

Continuous underlying operating deficits lead to  a loss in equity, reduction in asset base, drop 
in service standards over t im e  and a deferral o f  costs to  fu tu re  generations.

The underly ing operating result is the  operational result (balanced, surplus or defic it) less 
g if ted assets, developer contr ibu tions, asset revaluations, and w r i te  offs and impacts of asset 
sales. Capital income is also excluded on the grounds it represents an "unm atched" income 
(expenditure  is not included) and it is a non-recurr ing income source.

One o f Strathb o gie  Sh ire  Council 's long-term financia l goals is to  achieve an operational 
surplus w i th o u t  the inclusion o f any capital income (against which there  is no matching 
expend iture  in the operating sta tement) and abnormal items such as granted assets.

Council 's position of( -$3 ,349  m illion) on face value compares unfavourably w ith in  the Sm all 
Rural category at ($-.671 m illion) fo r  underly ing opera ting  surplus at June 30 2018 but is 
affected by an addit ional landfil l provision taken up in 2017/18 o f  $3,718 m which equates to  
$495 per asssessment.
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Strathbogie - Comparison (Small Rural) - Underlying Operating
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Chart 1: Underlying Operating Position -  2017 /18

Liquidity

The MAV assessment asserts a work ing  capital ratio o f 100 p ercen t is generally considered 
desirable. The analysis considers th a t Councils w ith  w ork ing  capital above 150 percent may 
have the capacity to  reduce long-term  debt and preparedness to  meet day to  day obligations.

Council's w ork ing  capital ratio o f  281 percent indicates Council's l iqu id ity  is considered 
healthy reducing in the medium te rm  but staying w ith  accepted guidelines.

Rate e ffo rt

The abil ity  to  increase rate revenue is a significant fac to r  in dete rm in ing  w he ther  Council is 
po ten t ia l ly  at risk.

Rate e f fo r t  is now constrained by the State Government's  in troduct ion  o f rate capping 
legislation in the  fo rm  o f its "Fair Go" Rates system. THE FGRS or rate capping introduces an 
annual rate cap set by the M in is te r  fo r  Local Government which controls general rate 
increases fo r  all Councils during tha t f inancial year.

The M in is te r  fo r  Local Government, has advised an annual rate increase o f 2.50 per cent fo r  
the  2019/20  financial year. Councils can seek approval fo r  an increase above this f igure 
th rough  a varia t ion w ith  the Essential Service Commission (ESC).

Council's rating e f fo r t  has been satisfactory and when benchmarked is close to  the  average 
e f fo r t  o f the  Sm all Rural group.(Refer Chart 18).
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Cost and efficiency

Council is statistically a "m id  cost" council.

Adjusted Total Expenses per assessment o f $3,431 are above the Small Rural average of 
$2,725 but includes addit ional landfil l provision o f $495 per assessment and a fte r adjusting 
fo r  th is Council's costs are marginally above the  group average .Council's employee cost as a 
percentage o f to ta l expenditure is 28.7 p ercent, compared to  Sm all Rural average o f 37.41  
percent.

Rates a ffo rdab ility

A ustra lian  Taxation Office  (ATO) income data fo r  wage and salary earners (PAYE) can be used 
to  give some indication of rates a ffo rdab ili ty . The A ustra lian  Bureau o f  S tatis tics  (ABS) 
produces a set o f socio-economic indices fo r  areas known as SEIFA. The fo u r  indices in the set, 
which are based on census data, reflect the level o f  social and economic wellbe ing in local 
governm ent areas. SEIFA includes the fo l low ing  indices:

R e lative  Index of So cio -e co n om ic A d vantage  and D isad van tage  (IRSA D ): The p roport ion  o f 
famil ies w ith  h igh / low  incomes, people w i th /w i th o u t  a te r t ia ry  education and employees in 
sk il led/unskil led  occupations. Low values indicate areas o f disadvantage;

R e lative  Index of So cio -e co n om ic D isad van tage  (IR SD ): Derived from  a ttr ibu tes such as 
income, educational a tta inm en t and skill level;

Index o f Econom ic Resources (IER): Derived from  a ttr ibutes re lating income and wealth ; and

Index of Education  and O ccupation  (IEO ): reflect the educational and occupational levels of 
communit ies.

The f irs t th ree  indicators have been used to  reflect on the socio-economic status o f  local areas 
and the re fo re  abil ity  to  bear significant increases in rates. The o the r  issue Strathb o gie  Sh ire  

has to  contend w ith , and which does d is tor t these benchmarks, is th a t  the census understates 
both  num ber o f  residents and annual household income due to  the  impact o f non-resident

ratepayers.
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Strathbogie - Comparison (Small Rural) - Rates Affordability (Rates per 
Assessment/Annual Householde Income)
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Chart 2: Rates A ffordability  Small Rural -  2017 /18

3.3.2 Victoria Auditor General

The Victoria  Aud ito r  General's Off ice (VAGO) in late 2007 prepared a report on Local 
G overnm ent which outlines fo r  the  f irs t  t im e a detailed analysis on the financial sustainabil i ty  
o f  Councils and Regional Library Corporations.

The 2017/18  result compared to  the  five (5) year average fo r  VAGO's indicators o f  Council 
v iab i l i ty  are:

Ind icator Calculation Description Results
2 0 1 7 /1 8

Five
(5)
Year
Ave

N e t re s u lt N e t  re s u lt /  
to ta l  reven u e

A p o s itiv e  resu lt In d ica te s  a surp lus , and th e  la rg e r th e  
p e rc e n ta g e , th e  s tro n g e r th e  re s u lt. A n e g a tiv e  resu lt  

In d ic a te s  a d e fic it . O p e ra tin g  d e fic its  ca n n o t be 

su s ta in e d  in th e  lo n g -te rm .

2 .6 3 7 .6 2

A d ju s te d
U n d e rly in g
O p e ra tin g
R esult

A d ju s ted
un d erly in g
s u rp lu s (o r

d e fic it )  /
A d ju s ted

un d erly in g
reven u e

In d ic a to r  o f th e  b road  o b je c tiv e  th a t  an  ad ju s ted  

u n d e rly in g  surplus should  be g e n e ra te d  in th e  o rd in a ry  

co u rs e  o f  business. A surp lus  o r in c reas in g  surplus  

suggests an Im p ro v e m e n t In th e  o p e ra tin g  pos itio n .

(6 .3 3 % )* ( .0 .1 7 % )

L iq u id ity C u rre n t A s se ts /
C u rren t
L iab ilities

This m easu res  th e  a b ility  to  pay ex is tin g  lia b ilit ie s  In 

th e  n e x t 1 2  m o n th s . A ra t io  o n e  o r  m o re  m eans th e re  Is 

m o re  cash and liqu id  assets th a n  s h o rt - te rm  lia b ilit ie s

2 .8 1 2 .1 7
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Ind icator Calculation Description Results
2 0 1 7 /1 8

Five
(5)
Year
Ave

In d e b te d n e s s N o n -c u rre n t  

l ia b il it ie s / ow n  

sourced  

re v e n u e

C o m p ariso n  o f n o n -c u rre n t  lia b ilit ie s  (m a in ly  co m p rised  

o f b o rro w in g s ) to  o w n -s o u rc e d  re v e n u e . The h ig h e r th e  

p e rc e n ta g e , th e  less a b le  to  c o v e r n o n -c u rre n t  

l ia b ilit ie s  fro m  th e  re v e n u e s  th e y  g e n e ra te  th e m s e lv e s .  
O w n -so u rce d  re v e n u e  Is used ( ra th e r  th a n  to ta l  

re v e n u e ) because it  d o es  n o t in c lu d e  c ap ita l g rants , 
w h ich  a re  usu ally  t ie d  to  sp ec ific  p ro jec ts .

3 0 .3 8 * 1 7 .0 6

In te rn a l
fin a n c in g

N e t O p e ra tin g  

cash f lo w /N e t  

c ap ita l  
e x p e n d itu re

M e a s u re s  th e  a b ility  o f an e n t i ty  to  fin a n c e  c ap ita l 
w o rks  fro m  g e n e ra te d  cash f lo w . T he  h ig h er th e  

p e rc e n ta g e , th e  g re a te r  th e  a b ility  fo r  th e  e n t ity  to  

f in a n c e  cap ita l w o rk s  fro m  th e ir  o w n  funds.

1 0 2 % 1 2 7 %

C a p ita l

R e p la c e m e n t

Cash o u tflo w s  

fro m  p o p erty ,  
In fra s tru c tu re ,  

p la n t nad  
e q u ip m e n t /  

D e p re c ia tio n

C o m p ariso n  o f th e  ra te  o f s p e n d in g  on in fra s tru c tu re  

w ith  its d e p re c ia t io n . R a tios  h ig h er th a n  1:1  In d ica te  

th a t  spend in g  Is fa s te r  th a n  th e  d e p re c ia tin g  ra te . This  

Is a lo n g -te rm  In d ic a to r , as c a p ita l e x p e n d itu re  can be  

d e fe rre d  in th e  s h o rt - te rm  if  th e re  a re  in s u ffic ie n t  

fu n d s a v a ila b le  f ro m  o p e ra tio n s , and  b o rro w in g  Is n o t  

an o p tio n .

1 .7 6 1 .4 8

R e n e w a l gap R e n ew a l and  

u p g ra d e  

e x p e n d itu re  /  

D e p re c ia tio n

C o m p ariso n  o f th e  ra te  o f sp e n d in g  on existing  assets  

th ro u g h  ren ew in g , re s to rin g , and rep lac ing  existing  
assets w ith  d e p re c ia t io n . R atios h ig h e r th a n  1:1  

in d ic a te  th a t  sp e n d in g  on ex is tin g  assets is fa s te r  th a n  

th e  d e p re c ia t in g  ra te . S im ila r to  th e  c ap ita l 
re p la c e m e n t, th is  is a lo n g -te rm  in d ic a to r, as c ap ita l 

e x p e n d itu re  can be d e fe rre d  In th e  s h o rt te rm  If th e re  

are  in s u ffic ie n t fu n d s  a v a ila b le  fro m  o p e ra tio n s , and  

b o rro w in g  is no t an o p tio n .

1 .6 1 .3 5

Table 3: Strathbogie Shire Council VAGO Indicators of Council Viability

• *Affected by one off recognition of increased landfill provision of $3,718 million.

3.4 Benchmarking
In most instances Council compares favourably with its neighbours and other Sm all Rural 
Councils. When benchmarked to other Sm all R u ra l’s and neighbours Strathb o gie  Sh ire  Council 
is characterised by:

Underlying operating surplus;
Slightly above the average level of overall operational costs in comparison to 
Councils in the category;
Higher than the average rating effort;
Low debt ratios; and
Strong capital works program with sufficient priorities given to asset renewal.

Strategic Direction

1. That Strathb o gie  Shire Council continues to benchmark with other Victorian 
Councils and those within the Sm all Rural category.

2. That Strathb o gie  Shire Council applies the outcomes of this SRP to the 2019/20  
Budget.

3. That Strathb o gie  Shire Council achieves an operating surplus over the life of this 
SRP.
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4. SERVICE PROVISION AND PLANNING

4.1 Introduction
The range and level of services a Council should, or is capable of, or wants to provide is a 
complex question to consider.

It is critical that an overall understanding of the Service Planning Framework be considered 
within the context of the key service drivers including:

Community expectations: Ever changing and balanced against willingness to pay; 
Legislative requirements: e.g. Health and environmental standards 
andregulations;

• Organisational: Strategic Mission and Objectives; and
Resources: Availability of resources and funding, particularly within a rate 
capped environment.

This section includes:

• Local Government Service Planning
• Introducing a Service Planning approach 

Service Planning approach and the six key steps
• Conclusion

4.2 Local Government Service Planning

4.2.1 Service Delivery challenges

Strathbogie Shire Council is grappling with these questions as it seeks to achieve a balance 
between capital investment, renewal and service delivery. What is the correct range of 
services, what level should they be provided at and are they sustainable within a rate capped 
environment for the majority of ratepayers?

What range of services does Council provide and do these align to the Council 
Plan and service strategies?

• What level of service does Council want to provide within the capacity of the 
community to pay?

• What assets are required to underpin the required level of service and are these 
f it for purpose?

• Is the current mix of capital investment ensuring assets underpinning services 
are safe and serviceable -  is Council's renewal investment adequate?

• Are the services (range and level) sustainable over a ten year timeframe against 
the Council's longterm financial plan?

In 2019/20, Council will continue a six phase Service Planning project to facilitate answers to 
these questions. Council's long term financial sustainability is critically linked to answering 
these fundamental questions.
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4.2.2 What is Service Planning

Se rv ice  P lans define programs and projects which need to  be undertaken to  deliver the 
service and include specific in formation  on service levels, the  service provider, service cost, 
service targets, performance Indicators and the  report ing  fram ework.

Se rv ice  Plans ident ify  assets (upgrades or new) required to  support those services and reviews 
the  outcomes o f Asset Management Plans to  ensure existing assets are appropria te  fo r  the 
delivery o f  services required.

Actions are specific, based on a 10 year horizon. Having deta iled Service  Plans w ith  costed 
levels o f  service allows comparative choice decisions to  be made in a transparent manner 
when budget adjustments are required.

The service outputs should be achievable and defined w ith in  service plans which are fu l ly 
funded  and resourced w ith in  the  Council 's 10 year Long Term Financial Plan. Through this 
sustainable service delivery model Council has the  capacity to  deliver on its promises. Council 
must remain f inancia lly  sustainable to  continue to  provide services to  its com m un ity  into the  
fu tu re .

Having detailed Service  Plans w ith  costed levels o f  service w il l  a llow Council to  make 
comparat ive  choice decisions in a transparent manner i f  and when service and budget 
adjustments are required.

Se rv ice  Plans provide a clear point o f  reference to  manage and m on ito r  progress towards 
achievement o f  strategic outcomes as well as fo rm ing  the basis o f report ing  to  the com m un ity  
and State Government.

The Council acknowledges th a t there  w ill  always be many competing interests fo r  scarce 
Council resources. Adopting a service p lann ing  approach th roughou t the  organisation will 
address many o f the service delivery prior it ies and in tu rn  com m un ity  perceptions o f  Council 
performance.

The process w il l  ensure th a t Council remains com m itted  to  provid ing service levels to  the 
com m un ity  tha t are o f acceptable standard and delivered in the most e ff ic ien t and 
appropr ia te  manner.

The Strateg ic  Service  Fram ew ork f i ts  w ith in  the  broader context o f  Council operations as 
i l lustrated below:

V IS IO N

W h a t  a re  t h e  c o m m u n i t y  o u tc o m e s  
C o u n c i l  w a n ts  t o  a c h ie v e ?

\
W h a t  s e r v ic e s  a r e  r e q u i r e d  

t o  m e e t  t h e  v is io n ?
S E R V IC E S

V

W h a t  a s s e ts  a re  r e q u i r e d  t o  
s u p p o r t  t h e  s e r v ic e s ?

M A N A G E M E N T
W h a t  Is  th e  m a n a g e m e n t  r e g im e  

f o r  a s s e ts  a n d  s e r v ic e s ?
Im e

Figure 3: Strategic Service Fram ework
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4.3 Introducing a Service Planning Approach

4.3.1 Understanding Levels o f Service

Understanding the Levels o f  Service approach w ith in  a Council context is im por tan t because it 
facilitates:

Support fo r  the sustainabil i ty  o f current services;
Increasing satisfaction levels: m in imising the  gap between what is provided and 
w ha t the com m un ity  needs;

• Transparent decision making fo r  good governance; and
• A robust relationship between Levels o f  service and funding.

The object ive fo r  the  level o f service process is to  enable Council to  engage in com m unity  
consu lta tion  efforts  th a t focus on Com m unity  Levels o f  Service.

4.4 Service Plan Process: 6 Key Steps
The Service Planning process needs to  be comprehensive and cover the  entire  organisation.

All services need to  be included in the process ( including in terna l services) as the Council 
needs to  be in a position to  be able to  make in formed comparat ive  choice decisions.

•Sum m arise details o f all curren t Services
• D efine current Levels and Cost o f Services 
♦In tegrate  in to  LTFP
•R e v ie w  capital w orks and servicescost Im pact on LTFP
•  Assess financial sustainability  o f  current Services over 10 years

•  Review  align m ent o f  current services w ith  com m unity needs 
•R ev iew  current service provision against strategic plans
•  Internal re v ie w  of th e  Levels o f Service for each Service
• Develop com parative options to  im prove alignm ent

•C om m unity  and custom er engagem ent on com parative choice 
options b e tw een  services and w ith in  services

• Identify servicesfor rev iew
• Resolve associated a ffo rd ab ility  tradeoffs

•D o cu m en t revised Levels o f Service 
•Revise LTFP

•R ev iew  effic iency o f service delivery  for each service 
•Revise Operations Plan for each Service 
♦Train s taff on n e w  program s and processes

•D eve lop  perform ance indicators to  m onitor changed Levels o f 
Service and perform ance

•C om m unicate changes to  th e  com m unity and service customers 
• Im p le m e n t n ew  service levels

Council proposes tha t the service review process be undertaken in six stages.

Figure 4: Service Plan Process - 6 Key Steps
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4.4.1 Stage 1 -  Current Practices Sustainability Assessm ent

This first stage takes a holistic approach and prepares a 10 year Service Profile and a Service 
Cost Evaluation for all services to assess the long term sustainability of the Council's range of 
services.

At the end of s tage  1 Council will have a detailed understanding of the:

Range of Services it provides to the community;
Levels of Service for each Service;
Projected cost of each service over the forward 10 year period;
Life cycle cost impacts of capital works associated with the service delivery;

• Long term financial sustainability of Council's current service model; and
Framework under which Council can make informed choices around resource 
allocation to specific service areas.

Figure 5: Current Practices Sustainability Assessment

These Plans also provide a direct linkage to Service Plans and to implementing program and 
projects defined in the Service Plans with specific actions and budgets generally for years 1 
and into year 2.

Stage 1 is largely complete but there is a need to review data following recent restructure and 
the 2 0 1 8 /1 9  Budget before proceeding with Stage 2.

4.4.2 Council Budget
Council's operation includes provision of building, planning, economic development services, 
community services, infrastructure planning, operations and corporate support services 
including finance, information technology, asset management and organisation development.

Council's operating costs and revenues for 2 0 1 9 /2 0  are $27,814 million and $29,435 million 
respectively with forecasts for the next 10 years contained in A p p e n d ix  B.

The Capital Works Program is explained in more detail in Section 5.

4.4.3 Human Resource Needs

Council's Human Resources are integral to the delivery of Council's services. Council's overall 
adjusted operating expenses per assessment (adjusted to remove depreciation) in the graph 
below show Councils total operating costs benchmarked to like sized Councils.

Council's operating costs per assessment are slightly above the average and Council's 
employee costs as a % of total expenses are lower than the average. Employee costs are one
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element o f  these costs. Councils use employees or contractors to  deliver services. Council 's 
employee costs as a percentage o f operating expenses have been benchmarked to  similar 
sized Councils in Victoria are also detailed hereunder:

Strathbogie - Comparison (Small Rural) - Total Operating Expenses (excl—«— Group Average 

P ^^eciation) per Assessment (Total op exp-depn/ra te able props)_____________

$3,500 • 

¿3 non _

Chart 3 - Operating Expenses per Assessment 2017 /1 8

Strathbogie - Comparison (Small Rural) - Employee Costs as a % of •G roup Average

or x cr g a?

Chart 4 - Employee Costs % Operating Expenses 2 0 1 7 /1 8

0 ^
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The table below details the S tatem ent o f  Human Resources fo r  the oncoming fo u r  years:

2019/20
$'000

2020/21
$'000

2021/22
$'000

2022/23

S ta ff Expenditure
Employee Costs 10,468 10,766 11,073 11,389
To ta l sta ff exp enditure 10,468 10,766 11,073 11,389

EFT EFT EFT EFT
S ta ff num bers
Employees 113 113 113 113
To ta l sta ff num bers 113 113 113 113

Table 4 - Statement of Human Resources - For the four years ended 30 June 2023 

R e co n ciliatio n  of sta ff num bers

Balance  as per 2018/19 Budget 103.0
Transfer in o f  employees in Parks and Gardens previously on contract 5.0
Net e ffect o f restructure  in Governance and Regulation -  cost neutral 
and improved service -  service in house

2.2

Increased resource in Rates .40
Increased resource in Economic Development .25
Increased resource in Youth -  m ajor i ty  externally funded .60
Increased resource in Transfer Station .42
Addit iona l Roads Employee 1.0
Addit iona l Human Resources employee 1.0
M in o r  Adjustments (.79)
EFT 2019/20 Budget 113.08

In 2019/20 employee numbers have been affected by the  transfer o f  previously contract 
oou tdoo r  s ta ff  to  Council e m p lo y m e n t , w h ils t a cost neutra l restructure o f  Governance and 
Regulation including Environmental Health w h ils t increasing sta ff numbers has significantly 
increased service levels.

4.5 Conclusion
Managing financial sustainabil i ty  and the range and level o f  services provided w il l  remain an 
ongoing challenge, part icularly  in a now rate capped environment.

This w ork  continues in the context o f  improving f inancia l sustainability, linking in frastructu re  
planning to  service planning and resource constraints.

Council w i l l  demonstrate  clear and transparent decision making in a llocating scarce resources 
whils t delivering the best service outcomes from  amongst the  many a lternatives demanded by 
the comm unity , a crit ical outcome o f the proposed service planning framework.

Strategic Direction

1. That Strathb o gie  Sh ire  Council continue the  Service Planning process in 2019/20 
via a strategic service planning fram ew ork  incorporating annual budget, 
departm enta l operational plans, capital works evaluation and long te rm  financial
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plan leading to a determination of the appropriate range and levels of service 
for the community.

2. That Strathbogie Shire Council, as part of the development of its Service Plans, 
consults with the community to determine how service levels will be reached 
including a combination of improved revenue raising, review of existing service 
levels, asset disposal and composition of the asset portfolio.
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5. CAPITAL WORKS PROGRAM

5.1 Introduction
The previous section discusses the long-term issues w ith  respect to  Service Planning.

It should be noted per cent o f the capital expenditure  is on renewal and upgrade type projects 
in the d ra ft capital works program fo r  2019/20. The to ta l  capital program o f $8,295 million is 
composed o f $.415 million in new and expanded assets and $7.88 million in renewal and 
upgrade.

The proposed program fo r  2019/20 comprises $5,931 million in renewal and $1,949 million in 
upgrade.

Also allowed fo r  is $1 m ill ion to commence rehab il i ta t ion  o f  the V io le t Town L an d f i l l , which is 
funded th rough a reduction in the provision already made.

This section includes:

Level and nature o f  capital works;
2019/20 Capital Investment levels 
Capital fund ing sources; and 
Capital Works Evaluation process

The benchmark fo r  2017/18 capital expenditure  levels by Small Rurals is i l lustrated below:

Strathbogie - Comparison (Small Rural) - Capital Expenditure per
$2,000

$ 1,800
Assessment

■Group Average

Chart 5: Capital Expenditure -  2 017 /1 8

Capital expenditure  per assessment is higher than average in 2017/18 at $1,350 per 
assessment as compared to  $982 fo r  the average Small Rurals.
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5.2 Level and Nature of Capital Works
It is im por tan t th a t  the Asset M anagem ent issues raised in the  next section inform the 
decisions taken in determ in ing  the capital works program .Four key outcomes from  the long
te rm  financia l plan w ill  be:

To maintain the  annual crit ical renewal investm ent - s e c t io n  6;
To maintain agreed service levels as de term ined in Council's Service Plans- 
section 4;

• M ainta in  average cond it ion where desired; and
Invest in new assets subject to  principles espoused in section 4.

5.2.1 Capital works 2019/20  -  2027/28 -  Param eters2028/29

The fo l low ing  are the  parameters against which the  2019/20  capital works program has been 
developed:

A lignm ent to  Stra tegic Resource Plan financial g rowth  assumptions w ith  respect to 
expend iture  and revenue;
Priority  provision fo r  crit ical renewal investment, then capital renewal, capital upgrade 
w ith  capital expansion and new, the most discretionary.

In terms o f the  longer te rm  program to  2028/29 the fo l low ing  parameters/assumptions apply:
• Large one -o ff  projects flagged in subsequent years require accurate costing to  be 

undertaken and the ir  t im ing  and prior i ty  finalised;
Continue p r io r i ty  on renewal, fo l low ed  by upgrade w ith  expansion and new, the most 
d iscretionary;

Income assumptions to  remain conservative given they  are less predictable; and
• Roads to  Recovery income assumed to  continue at known level spread across relevant 

projects w ith in  the  Roads Program.

5.3 2019/20 Capital Investment Levels
The 2019/20  capital works program by expenditure type is detailed hereunder:

Capital
Expenditure
Type

2019/20

S

2019/20

%

Renewal 5.931 71.5

Upgrade 1.949 23.5

New .415 5.0

TOTAL 8.295 100

Table 5: Capital Works Summary -  2 019 /2 0

5.4 Capital Funding Sources
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A 10-year capital works program has been developed and this wil l  enable a precise cash f lo w  
budget to  be developed.

This program w ill  be refined during the 2019/20  financial year by Council 's Community  Assets 
departm ent.

External capital fund ing sources include capital grants, developer contr ibu tions and special 
charges schemes.

Internal capital funding sources include land sales, asset sales, special charge schemes and 
general rates. The SRP forecasts capital fund ing  sources conservatively.

5.5 Capital Works Evaluation Process

5 . 5.1 Evaluation Process

Objective: to  provide qua lita t ive  and economically measurable in fo rm ation  to  assess and 
prior it ise  capital funding. This w il l  ensure th a t  scarce funds are rationed to  projects in o rder 
o f  merit. This is primarily  defined th rough fo u r  stages, Strategic Assessment, Needs Analysis, 
Needs A lignm ent and Priorit isation.

Our process in preparing the dra ft budget is: -

Strategic Assessment
1. Council intends to  maintain its existing in frastructu re  and its focus is o f  'renewing ' its 

existing assets ahead o f o the r 'upgrade' 'expand' and or 'new ' possibilities;
2. Renewal items will  be evaluated fo r  th e ir  v iab i l i ty  and continu ing f i t  w ith  com m un ity  

desires and the  Council Plan;

Needs Analysis
3. Respond to  addit ional Council decisions;
4. Development o f  'Business Cases' to  consider Committees o f  Management and 

com m un ity  aspirations. Business cases are recognised as a useful too l to  evaluate 
proposals fo r  ongoing costs, sustainability, risks and pro ject preferences. Business 
cases w il l  be f i t  fo r  purpose;

Needs A lignment
5. Considering the  needs o f  mult ip le  services toge ther  and looking fo r  alignments and 

synergies and the possibil ity o f bringing them  toge ther  into shared spaces;

Priorit isation
6. Program to  meet realistic t imelines -  considering consultation, approval and external 

fund ing  requirements;
7. Capital works w ill  be priorit ised w ith  reference to  the Council Plan, fund ing  sources 

and the  comm unity 's  wishes, up to  the  lim its o f budget capacity, the  'balanced 
budget'.

The business case process is designed to  achieve a num ber o f practical outcomes. These are: -
•  Prevent poorly developed ou tpu t spec if ica t ions/functiona l briefs going to  market
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•  Ensure risks are allocated to  the party th a t  can best manage them
• Embrace a broader range o f delivery models
•  Realised improved value fo r  money outcomes in capital works procurement

5.5.2 W hole o f Life Costing

It is imperative  th a t  all proposals fo r  new and upgrade have the  full whole of life costs 
calculated and disclosed as part o f  the evaluation process and th a t  the operating and 
maintenance are calculated and placed in the lo n g te rm  financia l year f o r t h e  life o f  the  asset.

5.6 Conclusion
Council's capital works program underpins the needs and prior it ies as determ ined by Council 's 
capital evaluation process.

It is the Council's challenge to  develop Service Plans and /Asset M anagem ent Plans th a t ensure 
the  com m un ity 's  levels o f service are m et th rough the  delivery o f  e ff ic ient and effective 
services.

Strategic Direction

1. That Strathbogie Shire Council maintains its capital works com m itm ent at levels 
th a t meet or exceed the targets established in th is SRP, and develops a 10-year 
capital works program.

2. That Strathbogie Shire Council in it ia lly  focuses capital works on mainta in ing a 
crit ical renewal level based on mainta in ing a m in im um  service level at levels 
indicated in Table 7 (Section 6.5 Condition Assessment), w ith  the next p rior i ty  
on renewal, upgrade and expansion.

3. That any bids fo r  expansion, new and upgrade o f assets come from  the  Service 
Managers as arising from  th e ir  Service Plans.
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6. ASSET MANAGEMENT

6.1 Introduction
Linking asset management to Council's strategic financial direction is fundamental to 
achieving the goal of long-term financial sustainability.

This section includes:

Council's asset portfolio at 30 June 2018;
Key questions to determine service level/investment;

• Asset investment;
• Condition assessments;
• Management Systems; and 

Strategic asset management.

6.2 Council's Asset Portfolio - 30 June 2018

6.2.1 Current Assets

Accounting for an asset requires the recognition of all costs associated with asset ownership 
including creation/acquisition, operations, maintenance, rehabilitation, renewal, depreciation 
and disposal.

This "life cycle" approach needs to be recorded at an individual asset level so all the costs of 
owning and operating assets are known and understood.

For accounting purposes assets are grouped into current and non-current assets. Current 
assets are cash or those assets that are considered to be readily convertible to cash.

This asset grouping includes cash at bank, investment funds, stock on hand, debtors and land 
held for resale. The balance of current assets held by Strathbogie Shire Council at 30 June 
2018 was $ 17.49 million.

Non-current assets consist of Council's debtor accounts not expected to be collected in the 
coming 12 months and Council's fixed assets not yet sold.

Fixed assets consist of land, buildings, plant, furniture, roads, drains, playgrounds and other 
similar infrastructure assets.

The total value of fixed assets at 30 June 2018 was $286.7 million. The balance of this section 
will focus on the fixed assets and the management strategies that Council is pursuing.

6.2.2 Non-Current Fixed Assets

Councils all over Australia are facing the problem of ageing assets in need of renewal.

Many of these assets were not initially funded by councils, but came by State and Federal 
government grants, developer contributions, or from a shift of responsibilities for State owned 
assets to Local Government.

Council's fixed assets and land held for resale at 30 June 2018 total $287.4 million.
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6.2.3 Depredation Expense

Depreciation expenses, useful lives and the  rate at which the  economic benefits or the service 
potentia l o f  the  asset are consumed is reassessed fo l low ing  cond it ion assessments and when 
asset va luations are undertaken.

All changes to  depreciation expenses have been reviewed by Council 's external aud itor  and 
reported to  Council 's A u d it Com m ittee  p rior to being adopted by Council.

Council 's depreciation expenses as a percentage o f  its to ta l  assets are benchmarked and 
depicted in the  fo l low ing  graph:

Strathbogie - Comparison (Small Rural) - Depreciation on Group Average

3.50%

3.00%

2.50%

2 .0 0%

1.50%

1.00%

0.50%

0 .00%

nfrastructure/lnfrastruetureAssets

Chart 6: Depreciation on In frastructure/In frastructure Assets -  2 017 /1 8

6.3 Key Questions to Determine Service 
Level/Investment

The key questions w ith  respect to  in frastructure  investment are detailed below:

1. How much does It cost ratepayers to  retain the  curren t In frastructure portfo lio , 
th a t  is, w ha t is the  long-term average cost o f  renewal plus maintenance?

2. W hat assets support services and the re fo re  should be renewed and reta ined as
opposed to  assets th a t  are surplus and should be rationalised?

3. How much w ill  need to  be spent in the short te rm  (next 10 years) relative to  the
renewal expenditure  invested in the  recent past?

4. How much more management e f fo r t  (financial and operational) w il l  be required 
o f  Council as its assets age?

5. W hat assets are at the  "a t risk" phase ( in te rven t ion  level) o f th e ir  life cycle and 
w il l  u lt im ate ly  result in th e ir  being unserviceable and unsafe?
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6. W hat outcomes would  the com m un ity  and Council like to  achieve w ith  respect to  
asset upgrades? For example, w ou ld  Council like to  see an extension to  the 
sealed road network, or p layground network?

7. Are the Council assets provid ing the  level o f  service expected by the  comm unity?
8. What assets should the  com m un ity  "manage fo r  decline" -  public halls, 

buildings, bridges, roads?

6.4 Asset Investment
Asset investment can be made in the fo l low ing  ways:

Type of 
Expenditure

Definition Purpose/Example

M aintenance Expenditure on an asset th a t m ain ta ins the 
asset in use, bu t does no t increase its service 
po ten tia l o r life .

M a in ta in ing  asset se rv iceab ility  by repa ir eg 
repa iring  a single pipe In a dra inage ne tw o rk , 
o r a pot hole in a road.

New asset 
expend itu re

Means expend itu re  th a t creates a new  asset 
th a t provides a service th a t does n o tcu rre n tly  
exist. New asset expend itu re  does n o t have any 
e lem en t o f renew al, expansion o r upgrade o f 
existing  assets. New capita l expend itu re  may or 
may no t resu lt in add itiona l revenue fo r  council 
and w ill resu lt in an add itiona l burden fo r  
fu tu re  opera tion , m aintenance and cap ita l 
renewal.

Retains an existing service level, e.g. Re
sheeting a road reseals, resurfacing an oval.

Asset renewal 
expend itu re

Means expend itu re  on an existing asset o r on 
replacing an existing asset, th a t re tu rns  the 
service capab ility  o f the  asset to  its o rig ina l 
capability . It  has no im pact on revenue, but 
may reduce fu tu re  opera ting  and m aintenance 
expend itu re  i f  com ple ted a t the  op tim u m  tim e.

Increases the  q u a lity  o f service prov ided  to  
ratepayers o r provides new services, eg. 
W iden ing the  pavem ent o f a sealed area o f an 
existing  road.

Asset expansion 
expend itu re

Means expend itu re  th a t extends th e  capacity 
o f an existing asset to  provide benefits  to  new 
users at the same standard as is p rov ided  to  
existing  benefic iaries.. It is d iscre tiona ry  
expend itu re  w hich increases fu tu re  ope ra ting  
and m aintenance costs, because it  increases 
council's  asset base, bu t may be associated 
w ith  add itiona l revenue from  the  new  user 
group.

Extends services to  new ly deve loping areas o f 
th e  Council w here the re  are new ratepayers, 
eg. Extending a road o r drainage n e tw o rk , new 
pre-school.

Asset upgrade 
expend itu re

Means expend itu re  th a t enhances an existing 
asset to  prov ide  a h igher level o f service o r 
th a t w ill increase the  life  o f the  asset beyond 
its orig ina l life . Asset upgrade expend itu re  is 
d iscre tiona l and o ften  does no t resu lt in 
add itiona l revenue unless d irec t user charges 
apply. It w ill increase opera ting  and 
m aintenance expend itu re  in the  fu tu re  because 
o f the increase in the  council's  asset base.

Provides new assets fo r  services th a t do no t 
cu rre n tly  exist

Table 6: Expenditure Definitions -  Asset M anagem ent -  2019 /2 0

It is im por tan t Council records its expenditure  correct ly  as the impacts o f  capital investment 
d if fe r  between these categories -  fo r  example who le  o f life costs fo r  new assets as opposed to  
renewal.
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6.5 Condition Assessment
M on ito r ing  asset cond it ion  and performance relates to  the ab i l i ty  o f  the  asset to  meet 
ta rgeted  levels o f  service. Asset cond it ion  reflects the  physical state o f  the asset and the 
func t iona l level o f  service it is capable o f providing.

M on ito r ing  asset cond it ion  and performance th roughou t the  asset life cycle is im portan t in 
o rder to  ident ify  underperform ing assets or those which are about to  fa il. Council has 
developed its Asset M anagem ent System  to  readily m on ito r  asset condit ion and performance 
and to:

Iden tify  those assets which are under perform ing;
Predict when asset fa i lure to  deliver the  required level o f  service is likely to 
occur;

• Ascertain the reasons fo r  performance deficiencies; and 
Determine w ha t corrective action is required and when (maintenance, 
rehab il i ta t ion , renewal).

6.6 Management Systems
Council has de term ined tha t no asset's condit ion  w il l  be allowed to  go below its 
p rede te rm ined  in terven tion  levels as the cost o f renewal s ignif icantly  increases and the 
asset's func t iona l ity ,  safety and abil ity  to  provide its in tended service level is compromised.

Council has largely collected condition data fo r  all o f  its m ajor asset categories and is now in a 
position to  commence detailed Service Plans and update Asset M anagem ent Plans.

The benefits o f  knowing the  current cond it ion  and performance (level o f service) an asset 
provides are:

• Ab i l i ty  to  plan fo r  and manage the delivery o f the  required level o f service;
• Avoidance o f  premature asset failure, leaving open the option o f cost-effective 

renewal;
• Managing risk associated w ith  asset failures;
• Accurate prediction o f  fu tu re  expenditure  requirements; and
• Refinement o f maintenance and rehab il i ta t ion  strategies.

The Asset Management System should not only records asset cond it ion  and asset 
defects /inspection  details; it should also provide f inancial management and year-end 
accounting and valuat ion data.

Priority is on fund ing  the annual renewal annuity  based on p redeterm ined service levels 
generally described as in tervention  levels- the maximum level an asset can deterio ra te  to  
p r io r  to  renewal investment.This level has been set at 3%.

The in terven tion  level is theore t ica lly  where the assets service life has expired and renewal 
investment is required to  restore service potentia l - eg. Road needs resheeting to  be useable.

Council, as asset managers, need to  be able to  assess the  relative merits o f rehab ili ta t ion  /  
renewal /  rep lacement options and identify  the op t im um  long-te rm  solution th rough a 
decision related to  levels of service. Council needs to  strategica lly determ ine an affordable 
level o f  service to  manage the emerging cond it ion  profile.

The benefit  o f th a t knowledge now is the  management process can commence across the 
ent ire  asset portfo lio .

Page 35 of 84



SRP 2018

Asset Group Nam e Asset Set Description
R etreat.
In terven tion
Condition

U rb a n  Roads G ro u p P a vem en t (H igh  T ra ffic )  U rban 7 .5 0

U rb a n  Roads G ro up P a vem en t (L o w  T ra ffic )  U rban 8 .0 0

U rb a n  Roads G ro up "A sphalt Seal 8 .0 0

(H igh T ra ffic )  U rb a n "

(Low  T ra ffic )  U rb an " 7 .5 0

U rb a n  Roads G ro u p Spray Seal (H igh  T ra ffic )  U rb a n 7 .5 0

U rb a n  Roads G ro u p Spray Seal (L o w  T ra ffic )  U rb a n 7 .5

U rb a n  Roads G ro u p All Kerbs 8 .0 0

Rural Roads G roup P a v e m e n t (H igh  T ra ffic )  Rural 7 .5 0

Rural Roads G roup P a v e m e n t (L o w  T ra ffic ) Rural 8 .0 0

Rural Roads G ro up Spray Seals (H igh  T ra ffic )  Rural 7 .0 0

Rural Roads G ro up Spray Seals (L o w  T ra ffic )  Rural 7 .0 0

Rural Roads G ro up S h o u ld er P a v e m e n t (H igh T ra ffic  o r N a rro w  Seal) 8 .5 0

Rural Roads G ro up S h o u ld e r P a v e m e n t (Low  T ra ffic ) 8 .5 0

Unseal Road G ro up P a v e m e n t (H igh  T ra ffic )  U n sealed 6 .0 0

Unseal Road G ro up P a v e m e n t (Low  T ra ffic )  U n sealed 7 .5 0

P a th w a y  G ro up C o n cre te  P a th w a y s  &  areas 7 .0 0

P a th w a y  G ro up Brick Paved P a th w a y s  &  areas 7 .0 0

P a th w a y  G ro up S ealed  P a th w ays 7 .0 0

P a th w a y  G ro up All o th e r  P a th w ays 7 .0 0

B ridges G ro up Long Life B ridges 8 .0 0

B ridges G ro up S h o rt Life B ridges 8 .0 0

S to rm  W a te r  G ro up Pits 8 .0 0

S to rm  W a te r  G ro u p Pipes 8 .0 0

B uild ings G ro up S tru c tu re  Long Life 8 .0 0

B uild ings G ro up S tru c tu re  S h o rt Life 8 .0 0

B uild ings G ro up R o of S tru c tu re 8 .0 0

B uild ings G ro up M e c h a n ic a l Serv ices 8 .0 0

B uild ings G ro up B uild ing  Fit O u t 8 .0 0

R e c re a tio n  G ro up S tre e t &  P ark  F u rn itu re 8 .0 0

R e c re a tio n  G roup A c tive  Reserves (F o o ty  O vals e tc ) 8 .0 0

R e c re a tio n  G roup M a n ic u re d  T u r f  (B o w lin g  G re en s  e tc ) 8 .0 0

R e c re a tio n  G roup Play E q u ip m e n t 8 .0 0

R e c re a tio n  G roup S y n th e tic  P laying Surfaces 8 .0 0

R e c re a tio n  G roup All Lighting 8 .0 0

Table 7: Intervention Levels by Service Area -  Asset Set -  2019 /2 0

Council needs to improve its knowledge with respect to its open space structures, information 
technology and recreation assets.

6.7 Strategic Asset Management
Council reviews its Asset Management Policy reviewed on a triennial basis.

Other major elements are the Asset Management Strategy which details specific actions to be 
undertaken by Council to improve asset management capability and achieve specific strategic 
objectives.

Asset Management Plans are subsequent components where long-term plans (10-years and 
beyond) outline renewal requirements for each asset category.
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The table below explains the objectives and typical contents of these documents:

Asset Management Strategy Asset Management Plans
Specific actions to  be undertaken by Council in o rde r 
to  im prove  or enhance asset m anagem ent capability  
and achieve specific s trateg ic  objectives.

Long-term  plans (usually 20 years o r m ore fo r  
in fra s tru c tu re  assets) th a t ou tline  the asset activ ities  
fo r  each service area.

Develops a structured set of actions aim ed at enabling 
im proved asset m anagem ent by Council.

Outlines actions and resources to provide a defined 
level o f  service in the most cost effective way.

•  A descrip tion  o f the cu rren t status o f asset 
m anagem ent practices (processes, asset data and 
in fo rm a tio n  systems).

•  O rgan isa tion 's  fu tu re  vision o f asset 
m anagem ent.

•  A descrip tion  o f the requ ired status o f asset 
m anagem ent practices to  achieve the  fu tu re  
v is ion.

•  Id e n tif ica tio n  o f the  gap between the  cu rre n t 
status and the  fu tu re  v ision (a "gap analysis").

•  Id e n tif ica tio n  o f strategies and actions requ ired 
to  close the  gaps, includ ing resource 
requ irem en ts  and tim efram es.

•  A sum m ary o f Council's s tra teg ic goals and key 
asset m anagem ent policies.

•  D e fin itio n  o f levels o f service and perform ance 
standards.

•  Demand forecasts and m anagem ent techniques.
•  D escrip tion  o f the  asset p o rtfo lio .
•  A broad descrip tion  o f the  lifecycle m anagem ent 

ac tiv itie s  fo r  opera ting , m ainta in ing, renew ing, 
deve lop ing  and disposing o f assets.

• A cashflow  forecast.
•  Key asset m anagem ent im p rovem en t actions 

inc lud ing  resources/tim efram es.

Table 8: Asset Management Plan Objectives & Document Content

Council has reached the point where it has identified and funded its critical renewal -  no 
asset's condition goes beyond those shown in Table 7 (Section 6.6 Management Systems).

Council is now in a position to analyse its condition profile and determine and understand the 
cost of a predetermined service level.

Alternatively Council may allow some assets to degrade in condition, freeing up funds to 
improve the level of service for other assets.

6.7.1 Com m unity Consultation

Council alms to ensure its assets are relevant to the community, as retention of unused assets 
places a financial burden on the community. Council's Strategic Resource Plan is presently 
focused on funding a "service level" that prioritises critical renewal and maintains average 
condition to meet community expectation.

The challenge ahead Is to understand the community's expectations and provide service level 
and funding options to accommodate these.

The target for Council In 2019/20 will be to engage Council and the community in discussions 
about levels of service to provide the opportunity for differing service levels to be costed and 
reviewed.

Sound Asset Management is:

• Knowing what assets we own (Asset Register);
• Understanding the condition and expected lives of our assets;
• Knowing what 'levels of service' customers want- service planning;
• Having processes in place to establish priorities and allocate funds;
• Knowing the long-term funding requirements associated with our assets; and
• Having documented Asset Management Plans detailing levels of service will be a

challenge during 2019/20.
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What services, including their performance levels, are required to meet the 
community outcomes?
Finally what infrastructure or assets are required to support the service level?

Too often Council starts focusing on the asset rather than on the outcome/service level it 
requires. A review of this nature may result in assets no longer being required to support 
community outcomes.

6.7.2 A sset M anagem ent Working Group

The Asset Management Working Group (AMWG) is a cross-functional professional team with 
representatives from all Council departments.

The purpose of the AMWG is to oversee the decision-making process with respect to the 
direction of asset management and to ensure the Council continues to develop total asset 
management across the organisation.

The Asset Management Working Group's Terms of Reference include:

Guiding Council's overall Asset Management Program;
• Setting priorities for system development while keeping in mind the legislative 

obligations of Council (e.g. Strategic Resource Plan and Council Plan etc.); 
Facilitating the implementation of appropriate asset management systems and 
asset management plan development; and 
Reviewing asset management resource requirements.

There is still a deal of work to be done on recording and developing Service Plans and Asset 
Management Plans.

6.7.3 Renew al Dem and

The following details the impact of Council's investment in renewal and the consequential 
impact on the percentage of assets outside intervention.

Council has increased its renewal investment over recent years and the most recent modelling 
has shown the results of this effort . In respect of roads the consultant said :

"Council’s road assets were found to be in very good overall condition , with a quite 
measurable improvement since the last survey in 2014 .“Council has done a great job in lifting 
the renewal funding levels on the road network over the past decade, and it now appears it can
be eased back a little for some years . But it is predicted to grow strongly in the second decade
//

And in respect of bridges :

“The bridge assets were found to be in good overall condition with a quite measurable 
improvement across all six condition indicators since the time of the last survey. The extent of 
the asset base at and above condition 7 has been lowered from 9.1% in 2014 down to 1.5% in 
2017.This is really an outstanding achievement and reflects the very high priority given by 
Council to the bridge assets over the past decade."
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Proposed Renewal Exp. S • AM Asset Groups 
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Chart 7: Proposed and Predicted Renewal Expenditure C h a r t -2018 /1 9

The fo l low ing  graph depicts the predicted level o f renewal expenditure  required across all 
asset categories fo r  Council unti l  2038.

PREDICTED ANNUAL CAPITAL REQUIREMENT IN $
To Treat All Assets that Reach Intervention - Separated by Asset Group
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Chart 8: Proposed Renewal Expenditure Profiles Chart -  2018 /19

Council w i l l  aim to  ensure tha t its assets are relevant to  the  com m unity , as re tent ion  o f 
unused assets places a financial burden on the  community .

Council 's S tra teg ic Resource Plan is trans it ion ing  to  focus on fund ing  a "service level" tha t 
prioritises crit ical renewal and maintains average cond it ion  to  m eet comm unity  expectation.

To fac i l i ta te  this process, Council w il l  engage in consultation w ith  key stakeholders including 
discussions on the  key questions w ith  respect to  in frastructu re  investment and service levels, 
as deta iled in Section 5.
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6.8 Conclusion
Council's prior it ies fo r  the  2019/20  f inancial year as regards Asset Management are:

A sset M anagem ent Plans: Develop tactics to  manage renewal demand/gap post the 
comple tion  o f Stage 1 of the service planning process.
Review  Levels of service: In con junction w ith  stage 1 o f the service planning process. 
Review  o f A sset h ierarchies: Determine if current categories and service levels are 
appropriate.
Field te st condition  data: Review useful life left versus cond it ion  rating based on a f ie ld  
analysis to  ensure quality and in te rpre ta t ion  o f condit ion is accurate.
R e valuation  of A ssets: Develop a schedule fo r  the revaluation o f  assets and ensure 
cond it ion  assessments are done concurren t ly  to  facil i ta te  review o f useful lives etc. 
Increased renew al investm ent: Continue investment in renewal to  ensure the fu tu re  
safety and serviceability o f assets.
Continue  p articipation  in N ational A sse t M anagem ent A ssessm en t Fram ew ork (N A M A F):
Recommence in the  NAMAF program and recalibrate assessment in line w ith  current 
objectives and practices.
Im proved data: Improve component data fo r  recreation assets and buildings.

Strategic Direction

1. That Strathb o gie  Shire Council, having established its crit ical renewal investment
levels, maintains detailed Asset M anagem ent Plans (focused on renewal
demand) fo r  all classes o f Council assets incorporating service level assessments.

2. That Strathb o gie  Shire Council, as part o f  the deve lopm ent o f its Service Plans,
consults w ith  the com m un ity  to  dete rm ine  how service levels w il l  be reached
including a combination o f improved revenue raising, review o f existing service 
levels, asset disposal and composit ion  o f the asset portfo l io .

3. That Strathb o gie  Shire  Council adopts as policy the  annual a llocation o f  funds to  
meet 100 per cent of the comm unit ies  in frastructure  renewal needs before it 
elects to  upgrade or construct new assets.
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7. BORROWING STRATEGIES
This section includes:

• Measuring what level o f  debt is appropriate;
Borrowing Assessment Policy;

• W ha t do financial indicators mean;
W hat is a p rudent level o f debt; and

• Future Loan Program.

7.1 Measuring Which Level of Debt is Appropriate
Each Council is d if fe ren t and the  level o f  debt th a t is appropr ia te  fo r  Council may not be 
adequate fo r  another Council.

The fo l low ing  factors are seen as im portan t issues fo r  de libera tion  by Council:

• level o f  debt servicing as a p roport ion  o f rate revenue; 
abil ity  to  raise revenue in addit ion to  rates;
level o f  realisable assets to  support the  indebtedness; 
achieving the  r ight mix o f capital works and debt comm itments ; 
g rowth  rate o f munic ipality ; and

• com m un ity  g rowth  needs.

The tab le  below highlights the  relative debt levels o f  Councils w ith in  the  Sm all Rural grouping 
at 30 June 2018. Council 's relative debt level is also shown. By comparing a num ber of 
d if fe ren t debt ratios w ith in  the Council grouping, Strath b o gie  Sh ire  Council can begin to 
consider w ha t level o f debt is appropriate.

The tab le  below confirms tha t Strathb o gie  Shire Council is cu rren t ly  be tte r  than average and 
b e t te r th a n  the median across all o f  the  debt indicators w ith in  the  Sm all Rural grouping.

Strathbogie - Comparison (Small Rural) - Debt Per Capita Group Average

$1,200 ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Chart 9: C o m p ariso n  o f Total D ebt Levels w ithin  Sm all Rural G roup  201 7/18
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In terms of total debt levels, Council is below the average with the Small Rural grouping, refer 
to Chart 9.

Strathbogie - Comparison (Small Rural) - Total Debt •  Group Average
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Chart 10: Comparison of Total Debt Levels within Small Rural Group 2017/18

Relative debt ratios for the Strathbogie Shire Council will remain well within State 
Government Prudential Guidelines throughout the life of the SRP.

7.2 Borrowing Assessment Policy
Strathbogie Shire Council assessed its capacity to borrow against the (Better Practice) former 
Victorian State Government's Prudential Guidelines.

The administration of the Local Government sector's borrowing involves:

The collation of the sector's borrowing requirements through an annual survey;
The assessment of individual Strathbogie Shire Council's borrowings; and 
Recommendation to the Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF) of the aggregate net 
new borrowing requirement of the sector.

All borrowings by individual Councils are assessed under a borrowings assessment policy 
adopted by the Local Government Division. The policy identifies key areas of financial 
management with certain thresholds that are required to be met.

Detailed below is Council's current and projected performance on a number of the financial 
indicators which are necessary for borrowing approval by State Government.
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Area Financial Ind icator Threshold
(P ruden tia l
Guidelines)

Position
2 0 1 8 /1 9

Budget
2 0 1 9 /2 0

L iqu id ity C urren t Assets to  Current 
L iab ilities

1 .5 % 1 .6 1 1 .4 1 *

Debt Servicing Debt Servicing Costs as a % o f 
Tota l Revenue

5 % .1% .1%

Debt
C om m itm en t

Debt Servicing and Redemption 
Costs as a % o f Rate Revenue

1 0% .9% .7%

Table 9: State Government Prudential Guidelines- 2016/17 to 20167/18

Strathbogie Shire Council was well w ith in  the State Government Prudential Guidelines as at 
30 June 2018.

® in c lu d e s  approx. $3,145 m in leave enti t lem ents  , a significant port ion o f which is not due 
w ith in  12 months

7.3 W hat do the Financial Indicators Mean?
The graphs below detail the  previously mentioned financia l indicators and present the 
council 's position graphically.

The th resho ld  detailed against each ind icator is the m in im um  level council must meet in order 
to  achieve approval to  borrow  from  the  State Government.

To encourage longer te rm  planning by councils, the  f ram ew ork  also includes an assessment o f 
reasons fo r  the new borrowings.

This rationale is explained in the council 's policy, which is to  fund long te rm  intergenerationa l 
assets from  loan funds to  ensure intergenerationa l equity. Strathbogie Shire Council 's forecast 
is w ith in  the  State Government prudentia l guidelines at June 30, 2018 fo r  most indicators.

7.3.1 Liquidity

How measured Current assets over current l iabil it ies

Threshold 110 percent or higher

Description This ind icato r reflects the shor t- te rm  l iqu id ity  position. That is, the
council 's ab il ity  to  repay cu rren t com m itm ents  f rom  cash or near cash
assets. Councils w ith  a ratio o f  110 percent and below or w ith  a 
de te r io ra t ing  trend may be financia lly  at risk o f  no t being able to  meet 
creditors '.

< 3 ^
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Strathbogie - Comparison (Small Rural) - Liquidity/Working Capital 
---------------------- ra tio (C A /C L )-------------------------------------------

•  G roup A verage
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Chart 11: Current Assets /  Current Liabilities -  2 017 /1 8

Strathbogie Shire Council's working capital ratio as at June 30, 2018 was 281 percent (that is, 
current assets over current liabilities), which is in excess of the 110 percent benchmark, which 
would be the minimum acceptable level.
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7.3.2 Debt M anagem ent

How measured

Threshold

Description

Total debt as a percentage o f rate revenue 

80 percent or below

The Local G overnm ent A ct 1989 requires th a t  all loans are secured 
against the  revenue stream from  rates. A council w ith  to ta l  debt in 
excess o f the revenue from  rates would  be unable to  meet all debt 
com m itm ents  f rom  rate revenue should they  be required to  be paid at 
one t im e. A th resho ld  o f 80 percent has been set.

Chart 12: Total Debt as a Percentage of Rate Revenue -  2 017 /1 8

Strathbogie Shire Council 's debt as a percentage o f rate revenue as at June 30, 2018 was 3.73 
percent, which is well below the  80 percent benchmark and well below the Small Rurals 
average.

< 3 ^
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7.3.3 Debt Servicing
How measured Debt servicing costs as a percentage o f adjusted to ta l revenue

Threshold 5 percent or below

Description This ind icator reflects the p roport ion  o f to ta l revenue th a t is used to
service debt ( in terest on outstanding debt and any loan adm in is tra tion  
charges) and which cannot be used direct ly  fo r  service delivery. A 
th resho ld  o f 5 percent has been set.

Strathbogie - Comparison (Small Rural) - Debt Servicing ratio ■Group Average

1.20%

1.00 %

0.80%

0.60%

0.40%

0 .20%

0 .00%

^ in terest/To ta l revenue)

» »  - »— ♦— ♦

(ù V <> O
cf

A?

Chart 13: Debt Servicing Ratio (Interest /  Total Revenue) -  2 017 /1 8

The Strathbogie Shire Council's projected ratio is . 24 percent at 30 June 2018, which is below 
both the state and Small Rural's average and the  5 percent benchmark.

This i l lustrates the benefit o f  taking loans over a longer period o f t im e  such th a t  each 
generat ion o f ratepayers incurs a modest share o f the  long te rm  cost o f  provid ing long life 
com m un ity  assets.
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7.4 W hat is a Prudent Level of Debt?
The fo l low ing  graph introduces an addit ional financial ratio namely debt com m itm en t costs as 
a percentage o f rates. Debt com m itm en t costs include principal and interest repayments in a 
year.

The ratio details how much o f the  Council's rate dollar is being spent to  repay debt a nd 
in terest as an overall percentage o f the Council 's rate revenue.

W hat should the debt servicing and redemption costs be fo r  Stra thbogie  Shire Council, if any? 
This ratio  is the most im portan t ra tio  as it provides the  best ind icato r o f the a ffo rdab il i ty  o f 
debt fo r  a com m unity  and Council.

Strathbogie - Comparison (Small Rural) - Debt Commitment ratio 
((in te res t& red em p tio n )/ra te rev en u e)____________ ■Group Average
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Chart 14: Debt Servicing & Redemption /  Rate Revenue -  2 0 1 7 /1 8

Council needs to  determ ine w ha t a p rudent level o f debt is given th a t it is a growing Small 
Rural th a t  services a com m un ity  greater than its populat ion and rate base.

The examination should determ ine :

• If the Council was to  borrow, w ha t types o f  projects should these funds be put 
towards; and

• If the Council was to  borrow, on w ha t terms should these borrowings be 
structured

Debt is generally used to  fund capital expansion projects or new projects (i.e. It should not be 
used fo r  renewal or maintenance) when the asset life is greater than one generat ion  tha t is, 
o ften  described as in tergenera tiona l equity.

The in tergenerationa l equ ity  th eo ry  is based on the premise th a t successive generations and 
new residents should contr ibu te  to  in frastructure  or facilit ies th a t they  will  enjoy and benefit 
from .

Generally these include m ajor facilit ies (pre-schools, halls, arts centres) where  the  benefit  o f 
the investment will  extend beyond the current ratepayers. By borrow ing, the  Council ensures 
today 's  ratepayers are not fu l ly  fund ing  these facilities.
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There are limits on borrowings due to the costs of interest payments. If the council was to 
borrow too heavily it would result in an inability to invest in capital works due to funds being 
consumed in debt repayment.

Therefore a balance is important.
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8. RESTRICTED ASSETS

8.1 Introduction
Victorian Councils have trad it iona l ly  operated w ith  reserve funds th a t  are allocated fo r  
specific purposes. These funds do not have bank accounts o f th e ir  own but are a theoretica l 
sp lit-up o f Council's equity. Discretionary reserves are used only as an ind icator o f funds fo r 
specific purposes and represent w ha t those funct ions have earned.

This section includes:

Nature and purpose o f restricted assets

8.2 Nature and Purpose of Restricted Assets
Strathbogie Shire Council allocates expenditure fo r  known outlays and revenues, d irect ly  to 
the  f inancia l year where  the expenditure  w ill  be incurred, ra ther than to  specific reserve 
funds.

The 2019/20  Stra teg ic Resource Plan is framed around having su ff ic ien t cash reserves to  cover 
restr icted assets which are primarily  developer open space contr ibu tions, long service 
en t i t lem ents  and grant funding.

Strathbogie Shire Council also generally provides fo r  at least $3 million to  $4 million in 
work ing  capital to  meet day to  day needs.

8.2.1 Developer Contributions
Development con tr ibu t ion  receipts and payments or in-kind works, facilit ies or services 
provided by developers towards the supply o f in frastructure  (generally by the Strathbogie 
Shire Council) required to  meet the fu tu re  needs o f a part icu la r comm unity , o f which the 
deve lopm ent forms part.

Levies can be raised th rough D evelopm ent C ontribu tion  Plans ("DCP"s) fo r  a range o f State and 
local governm ent provided in frastructure  including roads, public transport,  storm w ate r  and 
urban run -o ff  management systems, open space and com m un ity  facili t ies.

Under the curren t legislative fram ework, any funds th a t have been received from  developers 
fo r  those in fras truc tu re  works, under a DCP or free ly  negotia ted agreements must be held in 
reserve or " res tr ic ted "  fo r  tha t actual in frastructure  and cannot be reallocated fo r  o ther non
related capital projects.

Addit iona lly ,  even if the  Strathbogie Shire Council does not achieve its predicted expenditure, 
the  works represent Council com m itm ent to infrastructure , and any unspent funds are 
rou t ine ly  reserved fo r  the in frastructu re  in readiness fo r  when it is actually required to  be 
delivered.

These projects should also be placed in the relevant year o f  the  10 year capital works 
program.

y
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8.2.2 Waste Strategy
Council aims to  cover the  costs of waste management including collection and disposal as 
well as Transfer station and landfil l  operations from  user fees and waste charges . In adiit ion 
Council has a provision fo r  landfil l rehab ili ta t ion.

8.2.3 Unexpended Grants

These are Grants recognised as revenue during the year th a t were obta ined on condit ion th a t 
they  be expended in a specified manner th a t had not occurred at balance date.

8.2.4 Notional Reserves, Am ounts held in Trust

It is a requ irem ent o f Council to  separately ident ify  trus t funds or refundable deposits as 
"res tr ic ted  assets". While the council is able to  access these funds in its day to  day treasury 
management, the  financial s ta tements must recognise tha t a component o f its cash balances 
relates to  deposits th a t  may be refundable in the  fu tu re .

Restricted Assets Estimate

30 June 
2018

$ 00 0 ’s

Unexpended Capital W orks 5 .3 79

Am ounts held in Trust .894

T o ta l 6.273

Table 10: Restricted Assets -  2017 /1 8

Strategic Direction

1. That Strathbogie Shire Council builds into its 10 year f inancial plan the estimated 
movements in restr icted assets and provides fo r  at least $3 million to  $4 million 
in work ing capital to  meet day to  day needs.

2. That to  ensure suff ic ient funds are available to  meet operational needs, 
Strathbogie Shire Council reta ins a cash position o f at least $3 million to  $4 
million afte r  deducting restricted assets, i.e. cash received but not spent or cash 
to  be spent fo r  specific purposes such as developer contr ibu tions 
( in frastructure), waste fac il i ty  deve lopm ent, security deposits etc.
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9. RATING AND OTHER REVENUE STRATEGIES

9.1 Introduction
This section includes:

• Valuations;
• Components o f Strathbogie Shire Council's rating base;

Background to  present rating system;
Rates A ffordab il i ty ;
Rating Strategy;
Rate Capping;

• Rating Strategy 2019/20;
• Waste services;

Grant revenue;
Victoria Grants Commission; and

• Fees and charges revenue.

9.2 Valuations
Valuations are conducted under the provisions o f  the  Valuation o f  Land Act (1960) w ith  each 
separate occupancy on rateable land computed at its net annual value (NAV), capital improved 
value (CIV), and site value (SV).

Valuations are carried out using Valuation Best Practice Principles as set down by the  State 
G overnm ent Valuer General. In Strathbogie Shire Council, general valuations are required 
annually to  ensure a common date is used fo r  all valuations. Data on every p roperty  is 
recorded and used by the appointed valuer, along w ith  sales, rentals and o the r in form ation  to 
dete rm ine  the  valuations.

A general va luation (revaluation) establishes the value o f a p roperty  relative to  all o ther 
propert ies, th a t  is, its market relativ ity. Valuations fo rm  the basis o f Strathbogie Shire 
Council's rating system; there fore , th e ir  accuracy is o f  paramount importance. The 2018 
revaluation was undertaken based on property  values a t l  January 2019.

The revaluation does not in i tse lf raise the to ta l  rate income fo r  Strathbogie Shire Council, as 
the  rates are d is tr ibuted based on the property  value o f all propert ies across the munic ipality. 
As a result o f  the revaluation, some p roperty  owners may pay more in rates and others less, 
depending on th e ir  new property  va luation, relative to  others.

9.2.1 Definitions o f valuations

Strathbogie Shire Council uses the capital improved m ethod o f valuation (CIV), which is the 
market value o f a property  including land, buildings and improvements. CIV has the  fo l low ing  
long-term advantages relative to  o the r  va luation bases:

f lex ib i l i ty  to  apply an un l im ited  range o f strategic d ifferentia ls;
does not prejudice the industrial, commercia l and retail sectors in terms o f the
rate burden; and
is easier fo r  people to  understand.
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The other valuation bases the Valuer is required to return are:

Site value (SV) which is the market value of land excluding improvements; and 
Net annual value (NAV) which represents the reasonable annual rental of a 
property, minus specified outgoings. In most cases this is five percent of the CIV.

9.2.2 Supplem entary valuations
Supplementary valuations are made during the financial year when a significant change to the 
valuation occurs. The most common causes for supplementary valuations are:

construction of a new dwelling or building; 
subdivision of a property; or 
consolidation of properties

Strathbogie Shire Council presently undertakes this task on a monthly basis.

As a result of a supplementary valuation, a rate notice is issued to reflect any change in rates.

9.3 Components of Council's Rating Base
Strathbogie Shire Council levies differential rates, annual service charges and a municipal 
charge, to raise its annual rates and charges revenue.

The legislative basis of how they apply to Strathbogie Shire Council are available upon 
request:

Differential Rates -  Legislation;
Municipal Charges;
Special Rates and Charges;

• Service Rates and Charges; and 
Rebates and Concessions

9.4 Assessment of Current Rating Levels
Comparing the relativity of rating levels between Councils can be a difficult exercise due to 
debate over the most appropriate methods to use and the inability to take into account the 
intricacies of rating structures in different councils.

Each local government sets rates based on an assessment of the desires, wants and needs of 
its community and as each community is different, direct comparisons can be difficult. For 
example, cash holdings of municipalities vary and councils have significantly different 
infrastructure needs and geographic sizes.

Each municipality also has significantly different levels of capital works, funding structures for 
capital works and varying debt levels.
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Chart 15: Rates as % of Total R evenue- 2017 /1 8

Strathbogie - Comparison (Small Rural) - Rates & Charge/ResidentiaJ-*— Group Average

$2,500 --------------------------------------------- Assessment-

52,ooo

$1,500 ■-

$ 1,000

Chart 16: Rates & Charges per Residential Assessment -  2 017 /1 8

On a rates per residential assessment Strathbogie Shires rating effort is approximately $455 
above the average of the benchmark group.

Higher comparative rating levels do not necessarily represent a position of weakness or 
inefficiency.
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External funding bodies may consider levels of rating effort in their funding decisions, i.e. low 
rates could be construed as less preparedness at the local level to match the external 
contribution.Higher rating can also indicate that a council has opted for more control o f  its 
destiny, e.g. to achieve a particular project for the community that would otherwise be out of 
reach.

Strathbogie - Comparison {Small Rural) - Rates per Assessment « * “ G roup  A verage

$3,000.00 -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

$2,500.00

Chart 17: Rates Per Assessment -  2 0 1 7 /1 8

On rates per assessment basis in the 2017/18 financial year, Strathbogie Shire Council was 
above average for the Small Rural group.

What is most critical in setting a rating structure is for Strathbogie Shire Council to be 
accountable and responsible for the policy decisions with respect to the range of services 
provided, the expenditure and delivery of the services and the way services are funded and 
paid for by the community.
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Council's rate effort is similar to those in the Small Rural Council category , as shown in Chart 
17 below.

Strathbogie - Comparison (Small Rural) - Rate Effort Ratio (Rate
Revenue/CIV)

■ Group Average
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Chart 18: Rate Effort Ratio -  2017 /1 8

9.5 Background to the Present Rating System
Prior to dealing with the rating strategy, it is important to have a broad knowledge of the 
present rating structure and trends.The following tables summarises the rates in dollar levied 
in the 2018/2019 year including a comparison with 2017/18:

Differential Rate Type Cents in/$ CIV 

2017/18

Cents
in/$CIV

2018/19

Change

(%)

Rateable Residential Properties .5340 .4830 -9.55

Rateable Farm Properties .4539 .3985 -12.2

Rateable C om m erc ia l/Industria l 
Properties

.6408 .5796 -9.55

Rateable Vacant C om m erc ia l/Industria l 
Properties

1.215 1.0143 -16.5

Rateable Vacant Residential Land .93458 .84525 -9.55

Table 11: Rates and Charges Annualised - 2017 /1 8

The table below outlines the total rates and charges for 2017/18 and2018/19:
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Description Total
Annualised

2017/18

($)

Total

2018/19

($)

Change

(%)

General Rates 14,272,431 14,713,999 3.09

M un ic ipa l Charges 1,793,186 1,825,000 1.77

W aste Service Charges 2,380,359 2,512,000 5.50

Special Rates and Charges 42,000

Total Rates and Charges 
Revenue

18,445,976 19,092,999 3.27

Table 12: Rates and Charges 2 0 1 7 /1 8  as compared to  2 0 1 8 /1 9

Type of Property 2018/19

($)

Rateable Residential Properties 6,534,548

Rateable Farm Properties 6,699,937

Rateable C om m erc ia l/Industria l Properties 798,306

Rateable Vacant Land 681,208

TOTAL 14,713,999

Table 13: Individual Rates Annualised 2 018 /1 9

9.6 Rates Affordability
The ability to increase rate revenue is a significant factor in determining whether a Council is 
potentially at risk.

Strathbogie Shire Council's rating effort has been satisfactory and when benchmarked was 
above the average effort of the Small Rural group.

Australian Taxation Office (ATO) income data for wage and salary earners (PAYE) can be used 
to give some indication of rates affordability.

Page 56 of 84



SRP 2018

Chart 19 : Rates Affordability  Small Rural -  2 017 /1 8

The Rates Affordability Chart above details the percentage of income that pays rates and 
charges to Council.

9.7 Rating Strategy
Strathbogie Shire Council's rating strategy establishes a framework by which rates and 
charges will be shared by the community. In developing a long-term financial plan, rates and 
charges are an important source of revenue.

The rating system determines how Strathbogie Shire Council will raise money from properties 
within the municipality. It does not influence the total amount of money to be raised, only the 
share of revenue contributed by each property.

The total money to be raised is taken from Strathbogie Shire Council's long-term financial 
plan.

Strathbogie Shire Council and the community invariably confront trade-offs and the principles 
are designed to improve the quality of decision making in this environment.

The principles were synthesized from a number of sources including the work published by a 
number of authors quoted in the Productivity Commission report, Assessing Local Government 
Revenue Raising Capacity.

Strathbogie Shire Council can then exercise its legitimate governance role and determine not 
only who wants what service and who benefits but what is socially equitable, that is, who pays 
how much.
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Use was also made of long-established principles in the public finance and economics 
literature, as well as some of the principles outlined in recent Financial Sustainability reports 
around the nation.

The principles of the Rating Strategy include ensuring the capacity for:

Sustainable financial management
Evaluating and setting priorities
Core functions
Service delivery
Prudent borrowings
Rate setting and pricing for services
Openness and transparency
Providing services on behalf of other tiers of government.

Appendix C details the rating principles in more detail.

Council has reviewed current rating differentials, and is proposing to continue to levy a 
municipal charge but to reduce the charge from $266 to $133 and a tree management levy. 
Councils are able to levy a municipal charge on each rateable property within the municipality 
with the exception of farms where a single municipal charge is payable on multiple 
assessments operated as part of a single farm enterprise.

The municipal charge is a fixed charge per assessment regardless of the valuation of that 
property and is used to offset some of the governance costs of the Council. It cannot generate 
more than 20 per cent of the revenue raised from rates and the municipal charge. These 
options have been looked at in the context of shifting the rate burden, rather than increases 
in rates and charges .

Council has considered its Rating Strategy in preparation of the 2019/20 Budget and proposes 
to alter the Farmland rate differential from 82.5% of the Residential rate to 80%.

Adjustments to the rating structure above will cause some redistribution of the rate burden , 
with some 60-70% of properties having increases at or below the general rate increase.

The following table summarises the effect on the rate in the dollar of proposed changes to the 
rating structure.

Current
Structure

Municipal Charge 
$266, Farm 

D ifferential 82.5%, 
Tree M anagem ent 

Charge 
Charge 2018/19

M unicipal Charge 
$133, Farm 

D ifferential 80%, 
Tree M anagem ent 

Charge 
Charge 2019/20

Rateable Residential Properties Y 0.4830000 .50194

Vacant Land Residential p roperties Y 0.8452500 .87839

Rateable Farm Properties Y 0.3984750 .40155

Rateable C om m erc ia l/Industria l 
Properties

Y 0.5796000 .60232

Vacant Land C om m ercia l/ 
Industria l P roperties

Y 1.0143000 1.054

M un ic ipa l Charge Y 266 133

Tree M anagem ent Charge Y 27 28
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Table 14: Summary rate in the dollar -  proposed changes rating structure -  2019/20

The Council believes the use of this Rating Strategy provides a more equitable distribution of 
the rate and charge burden across the various property types and categories.

9.8 Rates and Charges Budget -  2019/20
A key decision of Strathbogie Shire Council during the life of the SRP is to determine the 
rating structure and the level of rate increase that will address funding levels for capital 
works, service provision for the municipality and improve Strathbogie Shire Council's long
term financial sustainability.

Council has established a rating structure which is comprised of two key elements. These are:

• Property values, which reflect capacity to pay and form the central basis of 
rating under the Local Government Act 1989
A "user pays'" component to reflect usage of services provided by Council

Striking a proper balance between these elements provides equity in the distribution of the 
rate burden across residents.

Council makes a further distinction within the property value component of rates based on the 
purpose for which property is used; that is, whether the property is used for residential, 
commercial, industrial, farming or a social purpose such as public housing or recreation.

The distinction is based on the concept that different property categories should pay a fair 
and equitable contribution to rates, taking into account the benefits those properties derive 
from the local community and Council.

Council's current rating structure comprised of five differential rates (Residential, Residential 
Vacant, Farmland,Commercial/Industrial and Commercial/Industrial Vacant).

The vacant land residential rate is set at 175% of the residential rate and the vacant 
commercial rate is set at 210% of the residential rate , whilst the commercial/industrial rate is 
set at 120% of the residential rate.The Farm Rate will be set at 80% of the Residential rate.

These rates are structured in accordance with the requirements of Section 161 "Differential 
Rates" of the Act and in line with Ministerial Guidelines for differential rating.

First Flome Buyers

Council intends to grant a rebate of two years rates to each owner who qualifies for the 
Victorian Government First Flome Owners Grant, on the following basis:

• Proof of approval for State First Flome Buyers Grant ($20,000) to be provided
• Council will excuse the rates and municipal charge for a period of two years from

commencement of the first full financial year In which the rates are payable by the 
new owner.

Home Buyers will qualify :
> For a newly built home sold for the first time -  applied from the date of contract of 
purchase
> For a house and land package -applied from date of contract of purchase
> For a vacant block which new home is to be built -  applied from the date of contract 
to build house
>Maximum value of property is $750,000
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Pensioners
Rebates and concession are granted to pensioners who qualify under the Victorian State 
Concessions A c t .

Elloura

In addition Council grants a rebate to each owner of rateable land within the Elloura 
development who qualify under the Owners Corporation Agreement in recognition of services 
being provided within the development not requiring Council resources.This is subject of an 
agreement between Council and Elloura.

9.9 Rate Capping
Rate effort isnow constrained by the State Government's introduction of rate capping 
legislation in the form of its "Fair Go" Rates system (FGRS).

The FGRS or rate capping introduces an annual rate cap set by the Minister for Local 
Government which controls general rate increases for all Councils during that financial year.

The Minister for Local Government has advised that a capped average rate increase of 2.50 
per cent will apply for 2019/20 financial year

Councils can seek approval for an increase above this figure through a variation with the 
Essential Service Commission (ESC).

9.10 Waste Service Charges -  Waste Collection Service 
and Tree Management Program

Strathbogie Shire Council is empowered under Section 162(1) (b) of the Local Government Act 
(1989) to levy a service charge for the collection and disposal of refuse. The purpose of this 
charge is to meet the costs of waste disposal and recycling activities throughout the 
Strathbogie Shire area, including development and rehabilitation of Landfill sites and the 
operating costs of Landfills and Transfer Stations as well as providing for important tree 
management activities including disposal of material. Strathbogie Shire Council has typically 
used this option through the raising of garbage and recycling charges on the annual rate 
assessment.

Strathbogie Shire Council’s Waste Services includes:

• Weekly kerbside waste collection service;
Fortnightly kerbside recycling and green organics collection service;

• Public recycling and waste disposal and transfer station facilities;
• Commercial disposal facility and Landfill;

Street litter and public place recycling bins; and 
Forward planning and for capital budget requirements.
Tree Management Program

Strathbogie Shire Council's garbage proposed charges are as described below (** denotes ex 
GST). A total income of $2.65 million will be received for waste and recycling services in 
2019/20 to support recurrent operating expenditure).
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Service Charge Charge per 
Service 

2018/19

($)

Charge per 
Service 
2019/20

($)

Change

($)

Change

(%)

Kerbside/R ecycling/O rganics 530 552 22 4.1

Recycling C ollection 171 178 7 4.1

Garbage Charge 240 litre  bin 720 750 30 4.1

Garbage Charge 120 litre  bin 360 375 15 4.1

Tree M anagem ent 27 28 1 3.7

Table 15: Projected W aste Charges -  2 019 /2 0

9.11 Grant Revenue
As at 30 June 2018 Strathbogie Shire Council was below average in terms of receiving 
recurrent government grant revenue, compared to its like Council grouping as outlined in the 
graph below.

As a benchmark Strathbogie Shire Council receives 17.4 percent of its revenue (as a 
percentage of total revenue) from recurrent operating grants compared to the average of 
Small Rurals at 22.44 percent.

Strathbogie - Comparison (Small Rural) - Recurrent Grants/Total Group Average

4 0 .0 0%

^  x*

Chart 20 : Recurrent G rants/Total Revenue -  2017 /18

Strathbogie Shire Council must continue its strong focus on securing grant revenue, 
particularly for capital works. Grants (capital and operating) at 30 June 2018 totalled $10,264 
million .With a longer term capital works program in place Strathbogie Shire Council should 
be able to target and focus on grants that align with its overall strategic direction.
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9.12 Victoria Grants Commission
Strathbogie Shire Council receives approximately 17 percent of its revenue from the Victoria 
Grants Commission.

9.13 Fees and Charges Revenue
Strathbogie Shire Council's fees and charges revenue as a percentage of its total revenue is 
below average for Small Rural’s as outlined in the graph below. There is scope for Strathbogie 
Shire Council to review fees and charges to ensure maximum return for service.

Chart 21 : Fees & Charges/Total Revenue -  2 0 1 7 /1 8

Strategic Direction

That Strathbogie Shire Council;

1. retains capital improved value (CIV) as its valuation base;
2. provides a municipal charge of $133 for 2019/20 to ensure an equitable 

contribution towards the unavoidable fixed costs of Strathbogie Shire Council;
3. considers future increases in tree and waste management charges based on EPA, 

regulatory and safety requirements , to cope with challenges in recycling 
markets and the need to sustain the Council's long term waste operations 
strategy;

4. in 2019/20, adopts an percent capped average rate increase of 2.25% for 
general rates (excluding supplementaries) and a 4.1 percent increase in waste 
collection charges including funding the cost of disposal of domestic waste, 
recycling collection and the tree management levy;

5. pursues recurrent grant funding and strategic capital funding aligned with 
Council Plan objectives, including benchmarking of results with other Councils; 
and

6. undertakes detailed analysis on the level of existing fees and charges and 
investigates new revenue sources and report recommendations to Council.
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10. STRATEGIC FINANCIAL PLAN

10.1 Introduction
There are a number of dynamic variables that may influence the outcomes expressed in this 
SRP. They include:

Rating levels and supplementary rate income;
• Government grant revenue (both recurrent and capital);
• Granted asset amounts;
• Asset revaluations (major impact on fixed asset value and depreciation);
• Asset sales;

Mix of funding between capital works/special projects (new initiatives); and
• Level of growth factor applied to expenditure items /  rate of expenditure/activity 

level.
This section includes:

Modelling methodology;
Financial assumptions;
Adopted financial strategy; and 
Conclusion

10.2 Modelling Methodology
The SRP establishes a framework for Council to benchmark its performance and an industry 
developed long term financial software model has been utilised to verify the data. The base 
point used for financial modelling has been the Council budget for 30 June 2019, and mid year 
revenue.

The Standard Statements (financial statements) are the result of the modelling and are 
reproduced from the long term financial software model, refer Appendix B.

10.3 Financial Assumptions
The following information explains the major financial assumptions applicable to the financial 
option considered by Council prior to community input.

10.3.1 Labour and on-costs

Increases in labour and on-costs are composed of two elements. The elements are enterprise 
agreement increments and movements within bandings as part of the annual performance 
review process. The table below highlights these assumptions.



SRP 2018

Year 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

% % %

EBA Banding 2.15 2.1 1.5
Increase /O ther
A w ard Increm ents .75 .75 .75

Tota l 2.95 2.85 2.50

Table 16: Labour and on-costs -  2 019 /2 0

10.3.2 Depreciation

Depreciation estimates are based on the projected capital spending contained within each 
assumption. Depreciation estimates are influenced by future asset revaluations and 
depreciation expenses are assessed following condition assessments. The overall depreciation 
charge is also impacted by the amount of assets granted to the municipality following 
subdivision.

10.3.3 M aterials and contracts
These materials are essentially one-off expenditures that do not constitute the creation of an 
asset and have been maintained at 2017/18 levels through the life of the SRP.

The broad assumption in materials and contracts is for an increase matching CPI. Outside of 
the broad parameters are expenses such as election expenses and insurances.

A subsidiary record of one off items and how they are factored into the model is 
recommended instead of a series of individual adjustments within the model.

10.3.4 Special projects/consultancies

These works are essentially one-off expenditures that do not constitute the creation of an 
asset and have been maintained at 2019/20 levels through the life of the SRP.

10.3.5 Debt servicing and redem ption

Debt redemption is calculated according to the restructured loan schedules. Council 
borrowings are dealt with in detail in Section 9.

10.3.6 W ritten-down values o f assets sold

All written-down values relate to plant and land sold as part of the 10-year program. These 
are based on Information from Council's Asset Registers.

10.3.7 Rate revenue

The 2019/20 Budget is based on an increase of 2.25 percent for rates and the continuation of 
a a municipal charge but reducing it from $266 to $133 and reducing the farm rate differential 
from 82.5% to 80 %. Council's Rating Strategy is dealt with in detail in Section 9.7.

The mechanism to estimate supplementary revenue is at present an arbitrary one, based on 
historical dollar returns with forward probable development revenue estimated.
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10.3.8 Service charges

The 2019/20 Budget is based on service charge and waste management charge was based on a 
3.0 percent increase.

Funds raised are ultimately deployed to waste management (operating and capital) activities. 
This is discussed in Section 9.10 in more detail.

10.3.9 Grant revenue

An allowance of $6,015 million has been made as operating grant revenue for services and 
projects in 2019/20. In broad terms, a 2-3 percent per annum increase has been allowed for 
operating grants reflecting the nature of this revenue type, which has seldom increased by CPI 
across the board.

10.3.10 Fees and charges

Fees and charges that Council has discretion over have been increased by 3.0 percent per 
annum. Fees and charges of $.771 million have been provided for in 2019/20.

10.3.11 Statutory Fees and Fines

Council has no control over a large amount of statutory fees prescribed by the State 
Government. Fines include town planning, local laws and the animal pound. Fees and fines are 
included in the above.

10.3.12 Interest on investm ents

Interest on investments has been estimated based on cash flow.

10.3.13 Proceeds from  sale o f assets

Proceeds from sale of assets are those relating to plant changeover and land sales.

10.3.14 Capital grants

Capital grant revenue is $2,173 million in 2019/20, with revenue from future years estimated 
to fund future capital works.

Capital grants have been forecast conservatively. Funds raised above or below the forecast 
amount will directly impact on the level of capital expenditure achievable. While conservative 
amounts have been included, it should be noted that Council does not pursue part-funded 
capital works that do not f i t  with its strategic direction.

10.3.15 Granted assets

Granted assets are those handed over to Council following the completion of a subdivision. 
These include roads, footpaths, kerb, channel, drainage etc.

The level of granted assets is forecast to continue at low-levels based on predicted levels of 
property development.

Flowever, estimates beyond 2019/20 are not based on any reliable data at this point. While 
granted assets add to Council's overall asset base, they also add to the future obligations to 
maintain and replace these assets at the end of their useful lives.
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10.3.16 Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure amounts for new assets, local roads, buildings and information technology 
(renewal), and the like and have been directly budgeted for during the next 4-years. The 
balance of capital expenditure has been left unallocated at this point.

These funds may be available for capital renewal (priority), capital upgrade or expansion. 
Conclusion

The SRP continues to provide a financial framework for Council, enabling an assessment of 
Council resources and assisting Council to plan and fund capital infrastructure and meet future 
community aspirations.

The Financial Statements are detailed in Appendix B.
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11. APPENDIX A: GLOSSARY OF TERMS
TERM DEFINITION

Act The Local Government Act 1989.

Activities The operations of the council including services 
undertaken to meet the needs of the community as 
reflected in the council plan and are generally ongoing 
in nature.

Adjusted operating 
surplus/deficit

Operating surplus/deficit less revenue from capital (non
recurrent) grants, developer contributions (i.e. assets 
contributed), asset revaluations, sale of assets plus 
expenditure from asset revaluations, WDV of assets sold 
and unfunded superannuation expense.

Adjusted total operating 
expenses

Total operating expenses as per the "Statement of 
financial performance" -  net of asset revaluations, 
unfunded superannuation expense and WDV of asset 
sold.

Adjusted total revenue Total revenue from "Statement of financial 
performance" -  net of asset sales, asset contributions in 
kind. Capital grant funding and revaluation adjustments.

Annual report A report of the council's operations of the previous 
financial year and contains a report of operations, 
audited financial statements and an audited 
performance statement.

Australian Accounting 
Standards

The accounting standards published by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board.

Average Rate Cap Means an anmount expressed as a percentage amount, 
based on the change to CPI over the financial year to 
which the cap relates, plus or minus any adjustment.

Borrowings Loan funding.

Budget A plan setting out the services and initiatives to be 
funded for the financial year and how they will 
contribute to achieving the strategic objectives specified 
in the council plan.

Capital works expenditure Expenditure on non-current assets and includes new 
assets, asset renewal, asset expansion and asset 
upgrades.

Council cash Funding from council's own sources of income. Example 
include rates, charges, investments and reserves, 
interest and asset sales.

Council plan A plan setting out the medium-term strategic objectives, 
strategies, strategic indicators and resources reflecting
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TERM DEFINITION

vision and aspirations of the community for the next 
four years.

Current assets Total current assets from "Statement of financial 
position".

Current liabilities Total current liabilities from "Statement of financial 
position"

Debt redemption Debt principal's repayments.

Debt servicing costs (interest) Total borrowing costs or interest expense as per the 
"Statement of financial performance" or as disclosed in 
the notes of the council statements.

Details list of planned capital 
works expenditure

A list of projects in relation to non-current assets by 
class and expenditure type.

Developer cash contributions Cash contributions from developers. This does not 
include in-kind works or developer contributed assets.

Federal grants Grant funding from the Commonwealth government.

Fees and charges revenue Total fees and charges revenue as per the "Statement of 
financial performance" or as disclosed in the notes of 
the council statements (includes fines).

Financial performance 
indicators

A set of indicators measuring the effectiveness of 
financial management in a council covering operating 
position, liquidity, obligations, stability and efficiency.

Financial resources Income, expenditure, assets, liabilities, equity, cash and 
capital works required to deliver the services and 
initiatives in the budget.

Financial statements The financial statements and notes prepared in 
accordance with the Local Government Model Financial 
Report, Australian Accounting Standards and other 
applicable standards as they apply to the general 
purpose financial reports and a statement of capital 
works and included in the annual report.

Financial year The period of 12 months ending on 30 June each year.

General Order Means an order made by the Minister under section 
185D of the Act.

Grant income and 
reimbursements

Total grants revenue as per the "Statement of financial 
performance" or as disclosed in the notes of the council 
statements (includes VicRoads sometimes shown as 
"reimbursements" by some councils).

Granted assets Total value of assets received from developers (in kind) 
as per the "Statement of financial performance" or as 
disclosed in the notes of the council statements.
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1 TERM DEFINITION

Higher cap An amount expressed as the average rate cap specified 
in a general order plus an additional percentage amount 
in respect of that financial ear.

Human Resources The staff employed by a council.

Indicator What will be measured to assess performance.

Initiatives Actions that are one-off in nature and/or lead to 
improvements in service.

Interest earnings Total interest received as per the "Statement of 
financial performance" or as disclosed in the notes of 
the councils statements.

Local Government Model 
Financial Report

The model report published by the department of 
Environmnet, Land, Water and Planning

Major initiatives Significant initiatives that will directly contribute to the 
achievement of the council plan during the current year 
and have a major focus in the budget.

Measure How an indicator will be measured and typically includes 
a numerator and denominator.

Minister The Minister for Local Government.

Model Budget The Victoiran City Council Model Budget prepared 
annually by the Chartered Accountants in Australia and 
New Zealand.

No. of rateable properties Number of rateable properties in municipality.

Non-current liabilities Total non-current liabilities from "Statement of financial 
position".

Non-financial resources The resources other than financial resources required to 
deliver the services and initiatives in the budget.

Non-recurrent grant A grant obtained on the condition that it be expended in 
a specified manner and is not expected to be received 
again during the period covered by a council's strategic 
resource plan.

Philanthropic or private 
contributions

Funding from philanthropic or private sources. An 
example would be a co-contribution by the private 
sector towards construction of a community asset.

Performance statement A statement including the results of the prescribed 
service outcome indicators, financial performance 
indicators and sustainable capacity indicators for the 
financial year and included in the annual report.

Planning and accountability 
framework

The key statutory planning and reporting documents 
that are required to be prepared by councils to ensure 
accountability to local communities in the performance
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TERM DEFINITION

o f functions and exercise o f powers under the  Act.

Proceeds from  sale o f non- 
cu rren t assets

Total proceeds from  asset sales as per the  "S ta tem ent o f 
financ ia l perfo rm ance" or as disclosed in the  notes o f 
the  council sta tem ents, (gross received not w ritte n - 
dow n value).

Rate revenue Total rate revenue as per the  "S ta tem ent o f financia l 
perfo rm ance" or as disclosed in the  notes o f the  council 
sta tem ents.

Rates ou ts tand ing  at end o f 
year

Rate d eb to r am ount as disclosed in "Receivables" note.

Recurrent g rant A grant o th e r than a non -recu rren t grant.

Regulations The Local G overnm ent (Planning and Reporting) 
Regulations 2014.

Report o f Operations A repo rt con ta in ing  a descrip tion  o f the  operations o f 
the  council during  the  financia l year and included in the 
annual report.

Services Assistance, support, advice and o th e r actions 
undertaken by a council fo r the  b ene fit o f the  local 
com m unity .

Special o rder An o rder made by the  ESC under section 185E o f the  Act.

State grants Grant fund ing  from  the  State governm ent.

S tra tegic objectives The outcom es a council is seeking to  achieve over the  
next fo u r years and included in th e  council plan.

S tra tegic resource plan A plan o f the  financia l and non-financ ia l resources fo r  at 
least the  next fo u r years required  to  achieve the 
stra teg ic objectives in the  council plan. It also refe rred  
to  as a long te rm  financia l plan.

Strategies High level actions d irected at achieving the  strateg ic 
objectives in the  council plan.

S ta tem ent o f capita l works A sta tem ent w hich shows all capita l expend itu re  o f a 
council in re la tion  to  non -cu rren t assets and asset 
expend itu re  type  prepared in accordance to  the  m odel 
s ta tem ent o f capita l works in the  Local G overnm ent 
Financial Report.

S ta tem ent o f human 
resources

A sta tem ent w hich shows all council s ta ff expend iture  
and num bers o f fu ll tim e  equ iva len t council s ta ff.

S tatem ents o f non-financia l 
resources

A s ta tem ent w hich describles the  non-finan ica l 
resources includ ing human resources.

Sum mary o f planned capita l 
works expend itu re

A summary of capital works expenditure in relation to non- 
current assets classified according to the model statement of
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1 TERM DEFINITION

capital works in the Local Government Model Financial 
Report, by asset expenditure type and funding source.

Sum m ary o f planned human 
resources expenditure

A summary of permanent council staff expenditure and 
numbers of full time equivalent council staff categorised 
according to the organisational structure of the council.

Total assets Total assets from "Statement of financial position".

Total capita l asset outlays Payments for capital purchases per the "Cash flow 
statement".

Total cash inflows from  
opera tions, finance and 
Investm ent Act

Total Inflows per the "Cash flow statement".

Total cash ou tflow s from  
opera tions, finance and 
Investm ent Act

Total outflows per the "Cash flow statement".

Total deprecia tion Total depreciation expense as per the "Statement of financial 
performance" or as disclosed In the notes of the council 
statements.

Total deprecia tion  on 
in fra s truc tu re  assets

Total depreciation on infrastructure assets as disclosed In the 
"Depreciation expense" note.

Total deb t Total Interest bearing liabilities (current and non-current) 
from "Statement of financial position".

Total indebtedness Total liabilities (current and non-current) from "Statement of 
financial position".

Total in fra s truc tu re  assets Total infrastructure assets from "Statement of financial 
position" or as disclosed in the note (Written-down value). 
Infrastructure Includes roads, bridges, drains, road structures, 
other structures, playground equipment, and other like 
categories. Heritage assets have been deemed to be building 
assets. Work In progress, where not separately split, and have 
been included as infrastructure.

Total net realisable assets Total assets less tota l infrastructure assets.

Total ope ra ting  expenses Total operating expenses as per the "Statement of financial 
performance".

Total revenue Total revenue from "Statement of financial performance"

User con tribu tions Funding from users. An example would be a co-contribution 
by a sporting club to the construction of a new facility.

W ritte n -d o w n  value o f assets 
sold

Written-down value of assets sold as per the "Statement of 
financial performance" or as disclosed in the notes of 
thecouncil statements.

Table 17: Glossary of Terms /  Definitions
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12. APPENDIX B: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This Appendix conta ins the financia l s ta tem ents th a t fo llo w :

Com prehensive Income S tatem ent;
Balance Sheet;

♦ S ta tem ent o f Changes in Equity;
S ta tem ent o f Cash Flows;
S tatem ent o f Capital W orks;
S ta tem ent o f Eluman Resources 
Financial Perform ance Indicators

These sta tem ents  are required under D ivision 1, Part 6 o f the  Local G overnm ent (P lanning and  
Reporting) Regulations 2014.

The Regulations comm enced on 18 April 2014.

Regulations 13(2), 16(1) and 17(2) come in to  opera tion  on July 1 2015.
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Figure 6: Comprehensive Income Statement
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Strathbogie Shire Council

For the four years ending 30 June 2023 Forecast Actual Budget

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

2023/24
$■000

2024/25
$ '0 0 0

2025/26
$ ’000

2026/27
$’000

2027/28
$'000

2028/29
$ '0 0 0

Income
Rates and charges 19,093 19,808 20,402 21,014 21,645 22,294 22,963 23,652 24,361 25,092 25,845

Statutory fees and fines 494 530 546 562 579 597 614 633 652 671 692

User fees 818 771 802 834 867 902 938 976 1,015 1,055 1,097

Grants - Operating 3,638 6,015 6,195 6,381 6,573 6,770 6,973 7,182 7,398 7,620 7,848

Grants-Capital 7,385 2,173 2,339 2,045 2,407 2,945 3,091 1,466 1,266 1,266 1,266

Contributions - monetary 320 222 305 314 324 333 343 354 364 375 386

Contributions - non-monetary ■ - - ' - • ‘
Net gain/(k)ss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plar (500) (500) (500) (500) (500) (500) (500) (500) (500) (500) (500)

Fair value adjustments for investment property - - - - - * ‘ '
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of investment property * - - " * '
Netgain/(!oss) ondisposal of intangible assets - - ‘ ‘ '
Share of net profits/flosses) of associates and joint ventui - - - - - - • ‘
Other income 845 416 422 428 434 441 447 454 461 468 476

Total Income 32,093 29/135 30,511 31,079 32,329 33,781 34,870 34,216 35,017 36,048 37,110

Expenses
Employee costs (9,735) (10/168) (10,766) (11.073) (11,389) (11.713) (12,047) (12,391) (12,744) (13,107) (13,480)

Materials and services (12,451) (11,429) (11,846) (11,995) (12,355) (12,725) (13,107) (13.500) (13,905) (14,323) (14,752)

Bad and doubtful debts - - - - -
Depreciation and amortisation (5,301) (5,594) (5,855) (5,929) (6,038) (6,138) (6,274) (6,368) (6,481) (6,611) (6,711)

Borrowing costs (35) (23) - -
Otherexpenses (295) (300) (309) (318) (328) (338) (348) (358) (369) (380) (391)

Total Expenses (27,817) (27,814) (28,776) (29,315) (30,110) (30,915) (31,776) (32,617) (33,499) (34,420) (35,335)

Surplus/fdeficit) for the year 4,276 1,621 1,735 1,763 2,219 2,866 3,094 1,599 1,517 1,628 1,775

Other comprehensive income
Rems that will not be reclassified to surplus ordeficit in future periods:

Net asset revaluation increment /(decrement) - - * - *
Share of other comprehensive income of associates an - - - - • ‘ '

Rems that may be reclassified to surplus ordeficit in future - - - - - - - *
Total comprehensive resutt 4,276 1,621 1,735 1,763 2,219 2,866 3,094 1,599 1,517 1,628 1,775
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Figure 7: Balance Sheet
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Strathbogie Shire Council 
Budgeted Balance Sheet
For the four years ending 30 June 2023 Forecast Actual Budget

2018/19
$'000

2019/20
$'000

2020/21
$'000

2021/22
$'000

2022/23
$'000

2023/24
$'000

2024/25
$'000

2025/26
$'000

2026/27
$'000

2027/28
$'000

2028/29
$'000

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7,353 6,122 4,883 5,170 5,032 5,192 6,036 8,397 9,170 8,785 8,485
Trade and other receivables 2,169 2,168 2,278 2,306 2,402 2.503 2,591 2,527 2,597 2,676 2,761
hventories 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Other assets 113 113 113 113 113 113 113 113 113 113 113
Total current assets 9,640 8,408 7,279 7,594 7,553 7,813 8,744 11,042 11,885 11,579 11,364

Non-current assets 
Trade and other receivables 
investments in associates and joint vertures 
Property, infrastructure, plant & equipment 
Landfill rehabilitation intangible asset

2
243

299.786

2
243

301,513

2
243

303,577

2
243

304,151

2
243

305,560

2
243

307,365

2
243

309,499

2
243

308,821

2
243

309,523

2
243

311,484

2
243

313,525

Total non-current assets 300,031 301,758 303,822 304,396 305,805 307,610 309,744 309,066 309,768 311,729 313,770
Total assets 309,671 310,166 311,101 311,990 313,357 315,423 318,489 320,108 321,653 323,308 325,133
Liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Trade and otherpayables 2,523 2,523 2,645 2,698 2,777 2,851 2,942 3,029 3,117 3,200 3,303
Trust funds and deposits 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468
Provisions 3,145 2,895 3,023 3,027 2,971 2,216 2,211 2,206 2,201 2,197 2,145
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 86 86 49 49 49 49 (0) (0) (0) (0) (0)
Total current liabilities 6,222 5,972 6,185 6,241 6,265 5,583 5,621 5,703 5,786 5,865 5,916
Non-current liabilities 
Provisions 4,697 3,947 2,945 2,063 1,237 1,166 1,100 1,039 983 931 931
interest-bearing loans and borrowings 282 157 146 97 49 - - - - -

Total non-current liabilities 4,979 4,104 3,091 2,160 1,286 1,166 1,100 1,039 983 931 931
Total liabilities 11,201 10,076 9,276 8,402 7,550 6,749 6,721 6,742 6.769 6,796 6,847
Net assets 298,470 300,090 301,825 303,588 305,807 308,674 311,768 313,366 314,884 316,512 318,286
Equity
Accumulated surplus 89,166 90,786 92,521 94,284 96,503 99,370 102,464 104,062 105,580 107,208 108,982
Reserves 209,304 209,304 209,304 209,304 209,304 209,304 209,304 209,304 209,304 209,304 209,304
Total equity 298,470 300,090 301,825 303,588 305,807 308,674 311,768 313,366 314,884 316,512 318,286
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12.3 Budgeted Statement of Changes in Equity 

Figure 8: Changes in Equity
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Strathbogie Shire Council 
Budgeted Statement of Changes in Equity

Accumulated Revaluation Other
Total Surplus Reserve Reserves

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

2019/20 2024/25
Balance at beginning of the financial yea 298,470 89,166 209,304 Balance at beginning of the financial year 308,674 99,370 209,304 -

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,621 1,621 - Surplus/(deficit) for the year 3,094 3,094 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrerr - ' - Net asset revaluation increment/(decreme - - - -
Transfer (toVfrom reserves (1) (1) - Transfer (toVfrom reserves - - - -

Balance at end of financial year 300,090 90,786 209,304 Balance atend of financial year 311,768 102,464 209,304 .
2020/21 2025/26
Balance at beginning of the financial yes 300,090 90,786 209,304 Balance at beginning of the financial year 311,768 102,464 209,304 -
Surp!us/(deficit) for the year 1,735 1,735 - Surplus/(deficiJ) for the year 1,599 1,599 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrerr - - - Net asset revaluation increment/(decreme - - - -
Transfer (toVfrom reserves - - - Transfer (toVfrom reserves - - - -
Balance at end of financial year 301,825 92,521 209,304 Balance at end of financial year 313,366 104,062 209,304 -

2021/22 2026/27
Balance at beginning of the financial yea 301,825 92,521 209,304 Balance at beginning of the financial year 313,366 104,062 209,304 -
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,763 1,763 - Surplus/(deficit) forthe year 1,517 1,517 -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrerr - - - Net asset revaluation increment/(decreme - - - -
Transfer (toVfrom reserves - - - Transfer (toVfrom reserves - - - -

Balance at end of financial year 303,588 94,284 209,304 Balance at end of financial year 314,884 105,580 209,304 .
2022/23 2027/28
Balance at beginning of the financial yea 303,588 94,284 209,304 Balance at beginning of the financial year 314,884 105,580 209,304 -
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 2,219 2,219 - Surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,628 1,628 -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrerr - - - Net asset revaluation increment/(decreme - - - -
Transfer (toVfrom reserves - - - Transfer (toVfrom reserves - - - -
Balance at end of financial year 305,807 96,503 209,304 Balance at end of financial year 316,512 107,208 209,304 .
2023/24 2028/29
Balance at beginning of the financial yea 305,807 96,503 209,304 Balance at beginning of the financial year 316,512 107,208 209,304 -
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 2,866 2,866 - Surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,775 1,775 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrerr - - - Net asset revaluation increment/(decreme - - -
Transfer (toVfrom reserves - - - Transfer ftoVfrom reserves - - - -
Balance at end of financial year 308,674 99,370 209,304 Balance at end of financial year 318,286 108,982 209,304 -
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12.4 Budgeted Statement of Cash Flows 

Figure 9: Cash Flows
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Strathbogie Shire Council 
Budgeted Statement of Cash Flows
Forthe four years ending 30 June 2023 ForecastActual Budget

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Inflows Inflows Inflows inflows Inflows Inflows Inflows Inflows Inflows Inflows Inflows
(Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows)

Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges 19,093 19,808 20,556 21,117 21,719 22,367 23,048 23,833 24,480 25,210 25,958
Statutory fees arri fines 494 530 550 565 581 598 617 638 655 675 695
User fees 818 771 808 838 870 905 942 983 1,020 1,060 1,102
Grants - operating 3,562 6,015 6,242 6,412 6,595 6,792 6,999 7,237 7,434 7.655 7,882
Grants-capital 7,461 2,173 2,357 2,055 2,415 2,955 3,103 1,477 1,272 1,272 1,272
Contributions - monetary 320 222 305 314 324 333 343 354 364 375 386
Interest received 234 220 220 220 220 220 220 220 220 220 220
Tfust funds and deposits taken - -
Other receipts 611 (26) 206 210 216 222 229 239 244 251 259
Net G ST refund / payment 1,832 829 1,716 1,751 1,854 1,939 2,017 1,805 1,953 2,128 2,192
Employee costs (9,735) (10,468) (11,280) (11,631) (11,951) (12,296) (12,639) (13,004) (13,375) (13,761) (14,145)
Materials and services (12,471) (11,429) (12,411) (12,600) (12,965) (13,359) (13,752) (14,169) (14,594) (15,037) (15,480)
Trust funds and deposits repaid - - - - - -
Other payments (295) (1,078) (1,198) (1,212) (1,226) (1.180) (436) (442) (448) (455) (463)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 11,924 7,567 8,070 8,039 8,653 9,497 10,691 9,170 9,224 9,593 9,877

Cash flows from Investing activities
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipmen (20,156) (9,124) (9,591) (8,033) (9.072) (9,618) (10,184) (7.194) (8,836) (10,363) (10,562)
Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and e 1,017 474 330 330 330 330 385 385 385 385 385
Loan and advances made - - - - - - - *
Repayments of loans and advances - - - - - - - - -
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (19,139) (8,650) (9,261) (7,703) (8,742) (9,288) (9,799) (6,809) (8,451) (9,978) (10,177)

Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs (35) (23) - - - - -
Proceeds from borrowings - - - - ~ - - -
Repayment of borrowings (137) (125) (49) (49) (49) (49) (49) - - -
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities (172) (148) (49) (49) (49) (49) (49) - -

Net increase/fdecrease) in cash & cash equivalents (7,387) (1,231) (1.239) 287 (138) 160 844 2,361 773 (385) (300)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financi. 14,740 7,353 6.122 4,883 5,170 5,032 5,192 6,036 8,397 9,170 8,785
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financia 7,353 6,122 4,883 5,170 5,032 5,192 6,036 8,397 9,170 8.785 8,485
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12.5 Budgeted Statement of Capital Works 

Figure 10: Capital Works
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Strathbogie Shire Council 
Budgeted Capital Works Statement

Forecast Actual
2018/19

$'000
2019/20

$'000
2020/21

$'000
2021/22

$'000
2022/23

$'000
2023/24

$'000
2024/25

$’000
2025/26

$'000
2026/27

$'000
2027/28

$'000
2028/29

$'000

Property
Land
Total land - - -
Buildings 2,211 531 1,970 1,833 1,453 1,748 120 37 323 377 2,397

Building improvements - - - - - -
Total buildings 2,211 531 1,970 1,833 1,453 1,748 120 37 323 377 2,397

Total property 2,211 531 1,970 1,833 1,453 1,748 120 37 323 377 2,397

Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 990 580 954 370 301 576 816 602 419 419 419

Figures, fittings and furniture 545 255 225 350 350 357 364 371 379 387 394

Computers and telecommunications - - - - - -
Total plant and equipment 1,535 835 1,179 720 651 933 1,180 973 798 806 813

Infrastructure
Roads 8,712 3,897 3,542 3,763 4,017 4,531 6,225 3,733 5,238 6,999 4,735

Bridges 2,352 700 1,000 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450

Footpaths and cycleways 427 247 303 229 322 146 368 208 126 233 255

Drainage 1,790 516 333 62 345 260 246 288 379 310 512

Recreational, leisure and community facilities - - - - - -
Parks, open space and streetscapes - 1,569 392 246 1,009 676 669 851 719 246 440

Other infrastructure 1,297 - - * - - - -
Total infrastructure 14,578 6,929 5,570 4,750 6,143 6,063 7,958 5,530 6,912 8,238 6,392

Total capital works expenditure 
Represented by:
New asset expenditure

18,324 8,295 8,719 7,303 8,247 8,744 9,258 6,540 8,033 9,421 9,602

2,903 415 436 365 412 437 463 327 402 471 480

Asset renewal expenditure 11,599 5,931 5,929 5,769 6,845 5,334 6,944 5,821 6,748 6,124 6,721

Asset expansion expenditure 725 - - ' - * *
2,401Asset upgrade expenditure 

Total capital works
3,097 1,949 2,354 1,168 990 2,973 1,852 392 884 2,826

18,324 8,295 8,719 7,303 8,247 8,744 9,258 6,540 8,033 9,421 9,602

Funding sources represented by:
Grants 8,426 . - - - - -

Contributions 136 - - - - - -
Council Cash 9,762 8,295 8,719 7,303 8,247 8,744 9,258 6,540 8,033 9,421 9,602

Total capital works expenditure 18,324 8,295 8,719 7,303 8,247 8,744 9,258 6.540 8,033 9,421 9,602
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12.6 Budgeted Statement of Human Resources 

Figure 11: S ta te m e n t  of H um an R e source s

Strathbogie Shire Council 
B udg eted  S ta tem e n t o f H um an R esources

For the four years ending 30 June 2023 Forecast Actual Budget

2018/19
$'000

2019/20
$'000

2020/21
$'000

2021/22
$'000

2022/23
$'000

2023/24
$'000

2024/25
$'000

2025/26
$’000

2026/27
$•000

2027/28
$'000

2028/29
$'000

Staff expenditure
Employee costs - Operating 9,735 10,468 10,766 11,073 11,389 11,713 12,047 12,391 12,744 13,107 13,480
Total staff expenditure 9,735 10,468 10,766 11,073 11,389 11,713 12.047 12,391 12,744 13,107 13,480

Staff numbers EFT EFT EFT EFT EFT EFT EFT EFT EFT E FT EFT
Employees 103 113 113 113 113 113 113 113 113 113 113
Total staff numbers 103 113 113 113 113 113 113 113 113 113 113

P a g e  8 3  o f  8 4
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13. APPENDIX C: RATING PRINCIPLES
(a) Susta inable  financial m an age m e nt

The aggregate revenue raised by Council plus th a t received from  grants needs to  be su ffic ien t 
to  cover the  aggregate long-run cost o f de livering  the  services provided measured on an 
accrual-accounting basis. Sustainable financia l m anagem ent requires the  app lica tion  o f m u lt i
year fram ew ork  to  financia l m anagem ent, asset m anagem ent, p lanning, spending and revenue 
decisions.

(b) Evaluating and setting priorities

Council is aware o f and w ill have regard to  the  views o f its com m unities w ith  respect to  the  
p rio r ity  areas fo r  Council services. Council w ill heighten the  com m un ities awareness o f the  
short and long-te rm  financia l im p lica tions o f po ten tia l service p rio rities  and key decisions, 
including trad e -o ffs  between service p rio rities .

(c) Core Functions

Council w ill con tinue  to  provide a fu ll range o f m unicipal goods and services in accordance 
w ith  its s ta tu to ry  and com m un ity  service obligations.

W here Council engages in the  provision o f services, th a t resemble those o f p riva te  sector 
m arkets, the  app lica tion  o f com pe titive  n eu tra lity  princip les requires

Council to  aim to  recover the  fu ll costs o f a s ign ifican t business ac tiv ity , includ ing the d irec t 
costs o f p rovid ing  goods and services, rate and tax equ iva len t paym ents and a com m ercia l 
rate o f re tu rn  on investm ent.

(d) Identify ing the cost of service delivery

Council w ill understand the  cost o f de livering  its services as an acknow ledgem ent th a t th is  
in fo rm a tion  is useful in de te rm in ing  the  range o f services, and the  level o f service provision, 
and the  corresponding  s truc tu re  fo r  rates and charges.

(e) Prudent b orrow ings for infrastructure

Borrow ings when undertaken p ruden tly  are an appropria te  means fo r  local governm ent to  
finance long lived in fra s truc tu re  assets as the  cost o f servicing o f debt th rough  rates o r user 
charges enables the  cost o f the  asset to  be m atched w ith  the  benefits from  consum ption  o f 
the  services over th e  life  o f the  asset, the reby  p rom oting  in te rgene ra tiona l equ ity .

(f) Rate setting and pricing of services

A single rate cap o f 2.25% has been in troduced  fo r  the  2018-2019 financ ia l year by the  
V icto rian  G overnm ent.

Rate capping delivers on a key e lection prom ise fo r  a fa ire r ra ting  system to  help ease cost o f 
liv ing pressures on V ictorians. It is part o f de livering  value fo r  com m unities and provide fa ir, 
responsible and e ffec tive  policies and processes fo r  V ictorian ratepayers.

Only the  general rate and m unicipal charges part o f a rates b ill w ill be capped at 2%. All o th e r 
parts, such as waste charges and o the r fees and levies, rem ain uncapped.
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W here in fra s truc tu re  costs are d irec tly  a ttr ib u ta b le  to  ind iv idua l p rope rty  owners, Council w ill 
recover those costs th rough  the  app lica tion  o f special charge schemes, deve loper charges or 
contribu tions .

Council w ill also take consideration  o f the  com m unity 's  a b ility  to  pay as w e ll as the  benefits 
derived from  the  provis ion o f services.

(g) Openness and transparency

Council is accountable and responsible fo r  the  policy decisions w ith  respect to  the  range o f 
services provided, th e  expend itu re  and de livery o f the  services and the  way services are 
funded and paid fo r  by the  com m un ity . Open and transpa ren t processes fo r  decision making 
o f Council include the  making o f in fo rm a tion  openly available to  people in th e  local 
com m un ity  and seeking active pa rtic ipa tion  by the  com m un ity  w ith  respect to  choices 
regarding the  range and level o f services provided and how they are funded.

(h) Providing services on behalf of other tiers of government

Effective in te rac tion  betw een Council and o the r tie rs  o f governm ent is im p o rta n t to  ensure 
de livery o f some essential services to  the  com m unity . W here Council enters in to  the  de livery 
o f services on behalf o f o th e r tie rs  o f governm ent, the  supply o f these services should be 
delivered on com m ercia l te rm s based on th e  increm enta l cost to  Council. In s ituations w here 
Council determ ines to  provide subsidies fo r  the  de livery  o f these services Council w ill make 
the  costs transpa ren t and in fo rm  the  com m un ity  about the  purpose and am ount o f the  
subsidy and how it is to  be funded.

%
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Budget 2019/2020 - Council Fees Fee Unit GST
Applicable

Current 
Fees 

(Post GST) 
Rounded

Proposed 
Fee 

(Post GST) 
Rounded

% Increase 
2019/20 

(Post GST)
Comments

Euroa Cinema

Single Ticket 1 ticket Yes 10.00 10.00 0.00%
Cinema hire fee - half day or evening session Yes 205.00 211.00 2.93%

Swimminq Pools

Family Season Yes 89.00 92.00 3.37%
Adult Season Yes 59.00 61.00 3.39%
Child Season Yes 39.00 40.00 2.56%
Adult Day Yes 5.00 5.00 0.00%
Child Day Yes 4.00 4.00 0.00%

Fire Prevention
Admin fee for Fire Infringement notice or arrangement of cleanup of 
properties

Yes 110.00 113.00 2.73%

Tip/Transfer Station Fees

Commercial Garbage (Residents) m3 Yes 57.00 59.00 3.51% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Commercial Garbage (Non - Residents) m3 Yes 104.00 107.00 2.88% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Domestic Garbage (Residents) m3 Yes 36.00 37.00 2.78% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Domestic Garbage (Non - Residents) m3 Yes 72.00 74.00 2.78% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Greenwaste (Residents) m3 Yes 18.00 18.00 0.00% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Greenwaste (Non-Residents) m3 Yes 23.00 23.00 0.00% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Whiteqoods (Requiring deqassing) unit Yes 9.00 10.00 11.11% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Mattresses/Mattress Bases (all sizes) (Residents) unit Yes 22.00 23.00 4.55% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Mattresses/Mattress Bases (all sizes) (Non-Residents) unit Yes 44.00 45.00 2.27% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Tyres - Car (Residents) unit Yes 5.00 5.00 0.00% To be reviev/ed in exhibition period
Tyres - Car (Non-Residents) unit Yes 10.00 11.00 10.00% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Tyres - Light TruckMWD (Residents) unit Yes 12.00 13.00 8.33% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Tyres - Liqht Truck/4WD (Non-Residents) unit Yes 18.00 18.00 0.00% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Tyres - Heavy Truck (Residents) unit Yes 27.00 28.00 3.70% To be reviev/ed in exhibition period
Tyres - Heavy Truck (Non-Residents) unit Yes 32.00 33.00 3.13% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Tyres - Tractor (Residents) unit Yes 68.00 70.00 2.94% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Tyres - Tractor (Non-Residents) unit Yes 78.00 81.00 3.85% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Tyres - Earthmoving (Residents) unit Yes 160.00 164.00 2.50% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Tyres - Earthmoving (Non-Residents) unit Yes 191.00 196.00 2.62% To be reviev/ed in exhibition period
Co-minqled Recyclables - Residential (Residents) m3 No charge No charge To be reviev/ed in exhibition period
Co-mingled Recyclables - Residential (Non-Residents) m3 Yes 7.00 8.00 14.29% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Co-minqled Recyclables -Commercial/Business (Residents) m3 Yes 5.00 5.00 0.00% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Co-mingled Recyclables -Commercial/Business (Non-Residents) m3 Yes 10.00 11.00 10.00% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Gas Bottles (<9kg) (Residents) unit Yes 8.00 8.00 0.00% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Gas Bottles (<9kg) (Non-Residents) unit Yes 12.00 13.00 8.33% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Gas Bottles (9kg) (Residents) unit Yes 10.00 11.00 10.00% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Gas Bottles (9kg) (Non-Residents) unit Yes 18.00 18.00 0.00% To be reviev/ed in exhibition period
Gas Bottles (>9kg) (Residents) unit Yes 19.00 19.00 0.00% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Gas Bottles (>9kg) (Non-Residents) unit Yes 27.00 28.00 3.70% To be reviewed in exhibition period
TV's/Computers unit Yes No charge No charge To be reviewed in exhibition period
Soft Furnishings (couches, sofas, armchairs) (Residents) unit Yes 25.00 26.00 4.00% To be reviewed in exhibition period
Soft Furnishings (couches, sofas, armchairs) (Non-Residents) unit Yes 50.00 51.00 2.00% To be reviev/ed in exhibition period

Buildinq Fees

Domestic Building Works:
New Dwellings up to $180,000 app'n No 2,782.00 2,866.00 3.02%
New Dwellings Over $180,000 app'n No 3,073.00 3,165.00 2.99%
Additions to Dwelling, Garage, Decks, Pergolas, Fencing, Masts etc. $0 - 
$30,000

app’n No 869.00 895.00 2.99%

Additions Over $30,000 to $180,000 app'n No 1,275.00 1,313.00 2.98%

Industrial / Commercial

Minor Works to $10,000 app'n No 2,098.00 2,161.00 3.00%
CPI increase OK.The charge needs 
to increase by 3% to $2160

Minor Works $10,000 to $30,000 (Cost of works x 0.0145+$2,000) app'n

Building Works $30,000 to $500,000 (Cost of works x0.0145+$2,000) app'n

Building Works Above $500,000 (POA) app’n

Service Fees
Building Permit Extension Class 1 app'n No 208.00 214.00 2.88%
Building Permit Extension Class 10 app'n No 116.00 119.00 2.59%

Essential Safety Measures Report per hour (Minimum 2 hour charge) hour No 185.00 191.00 3.24%

Occupancy Inspection per hour (Minimum 2 hour charge) hour No 185.00 191.00 3.24%
Building Permit Amendments per hour (Minimum 2 hour charge) hour No 185.00 191.00 3.24%
Preparation of Reports per hour (Minimum 2 hour charge) hour No 185.00 191.00 3.24%
P.O.P.E. Places Of Public Entertainment Approval app’n No 1,688.00 1,739.00 3.02%
P.O.P.E. Sitinq MBS approvals (Min 2 hours) hour No 185.00 191.00 3.24%

Road Openinq Permit Fees
Vehicle Crossing Pemit No 130.00 134.00 3.08%
Other Road Openings - per Regulations
Permit for removal of fallen timber Permit No 10.00 10.00 0.00%
Service Connections/Other Permit No 84.00 87.00 3.57%

Domestic Animal Reoistration Fees

Entire dog or cat (maximum fee under Domestic Animals Act 1994) Animal No 180.00 186.00 3.33%

Concession fee entire dog or cat (50% discount as per Domestic Animals 
Act 19941

Animal No 93.00 50% discount as per the Act
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Budget 2019/2020 - Council Fees Fee Unit GST
Applicable

Current 
Fees 

(Post GST) 
Rounded

Proposed 
Fee 

(Post GST) 
Rounded

% Increase 
2019/20 

(Post GST)
Comments

Reduced fee dogs (defined by the Domestic Animals Act 1994) -  desexed, 
dog over 10 years old, dog kept for breeding by the proprietor of a domestic 
animal business conducted on a registered premises, dog registered with an 
applicable organisation, dog that has undergone obedience training with a 
registered organisation, dog kept for working stock, desexed dog 
continuously registered with Council prior to April 2013

Animal no 41.00 41.00 0.00%

Concession fee dogs - desexed, dog over 10 years old, dog kept for 
breeding by the proprietor of a domestic animal business conducted on a 
registered premises, dog registered with an applicable organisation, dog that 
has undergone obedience training with a registered organisation, dog kept 
for working stock, desexed dog continuously registered with Council prior to 
April 2013

Animal no 20.00 20.00 0.00% 50% discount as per the Act

Reduced fee cats (defined by the Domestic Animals Act) - desexed cat, cat 
over 10 years old, Cat kept for breeding by the proprietor of a domestic 
animal business conducted on a registered premises, cat registered with an 
applicable organisation, desexed cat that has been continuously registered 
with Council prior to April 2013

Animal no 41.00 41.00 0.00%

Concession fee cats - desexed cat, cat over 10 years old, cat kept for 
breeding by the proprietor of a domestic animal business conducted on a 
registered premises, cat registered with an applicable organisation, desexed 
cat that has been continuously registered with Council prior to April 2013

Animal no 20.00 20.00 0.00% 50% discount as per the Act

Entire dog or cat first registered with Council prior to April 2013 Animal no 93.00

Consession entire dog or cat first registered with Council prior to 2013 Animal no 46.00 50% discount as per the Act

Declared dangerous, menacing or restricted breed dogs (no concession 
available under the Domestic Animals Act 1994) Animal No 361.00 372.00 3.05%

Declared Dogs-property inspection fee for dangerous, menacing or restricted 
breed Per hour No 52.00 53.00 1.92%

This needs to be a per hour fee not 
a per event fee given that travel 
time and report writing is also 
required

Pro rata registration fee for dogs or cats - calculated using the portion of the 
year for which the animal is registered using the applicable fee outlined 
above

Animal

This new fee encourages people to 
register their animals throughout the 
year and the Domestic Animals Act 
enables Council to set pro rata fees.

Replacement registration tag Animal No
We now issue lifelong tags and so 
need a replacement fee - other 
Councils set this fee

Pound Fees
Sustenance fee - Domestic Animals (Dogs/Cats) Day No 21.00 21.00 0.00%

Domestic Animal - Administration Fee (Accounting/Advertising/Release etc) Animal No 129.00 133.00 3.10%

Domestic Animals - After Hours Collection Fee when impounded Collection No 129.00 133.00 3.10%
Sustenance fee- Sheep Head/Day No 7.00 7.00 0.00%
Sustenance fee - Cattle Head/Day No 21.00 21.00 0.00%
Sustenance fee - horses Head/Day No 21.00 21.00 0.00%
Sustenance fee - Stallions and Bulls Head/Day No 72.00 74.00 2.78%
Sustanance fee - other animals Head/Day No 21.00 21.00 0.00%

Livestock -  Administration Fee (Accounting/Advertising/Release etc) per event No 129.00 133.00 3.10%

Impound/Call Out Fees

After hours staff impound/Call out fee per collection No 124.00 127.00 2.42%
This fee is applicable when people 
wish to recover their impounded 
stock out of normal business hours

Transport fee per collection

We do not have our own stock 
transport vehicle and it is important 
we recover this cost, which is based 
on benchmarking of Councils in the 
North East

Surrender of Animals

All animals surrendered to be euthanased Animal No 92.00 25.00 -72.83%

This fee is commensurate with other 
councils in the region and 
encourages people to surrender 
heir animal rather than mistreat it or 
dump it.

Animals surrendered for rehoming Animal No 92.00 25.00 -72.83%

This fee is commensurate with other 
councils in the region and 
encourages people to surrender 
their animal rather than mistreat it or 
dump it.

Other Fees
Vet Fees (all animals) Animal Yes Needs to say At Cost

Domestic Animal Business
Registration or Renewal No 247.00 254.00 2.83% OK
Additional Inspections No 119.00 122.00 2.52% OK
New Business Establishment Fee No 247.00 254.00 2.83% OK
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Budget 2019/2020 - Council Fees Fee Unit GST
Applicable

Current 
Fees 

(Post GST) 
Rounded

Proposed 
Fee 

(Post GST) 
Rounded

% Increase 
2019/20 

(Post GST)
Comments

Local Laws - Permits

Roadside Fire collection Permit No 15.00 16.00 6.67% OK
Permit to qraze livestock by resident owner Permit No 41.00 42.00 2.44% OK
Other Permits (Administration Fee) Permit No 82.00 85.00 3.66% OK
Annual Permits, including single item street trading Permit No 82.00 85.00 3.66% OK
Annual Permits for multiple use in street trading Permit No 133.00 137.00 3.01% O K

Impounded Vehicles

Impounded vehicle reclaim per vehicle No 206.00 212.00 2.91%

Local Laws - Impounded Vehicles
We need this charge in case we

Towing fee recovery per vehicle need to hire a tow truck to remove a 
vehicle for impounding

Saleyards
Agents Yard Fee for sale days (cattle sold per head) Yes 0.36 0.37 2.78%
or
Fee per sale (whichever is greater Yes 370.00 382.00 3.24%
NLIS Taqs Yes 62.00 64.00 3.23%
Weiqhings Yes 4.90 5.00 2.04%
Scanning Yes 3.00 3.10 3.33%
Sheep Yes 0.30 0.30 0.00%
Horse Yes 6.80 7.00 2.94%
Alpaca Yes 6.80 7.00 2.94%
Llama Yes 6.80 7.00 2.94%
Truck wash Yes 1.90 2.00 5.26%

Fees Associated with Sales
Sale day Yes 10.50 10.80 2.86%
Day afterSale day (before 5.00pm) Yes 10.50 10.80 2.86%
Use of yards as a trans-shipment point (max. 12hours) Yes 268.00 276.00 2.99%
Single Truck Operators Yes 134.00 138.00 2.99%

Health Fees

Food Premises

Class 1 Food Premises (includes one routine inspection and audit) Permit No 530.00 546.00 3.02% OK

- Additional fees for late registration (add 50% of scheduled fee) No 265.00 273.00 3.02% OK

Class 2a Food Premises (includes one routine inspection and compliance 
check)

Permit No 530.00 546.00 3.02% Should read Class 2a

-Additional fees for late registration (add 50% of scheduled fee) No 265.00 273.00 3.02% OK

Class 2b with 3rd party FSP  (includes one routine inspection and compliance 
check)

Permit No 530.00 546.00 3.02% Should read Class 2b

- Additional fees for late registration (add 50% of scheduled fee) No 265.00 273.00 3.02% OK
Class 3 Food Premises (includes one routine inspection) Permit No 232.00 239.00 3.02% OK
- Additional fees for late registration (add 50% of scheduled fee) No 116.00 119.00 2.59% OK
New Business Establishment Fee Permit No 50% Sched 50% Sched OK
Sporting Clubs/Community Groups (not for profit) Permit No 52.00 53.00 1.92% OK

Food vehicle
Permit No 299.00 308.00 3.01% OK
Permit No 186.00 191.00 2.69% OK

Temporary Food Stall

Single event
Class 2 Permit No 128.00 132.00 3.13% O K
Class 3 Permit No 72.00 74.00 2.78% O K

Single event for Sporting Clubs/Community Groups (not for profit) registered 
in Starthbogie

Permit No 52.00 53.00 1.92% OK

Class 2 Permit No 232.00 239.00 3.02% OK
Class 3 Permit No 116.00 119.00 2.59% O K
Class 4 (sausage sizzlesetc.for fund raising) Permit
Food stall for Sporting Clubs/Community Groups (not for profit) Permit No 52.00 53.00 1.92% OK

Subm ission of plans

Application fee for submission of plans (50% of applicable registration fee) No 25% Sched 
Fee

25% Sched 
Fee

O K

Inspections
Additional inspections (all categories) Each No 117.00 120.00 2.56% OK

Transfer of ownership inspection fee Each No 117.00 120.00 2.56% OK

Priority inspection request (within 5 days) Each No 175.00 180.00 2.86% OK
Urgent inspection request (within 48 hrs) Each No 304.00 313.00 2.96% OK

Public Health & Wellbeing Act Premises
Beauty parlours, skin penetration or similar Permit No 165.00 170.00 3.03% OK
Allied Health and Alternative Therapy Including Massage Therpy and 
Acupuncture, etc

No 165.00 170.00 3.03% O K

Prescribed Accommodation (no kitchen) Permit No 206.00 212.00 2.91% OK
New Business Establishment Fee No 50% Sched 50% Sched OK

Transfer of ownership fees

Food Premises Class 1, 2a, 2b or 3 premises - 50% of applicable 
registration fee

per transfer No
50% of total registration fee - this 
has been charged in the past

Public Health & Wellbeing Act premises - 50% of applicable registration fee per transfer No
50% of total registration fee - this 
has been charged in the past
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Applicable

Current 
Fees 

(Post GST) 
Rounded

Proposed 
Fee 

(Post GST) 
Rounded

% Increase 
2019/20 

(Post GST)
Comments

Septic Tank Application Fees
New Installation Permit No 407.00 419.00 2.95°/ OK
Alteration to existing system Permit No 206.00 212.00 2.91°/ O K

Significant variation to initial application per application No 205.00 Based on benchmarking of Councils 
in the North East

Extension of life of permit to install per application No 215.00 Based on benchmarking of Councils 
in the North East

Land Capability Assessment review (up to 2 lots) per application No 195.00 Based on benchmarking of Councils 
in the North East

Additional fee for Land Capability Assessment review for every lot > 2 lots (in 
addition to the fee for review of 2 lots) per additional lo No 20.00 Based on cost of EHO's time and 

complexity of task

Caravan Parks and Moveable Dwelling fees

Council is required to set fees for 
caravan parks/moveable dwelling 
parks by legislation. Schedule 2 
limits the maximum fees Council 
can charge. The fees here are 
benchmarked against Mansfield 
Shire. For 2018/19 the fee unit for 
Victoria is $14.45

Up to 25 sites -17  fee units Unit No 246.00
26 - 50 sites -  34 fee units Unit No 491.00
51 to 100 sites - 68 fee units Unit No 983.00
101 to 150 sites -100  fee units Unit No 1,445.00
151 - 200 sites -120 fee units Unit No 1,734.00
Transfer of ownership of caravan park per transfer No 71.00

Boat Ramp Fees

Boat Ramp Day Yes 12.00 12.00 0.00% OK
Boat Ramp Residents Annum Yes 81.00 83.00 2.47% O K
Boat Ramp Non-Residents Annum Yes 132.00 136.00 3.03% O K

Regatta Centre Building
Downstairs Function area -  no staff -1/2 day hire (4 hours) 1/2 Day Yes 75.00 77.00 2.67%
Downstairs Function area - no staff - full day hire (8 hours) Full Day Yes 173.00 178.00 2.89%
Upstairs Conference area - no staff -1/2 Day hire (4 hours) 1/2 Day Yes 75.00 77.00 2.67%
Upstairs Conference area - no staff - Full Day hire (8 hours) Full Day Yes 173.00 178.00 2.89%
Kitchen - commercial (if selling) -1/2 Day hire (4 hours) 1/2 Day Yes 124.00 128.00 3.23%
Kitchen - commercial (if selling) - Full Day hire (8 hours) Full Day Yes 248.00 255.00 2.82%
Kitchen -  private function 1/2 Day Hire (4 hours) 1/2 Day Yes 63.00 64.00 1.59%
Kitchen -  private function Full Day Hire (8 hours) Full Day Yes 124.00 128.00 3.23%
Boatshed -  showers & toilets -1/2 Day (4 hours) 1/2 Day Yes 63.00 64.00 1.59%
Boatshed -  showers & toilets - Full Day (8 hours) Full Day Yes 124.00 128.00 3.23%
Entire Regatta Centre Building not including kitchen - no staff -1/2 Day hire 
(4 hrs) 1/2 Day Yes 198.00 204.00 3.03%

Entire Regatta Centre Building not including kitchen - no staff- Full Day hire 
(8 hrs) Full Day Yes 397.00 409.00 3.02%

Peninsular - 1/2 Day hire (4 hours) 1/2 Day Yes 495.00 510.00 3.03%
Peninsular - Full Day hire (8 hours) Full Day Yes 990.00 1,020.00 3.03%
Training Camps - Groups of 50 or less Day Yes 63.00 64.00 1.59%
Training Camps - Groups of more than 51 Day Yes 124.00 128.00 3.23%
Entire Venue - no staff - Full Day hire (8 hours) Day Yes 1,700.00 1,750.00 2.94%
Extra Toilet Facilities Day Yes 453.00 467.00 3.09%

Tourist Attraction Signage
4' Standard Name Blade Siqn Yes 204.00 210.00 2.94%
Other sizes Siqn

Official Visitor Guide (OVG) Advertising
1/4 Page Advertisement Yes 322.00 332.00 3.11%
1/2 Page Advertisement Yes 541.00 557.00 2.96%
Full Page Advertisement Yes 978.00 1,007.00 2.97%
Back Cover Advertisement Yes 1,415.00 1,458.00 3.04%
Inside Back Cover Advertisement Yes 1,197.00 1,232.00 2.92%

The following fees and charqes are provided for information only.
They are determined by regulation not by Council.

Consent Application
Building over Easement Report & Consent

262.10 262.10

Delete - If other statutory fees are 
not listed (eg Planning fees) then 
these should be deleted to ensure 
consistency. These fees also 
change throughout the year.

Variation to Part 4 of the Building Regs Report & Consent

262.10 262.10

Delete -  If other statutory fees are 
not listed (eg Planning fees) then 
these should be deleted to ensure 
consistency. These fees also 
change throughout the year.

Hoarding Report & Consent (Public Protection)

262.10 262.10

Delete - If other statutory fees are 
not listed (eg Planning fees) then 
these should be deleted to ensure 
consistency. These fees also 
change throughout the year.

Flood Approval Report & Consent

262.10 262.10

Delete - If other statutory fees are 
not listed (eg Planning fees) then 
these should be deleted to ensure 
consistency. These fees also 
change throughout the year.



2018/19 2019/20

Budget 2019/2020 - Council Fees Fee Unit GST
Applicable

Current 
Fees 

(Post GST) 
Rounded

Proposed 
Fee 

(Post GST) 
Rounded

% Increase 
2019/20 

(Post GST)
Comments

Building Search Certification Reg 326(1) (Permits/Certificates details, notices 
& orders)

52.20 52.20

Delete - If other statutory fees are 
not listed (eg Planning fees) then 
these should be deleted to ensure 
consistency. These fees also 
change throughout the year.

Building Search Certification Reg 326(2) (Flood, Termite, Snowfall & 
Designated Land)

52.20 52.20

Delete - If other statutory fees are 
not listed (eg Planning fees) then 
these should be deleted to ensure 
consistency. These fees also 
change throughout the year.

Building Search Certification Reg 326(3) (Approved dates for mandatory 
notification stages)

52.20 52.20

Delete - If other statutory fees are 
not listed (eg Planning fees) then 
these should be deleted to ensure 
consistency. These fees also 
change throughout the year.

Building Permit Lodgement Fee

Miscellaneous Fees
Stormwater Discharge 65.40 65.40
Demolition Approval 65.40 65.40

Land Information Certificate
Statutory fee per Regulations 25.90 25.90

Freedom of Information

Application Fee 28.40 28.40

Search time 21.30 21.30
Photocopying 0.20 0.20
Supervised viewing 5.30 5.30

Permit file retrieval

Initial search fee - Electronic file retrieval per file
Based on the 2017/18 fee plus 6% 
inflation for 2 years

Intial search fee - hard copy file retrieval per file

Based on the amount of work 
required to retrieve files from 
archives and then scan hard copies 
to create electronic documents 
(councils from NE used as 
benchmark - this is roughly a 
median charge)

plus scan of 1 - 50 hardcopy pages (A4 or A3) to electronic format per page
Based on the 2017/18 fee plus 6%  
inflation for 2 years

plus scan of 51 -1 0 0  hardcopy pages (A4 or A3) to electronic format per page
Based on the 2017/18 fee plus 6%  
inflation for 2 years

plus scan of larger than A3 hardcopy pages to electronic format per page
Based on the 2017/18 fee plus 6%  
inflation for 2 vears
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9.7.9 Strathbogie Community Pools Strategy 2019-2029 
- For Consideration and Adoption (cont.)

RECOMMENDATION (cont.)

100/19 ON BEING PUT, THE AMENDMENTS WERE ENDORSED

101/19 ON BEING PUT, THE AMENDED RECOMMENDATION
BECAME THE MOTION

102/19 ON BEING PUT, THE MOTION WAS CARRIED

Background
Preparation of the draft Strathbogie Community Pools Strategy has involved the 
following:

• A review of Council’s existing strategic documentation, current operations, 
community demographics, and other facilities in the region;

• Stakeholder interviews and workshops;
• Community surveys;
• An assessment of Industry trends and new technologies; and
• Development of a draft strategy based on the findings.

The key recommendations of the draft strategy are:
1. Management Model;
2. Programming and activities to build patronage and revenue;
3. Fees and Charges;
4. Pool Operating Hours;
5. Water Temperature;
6. Water / Pool Management;
7. Marketing / Promotion;
8. Access;
9. Transport; and
10. Physical Environment.

The  draft strategy was finalised on 2 May 2018. The draft strategy was then 
presented to Council for consideration on 15 May 2018. Council resolved to 
place the draft Community Pools Strategy on Public Exhibition for a 28 day period 
from 23 May 2018, closing on 22 June 2018 and to hear submissions at a Special 
Council meeting at 5pm on Tuesday 10 July 2018.

As a result of this public exhibition period, sixteen (16) submissions were received 
with one submitter requesting to be heard by Council on 10 July 2018.

The content of the submissions is summarised in Attachment A.

2018/2019 Pool Season

Following the tender process for the management of all four pools, Council 
appointed the previous contractor to manage the Euroa Pool. No tenders were 
received for the management of the Avenel, Nagambie and Violet Town pools.
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Disclaimer

The information contained in this document is for general guidance only. It Is not professional advice and should not be 
used, relied upon or treated as a substitute for specific professional advice. Given the changing nature of laws, rules 
and regulations, and the Inherent hazards of electronic communication, there may be delays, omissions or 
inaccuracies in information contained in this document.

The model budget, including financial statements, has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014. While every 
effort has been made to ensure that the information contained in this document has been accurate and complies with 
relevant Victorian legislation, each Council remains responsible to ensure that the budget they prepare Is compliant 
with all statutory requirements.



M ayor and CEO ’s Introduction

MAYOR'S INTRODUCTION

Strathbogie Shire Council is pleased to release the proposed Budget 2019/20 which builds 
on the hard work of the current and previous councils to ensure that Strathbogie has a 
sustainable future and growth potential.

In preparing the 2019/20 Draft Budget, Council has considered many factors in an effort to 
continue to balance community expectations and benefits with financial responsibilities.

The Draft Budget works hard to maintain and improve existing service levels and deliver 
strong Investment in capital works across the municipality. Council will continue to provide 
significant funding for renewal works on our ageing and outdated infrastructure, based on 
the requirements of the Road Management Plan and taking into account financial 
constraints.

Council is proposing a 2.25% per cent increase in the average rate for 2019/20. This 
increase is below the State Government cap of 2.5% under the ‘Fair Go Rates’ 
legislation, which will be the second year Council has delivered an Increase less than 
the cap. This level allows for maintenance of existing service levels, funding of a 
number of significant new initiatives and the ongoing allocation of sufficient funds for 
the continuing strategic renewal of Council's infrastructure.

Current rating differentials have been reviewed, and Council is proposing to continue to levy 
a municipal charge, but to reduce the charge from $266 to $133 and alter the Farmland rate 
differential from 82.5% of the Residential rate to 80%. Consideration will also be given to 
implement a rebate for properties that are committed to providing biodiversity benefits to the 
wider community via the Trust for Nature programme.

Adjustments to this rating structure will cause some redistribution of the rate burden, 
with some 60-70% of properties having increases at or below the general rate increase.

In 2018/19 Council absorbed additional costs relating to the waste recycling program, but 
with continuing challenges in this space, waste charges will increase by 4.1 % with Council 
incurring additional costs due to challenges in relation to disposal of recycling materials.

The 2019/20 Draft Budget provides for an $8.295 million capital works program with the 
following highlights:

ACTIVITY EXPENDITURE (m)
Roads - including resealing, re sheeting and 
rehabilitation

3.897

Bridges .450
Pedestrian Bridges .250
Drainage .516
Footpaths .247
Plant and Machinery .580
Buildings .532
Information Technology .255
Aquatic Facilities .382
Parks, and Open Spaces 1.186
TOTAL 8.295

Funding of $1 million is also provided to commence rehabilitation of the Violet town landfill.
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In addition to the four year period covered by this Budget and Strategic Resource Plan 
Strategic Resource Plan Long Term Financial Plan has been extended to cover a ten year 
period which allows for a total expenditure over that period of $88.1 m including:

• Improvements to Council’s pools and associated infrastructure ($9.0 m)
• Rehabilitation of the Violet Town land fill ($4.0 m)
• Improvements to Play areas and Active Spaces ($1.4 m)

No borrowings are proposed, which allows for long term sustainability and flexibility with our 
revenue.

The 2019/20 Budget provides for expenditure of $ 27.8 million on services including:

ACTIVITY EXPENDITURE (m)
Libraries .267
Maternal and Child Health .212
Emergency Management .141
Waste Management 2.574
Swimming Pools and Beaches .363
Arts, Culture, Economy, Events .632
Planning .883
Parks and Reserves Maintenance 1.769
Roads and Bridges Maintenance 5.170
Saleyards .216
Youth Services .300
Sustainability .338
Animal Management .260

The proposed budget details the resources required over the next year to fund the large 
range of legislated and discretionary services that Council provides to the community. It also 
includes details of proposed capital expenditure allocations.to improve and renew our shire's 
physical infrastructure, buildings and operational assets, as well as funding proposals for a 
range of operating projects.

I commend the budget to the community

Amanda McClaren

Mayor
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G2 1. Link to the Council Plan

This section describes how the Annual Budget links to the achievement of the Council 
Plan within an overall planning and reporting framework. This framework guides the 
Council in identifying community needs and aspirations over the long term, medium term 
(Council Plan) and short term (Annual Budget) and then holding itself accountable

1.1 Legislative Planning and accountability framework

The Strategic Resource Plan, part of and prepared in conjunction with the Council Plan, is 
a rolling four-year plan that outlines the financial and non-financial resources that Council 
requires to achieve the strategic objectives described in the Council Plan. The Annual 
Budget is framed within the Strategic Resource Plan, considering the services and 
initiatives which contribute to achieving the strategic objectives specified in the Council 
Plan. The diagram below depicts the planning and accountability framework that applies

Time horizon Planning Reporting Timing

Source: Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning

In addition to the above, Council has a long term plan which articulates a community 
vision, mission and values. The Council Plan is prepared with reference to Council's long 
term Community Plan.

The tim ina of each comDonent of the Dlannina framework is critical to the successful
1.1.2 Key planning considerations
Service level planning
Although councils have a legal obligation to provide some services— such as animal 
management, local roads, food safety and statutory planning—most council services are 
not legally mandated, including some services closely associated with councils, such as 
libraries, building permits and sporting facilities. Further, overtime, the needs and 
expectations of communities can change. Therefore councils need to have robust 
processes for service planning and review to ensure all services continue to provide value 
for money and are in line with community expectations. In doing so, councils should
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G4 1.2 Our purpose

Our vision
“Together we are building a flourishing community"

Our mission

"To support our community to grow through effective partnerships,engagement and 
eguitable and efficient delivery of services"

Our values

"To be a respectful,innovative,open and transparent .inclusive, fair and ethical Council"

1.3 Strategic objectives

Following Strategic objectives are major pillar of the Council plan

I Strategic Objective Description

1. Community 
Wellbeing

To enhance community health and wellbeing

2. Environment To sustainably manage our natural and built environment

3. Infrastructure To provide quality infrastructure

4. Economic 
Development

To support and drive economic development

5. Organisation To be a high performing Shire
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E3 2. S e rv ic e s  a n d  s e rv ic e  p e rfo rm a n c e  in d ic a to rs

This section provides a description o f the services and initiatives to be funded in the  Budget for the 2 0 1 9 /2 0  y e a r and how  these will contribute to 
achieving the  s trateg ic  objectives outlined in the Council P lan. It a lso describes severa l initiatives and service p erfo rm ance outcom e indicators  
for key a re a s  o f C ouncil’s operations. Council is required by legislation to identify m ajor initiatives, initiatives and service perform ance outcom e  
indicators in the Budget and report aga inst them  in their A nnual Report to support transparen cy and accountability. T h e  relationship betw een  

these accountability requirem ents in the  Council P lan, the Budget and the A n nual Report is shown below

Council Plan Annual Report

Strategic objective

Strategic indicators

Strategic objective

Strategic indicators

Strategic objective

Strategic indicators

Strategic objective

Strategicindicators

■»

■ *

Services

Initiatives

Services

Initiatives

Services

Initiatives

Services

Initiatives

Indicators (outcome)

Major initiative

Indicators (outcome)

Major initiative

Indicators (outcome)

Major Initiatives

Indicators (outcome)

Major Initiatives

Report of 
operations

Service indicators 
Major initiatives 

Governance & 

management checklist

Performance
statement

Service indicators (outcome) 
Financial indicators 
Sustainable capacity indicators

Source: D ep artm en t o f  Environm ent, Land, W a te r  and Planning
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2.1 Strategie  O bjective  1

C om m unity W ellbeing

à  Services

Service area D escription of services provided

2017/18
Actual
$'000

2018/19
Forecast

$'000

2019/20
Budget
$'000

Environmental Health This service protects the community’s health and well
being by coordinating food safety support programs, 
Tobacco Act activities, immmunisation programs and

Exp

Rev
149

145

177

159

21

197

public health promotions. The service also works to NET 4 18 (176)
rectify any public health concerns relating to 
unreasonable noise emissions, housing standards and 
pest controls.

Animal Management and Local Laws This service provides for the management o f domestic 
animals (mostly dogs and cats) though registration , 
education and enforcement where necessary . It is also

Exp

Rev

210

87

40

111

260

136

concerned with issues that arise out of the application of 
Council's Community Local Law.

NET 123 (71) 124

Libraries and Arts This service provides public library services at three 
locations and a community cinema in Euroa. It provides 
a customer focused service that caters for the cultural, 
educational and recreational needs of residents and 
provides a focal point for the community where they can 
meet, relax and enjoy the facilities and services offered.

Exp

Rev

290 282

60

288

64

NET 290 222 224

Community Grants and Recreational This service provides funding for the development of Exp 194 166 292
Planning community facilities and activities.

Rev 10 11 3
NET 184 155 289

Maternal and Child Health This service provides family oriented, visiting and centre Exp 188 297 224
based maternal and child health services. Rev 131 210 220

NET 57 87 4

Youth Services This service provides youth facilities and a range of Exp 226 299 301
recreation and education based youth activities. 77 90 90
Programs include Freeza, National Youth W eek and L2P
driving experience program. NET 149 209 211

Street Lighting This service enhances public safety and community Exp 121 127 140
access by providing street lighting in urban areas. Rev - - -

NET 121 127 140

Parks and Reserves This service is responsible for the management, Exp 1,866 1,375 1,607
maintenance and safety of parks and gardens, sporting Rev 168 2 -

grounds and playground facilities. NET 1,698 1,373 1,607

Boating Operations and Safety Council is the boating authority for Nagambie Lakes. Exp 78 286 94
This service area provides patrol services, maintenance
of boating infrastructure and support for on-water Rev 226 6 12
recreational activities. NET (148) 280 82

Community Development This program oversees activities in the areas o f access Exp 74 412 161
and inclusion .committee of management support, Rev 73 95 18
community planning and other activities designed to NET 1 317 143
strengthen communities.

Emergency Services This service includes financial assistance for the SES Exp 173 178 141
service, fire prevention activities and flood risk planning Rev 367 148 106
and mitigation. NET (194) 30 35

School Crossing Supervision This program provides supervision of school crossings Exp 57 - -

in Euroa and Nagambie before and after school hours. Rev 26 27 25
NET 31 (27) (25)



m

Qj
Complete the expansion of the Avenel Pre School and Maternal and Child Health Centre

Promote responsible pet ownership through the implementation of Council's Domestic Animal Management Plan 2017-21 

Review Council's Community and Meeting Procedure Locals Laws 

O th e r In it ia tiv e s

Progress Youth Hub for Nagambie
Continue consultation with Fire Brigade Captains to explore Fire Management Planning and CFA Best Practice

Major In itiatives

S e rv ic e  P e rfo rm a n c e  O u tc o m e  In d ic a to rs

Service Indicator
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
Actual Forecast Budget

Libraries and Arts Paricipation
22 23 24

Maternal and Child Health (MCH) Paricipation
78 80 82

Animal Management Health and safety
0 0 0

Environmental Health Health and safety
0 0 0
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2.2 Strategie O bjective  2
I E nvironm ent

S e rv ic e s

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
S ervice area Description of services provided Actual Forecast Budget

$'000 $'000 $'000
Sustainability  M a n a g e m e n t Council is com m itted  to responsible and susta inab le  Exp 341 313 338

m an ag em en t o f the Shire's natural resources. Program s
in this service a re a  include Pests and W e e d s  program , Rev 53 101 155
Im plem entation  o f Council's env ironm ental s trategy and NET 288 212 183
C arbon Footprint A ssessm ent program.

W a s te  M an ag e m e n t This service includes kerbside g arb ag e and  recycling Exp 6 ,3 1 0 2 ,6 9 3 2 ,5 9 5
collections, transfer station operations and w aste Rev 2 ,4 4 7 2 ,6 4 2 2 ,6 4 4
m an ag em en t o f public areas. NET 3 ,8 6 3 51 (49)

M a jo r  In it ia tiv e s
Im p lem ent the recom m end ations  o f Council's D om estic  W a s te w a te r  M an ag e m e n t plan , including working with Goulburn M urray W a te r  to exp lore  
sm all town sew er sch em es
Im p lem ent initiatives con tained  within the Susta inab le  S trathbogo e 2 0 3 0  Plan

O th e r  In it ia tiv e s
Im p lem ent the W a s te  M a n a g e m e n t S trategy  

Im p lem ent T re e  M a n a g e m e n t G uidelines

El S e rv ic e  P e rfo rm a n c e  O u tc o m e  In d ic a to rs

S ervice Indicator 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
Actual Forecast B udget

W a s te  M an ag e m e n t W a s te  diversion 70% 72% 74%

2 .3  S tra te g ic  O b je c tiv e  3

In frastructure

S e rv ic e s

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
Service area D escription of services provided Actual Forecast B udget

$'000 $'000 $'000
M unicipal Buildings This service a re a  is responsible for the m ain tenance o f Exp 49 3 46 5 4 8 2

Council ow ned and controlled buildings. Rev 150 27 8 2 5 3

NET 343 187 2 2 9

S w im m ing Pools and B eaches Council opera tes  outdoor pools in Euroa, N agam bie , Exp 46 2 35 0 3 6 3
Vio let Tow n and A venel.

Rev 9 10 20
NET 4 5 3 34 0 3 4 3

R o ads and Bridge M ain ten an ce This service a re a  is responsible for the  m ain te n an ce o f Exp 7 ,1 0 6 6 ,8 7 0 6 ,7 2 3
O perations Council's roads and bridges network.

Rev 10 ,6 0 7 8 ,7 0 5 4 ,3 3 5
NET (3 ,5 0 1 ) (1 ,8 3 5 ) 2 ,3 8 8

M a jo r  In it ia tiv e s
T arg e t m ajor capital w orks projects to seek funding to reduce  Coucnil's costs 
Prioritise and im p lem ent the  outcom es o f the C om m unity  Pools Strategy

O th e r  In it ia tiv e s
U n derake  condition a ss essm en t o f Council's public toilets and develop a strategy for progressive im provem ent 
In partnership with the com m unity support the  priorities o f the N ag am b ie  R ecreation R e s e rv e  M a s te r  Plan

El S e rv ic e  P e rfo rm a n c e  O u tc o m e  In d ic a to rs

Service Indicator 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
Actual Forecast Budget

Pool Facilities Utilisation 3 .44 3 .5 3 .5
R oads Satisfaction 48 48 4 9
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2.4 Strategie O bjective 4
I  Econom ic Developm ent

I S e rv ic e s
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

Service area Description of services provided Actual Forecast Budget
$'000 $'000 $'000

Planning T h e  services covers planning applications, advocayon Exp 783 805 869

develop m ents proposals and all regulators com pliance Rev 250 25 2 2 2 0

on the  Shire NET 533 553 6 4 9

Building provides statutory building services to the com m unity Exp - 536 638
including processing o f building perm its, em ergen cy Rev 86 - -
m an ag em en t responsibilities, fire safety  inspections,

6 3 8
audits o f Council buildings and investigations of \ou)
com plaints and illegal works.

Econom ic D evelopm ent This  service provides strateg ic  planning and support for Exp 291 4 1 3 149

the  pursuit o f  econom ic opportunities in the  Sh ire
Rev - - -

NET 291 4 1 3 149

Tourism  and Events Strathbogie Sh ire  has a high tourism profile with broad Exp 170 461 505

ranging attractions including, natural env ironm ent, w ate r
based activities, w ineries events  and festivals. This Rev 18 201 28

serv ice  a rea  is responsib le for promoting the a rea NET 152 260 4 7 7
gen erally  and supporting local tourism bodies and
tourism  re lated  events.

C a ra van  Parks Council has control o f caravan  parks a t N a g am b ie  Lakes Exp 20 23 23

and Euroa. Rev 30 - -
NET (1 0 ) 23 23

Saleyards This service a rea  refers to the Euroa S a leyards. T he Exp 131 220 21 6
saleyards op e ra te  on an  approxim ately o ne  sale  per
m onth basis. Rev 24 5 26 0 26 8

NET (1141 (401 (52 )

M a jo r  In itia tiv e s
S e e k  funding and support from  Federal and S ta te  governm ents to im p lem ent N ag am b ie  In frastructure D eve lopm ent B usiness C a s e  
R e v ie w  update and resource the  Econom ic D e velo p m en t M a s te r plan and im plem ent priority actions

O th e r  In it ia tiv e s
R eview  Rural Land U se S trategy and have  these outcom es (including landscape protection) included into the M unicipal S trateg ic  S ta tem en t  

D evelop options to facilitate cam ping a t appropriate  locations within the Shire  

E i  S e rv ic e  P e rfo rm a n c e  O u tc o m e  In d ic a to rs

Service Indicator
2017/18
Actual

2018/19
Forecast

2019/20
Budget

Statutory planning Decis ion M aking 0 0 0

Econom ic D eve lopm ent Econom ic activity NA NA N A
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2.5 Strategie  O bjective 5
Organisation

E 3  S e rv ic e s

Service area D escription of services provided
2017/18
Actual
$'000

2018/19
Forecast

$'000

2019/20
B udget
$'000

Financial and Adm inistration Serv ices This service a rea  provides financia l adv ice and support Exp 
to providers o f all Council services, including budget 
preparation, long term  financial planning, periodic

5 ,0 1 5 1 ,7 4 0 1 ,7 6 2

reporting, processing o f debtors and creditors, and Rev 
statutory financial requirem ents, including F B T  and G S T  
reporting. ---------------

16 ,759

(1 1 ,7 4 4 )

1 8 ,9 6 2

(1 7 ,2 2 2 )

2 1 ,1 3 7

(1 9 ,3 7 5 )

Inform ation Technology This service m ainta ins and im proves Council's Exp 1,265 1 ,274 1 ,2 3 9
inform ation technology system s, ensures com pliance ^ey 
with legislation relating to records m an ag em en t including

- - -

adm inistering and recording all incom ing NET 
correspondence. This a lso incudes te lephones , intranet 
, photocopiers , aeria l photography and  geographic

1,265 1 ,2 7 4 1 ,2 3 9

H u m an R e sources and Risk 
M a n a g e m e n t

M a n a g e m e n t o f recruitm ent and induction , occupational Exp 
health and safety , procedures relating to em ploym ent

3 ,3 1 8 9 0 5 98 9

m atters  , adm instration o f insurances , s taff training and Rev 219 150 -

d e v e lo p m e n t, em ployee  ass istance program . NET 3 ,0 9 9 75 5 989

C om m unity  Relations C u sto m e r service c o n ta c t , m ed ia , com m unications , Exp 
public notices , com m unity surveys , w ebsite  , m arketing

1 ,187 1 ,027 1 ,0 0 7

and com m unity eng agem ent. Rev 64 6 3

NET 1,123 1,021 1 ,004

G o vern an c e  and Statutory S ervices This service a re a  provides planning and  m an ag em en t o f Exp 
a  range o f statutory services provided by Council, such

741 - -

as  building, health, anim al m an ag em en t etc  Rev 88 2 2
NET 653 (2 ) (2 )

G o vern an c e T h e  a rea  o f governance  includes the M ayor, Councillors, Exp 
C h ie f Executive O ff ic e r , regulatory reporting , Council

334 1,301 1,301

e lections , com pliance with re levant Acts and other Rev 116 103 -

Executive M an ag e m e n t costs which cannot be easily NET 218 1 ,198 1 ,301
attributed to the direct serv ice provision areas .

M a jo r  In it ia tiv e s
Prioritize outcom es o f IC T  Strategy to aid business transform ation through finalization o f "roadmap"
Im p ro ve  access  to "in the  field" softw are and hardw are for key Council functions to im prove response tim es to perm it applications and  cus tom er  
fineries

O th e r  In it ia tiv e s
R e v ie w  Com m unications and E n g ag em en t S tra tegy  in line with pending changes to the Local G o v e rn m e n t Act 
R e v io e w  C ontract M an ag e m e n t P rocess and G uidelines

im  S e rv ic e  P e rfo rm a n c e  O u tc o m e  In d ic a to rs

Service Indicator 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
Actual Forecast B udget

G o veran ce Satisfaction

48  4 9  50
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m 2.3 Reco nciliatio n  with budgeted operating result

S tra te g ic  O b je c tiv e s

N e t  C o s t  
(R e v e n u e )  

$ '0 0 0

E x p e n d itu
re

$ ’000

R e v e n u e

$ '0 0 0

Com m unity W ellbeing 2 ,6 5 8 3 ,5 2 9 871

Environm ent 134 2 ,9 3 3 2 ,7 9 9

Infrastructure 2 ,9 6 0 7 ,5 6 8 4 ,6 0 8

Econom ic D evelopm ent 1 ,884 2 ,4 0 0 5 1 6

O rganisation (1 4 ,8 4 4 ) 6 ,2 9 8 2 1 ,1 4 2

T o ta l (7 ,2 0 8 ) 22 ,7 2 8 2 9 ,9 3 6

Expenses added in:
Depreciation 5 ,5 8 5

Finance costs -

O thers 2

Deficit before funding sources (1 ,6 2 1 )

F u n d in g  s o u rc e s  a d d e d  in:
R a tes and charg es reven ue -
W a s te  charge reven ue -

Total funding sources -

O p e ra tin g  (s u rp lu s ) /d e f ic it  fo r  th e  y e a r (1 ,6 2 1 )
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3. Financial Statements

This section presents inform ation in regard to the F inancial Statem ents and S tatem ent o f Human Resources. The budget 
inform ation fo r the year 2019/20 has been supp lem ented with projections to 2022/23 extracted from  the S tra tegic  Resource 
Plan.

This section includes the fo llow ing financia l s ta tem ents prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989 and the 
Local Government (Planning and Reporting) regulations 2014 .

Com prehensive Income S tatem ent 
Balance Sheet
S tatem ent of Changes in Equity 
S tatem ent of Cash Flows 
S tatem ent of Capital W orks 
S tatem ent of Human Resources

Pending Accounting Standards
The 2019-20 budget has been prepared based on the accounting standards applicable at the date o f preparation. This 
means that pending accounting standards that w ill be in e ffect from  the 2019-20 financia l year have not been considered in 
the deve lopm ent o f the budget.
Standards that are likely to im pact on the 2019-20 financia l statements, not considered in the preparation o f the budget 
include:
• AASB 16 Leases
• AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers , and
• AASB 1058 Income o f Not for Profit Entities .
W hile  it is not possib le  to determ ine the precise im pact o f these standards at th is time, the broad im pact on C ouncil is 
estim ated to be as follows:
• AASB 16 Leases -  Introduces a s ingle lessee accounting model w hereby the Council w ill be required to recognise a right of 
use asset and associated liability fo r leases longer than 12 months, except those considered to be o f low value.
• AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and AASB 1058 Income o f Not for Profit Entities -  C hange the w ay that 
Councils recognise incom e and also address m atters such as grant funding, contribution o f assets and vo lun teer services. A 
key change is rep lacem ent fo r some transactions o f the criteria of control as a determ inant of the tim ing o f incom e recognition, 
w ith the criteria of satisfying perform ance ob ligations in an enforceable agreem ent. These new standards have the potentia l to 
im pact the tim ing o f how the Council recognises income.
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C o m p re h e n s ive  In co m e  S ta te m en t
For the four years ending 30 June 2023

NOTES

Forecast
Actual

2018/19
$’000

Budget

2019/20
$’000

Strategic Resource Plan 
Projections 

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 
$’000 $ ’000 $ ’000

Income
Rates and charges 4.1.1 19,093 19,808 20,402 21,014 21,645

Statutory fees and fines 4.1.2 494 530 546 562 579

U ser fees 4.1.3 818 771 802 834 867

Grants - O perating 4.1.4 3,638 6,015 6,195 6,381 6,573

Grants - Capital 4.1.4 7,385 2,173 2,339 2,045 2,407

Contributions - m onetary 4.1.5 320 222 305 314 324

Net gain/(loss) on d isposal o f property, 
infrastructure, p lant and equipm ent (500) (500) (500) (500) (500)

O ther income 4.1.6 845 416 422 428 434

Total income 32,093 29,435 30,511 31,079 32,328

Expenses

Employee costs 4.1.7 9,735 10,468 10,766 11,073 11,389

M ateria ls and services 4.1.8 12,451 11,429 11,846 11,995 12,355

Depreciation and am ortisation 4.1,9 5,301 5,594 5,855 5,929 6,038

Bad and doubtfu l debts - - - - -

Borrowing costs 35 23 - - -

O ther expenses 4.1.10 295 300 309 318 328

Total expenses 27,817 27,814 28,776 29,315 30,110

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 4,276 1,621 1,735 1,763 2,219

Total comprehensive result 4,276 1,621 1,735 1,763 2,219
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B a la n ce  S hee t
For the four years ending 30 June 2023

Forecast 
Actual 

2018/19 
NOTES $’000

Budget

2019/20
$’000

Strategic Resource Plan 
Projections 

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 
$’000 $ ’000 $’000

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equiva lents 7,353 6,122 4,883 5,170 5,032

Trade and other receivables 2,169 2,168 2,278 2,306 2,402

Inventories 5 5 5 5 5

O ther assets 113 113 113 113 113

Total current assets 4.2.1 9,640 8,408 7,279 7,594 7,553

Non-current assets

Trade and other receivables 2 2 2 2 2

Investm ents in associates, jo in t arrangem ent
243 243 243 243 243

and subsid iaries
Property, infrastructure, p lant & equ ipm ent 299,786 301,513 303,577 304,151 305,560

Total non-current assets 4.2.1 300,031 301,758 303,822 304,396 305,805

Total assets 309,671 310,166 311,101 311,990 313,357

Liabilities 

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 2,523 2,523 2,645 2,698 2,777

Trust funds and deposits 468 468 468 468 468

Provisions 3,145 2,895 3,023 3,027 2,971

Interest-bearing liabilities 4.2.3 86 86 49 49 49

Total current liabilities 4.2.2 6,222 5,972 6,185 6,241 6,265

Non-current liabilities

Provisions 4,697 3,947 2,945 2,063 1,237

Interest-bearing liabilities 4.2.3 282 157 146 97 49

Total non-current liabilities 4.2.2 4,979 4,104 3,091 2,160 1,286

Total liabilities 11,201 10,076 9,276 8,402 7,550

Net assets 298,470 300,090 301,825 303,588 305,807

Equity

Accum ulated surplus 89,166 90,786 92,521 94,284 96,503

Reserves 209,304 209,304 209,304 209,304 209,304

Total equity 298,470 300,090 301,825 303,588 305,807
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g c £ J  S ta te m e n t o f  C h a n g es  in E q u ity
For the fou r years ending 30 June 2023

Total
Accumulated Revaluation Other

Surplus Reserve Reserves
NOTES $’000 $’000 $’000 $ ’000

2019 Forecast Actual

Balance at beginning o f the financia l year 294,194 84,890 209,304

S urp lus/(defic it) fo r the  year 4,276 4,276

Balance at end of the financial year 298,470 89,166 209,304 -

2020 Budget

Balance at beginning o f the financia l year 298,470 89,166 209,304 -

S urplus/(deflc it) fo r the  year 1,621 1,621 - -

T ransfers to other reserves 4.3.1 (1) (1) - -

Balance at end of the financial year 4 3 2 300,090 90,786 209,304 -

2021

Balance at beginning o f the financia l year 300,090 90,786 209,304 -

Surp lus/(deflc it) fo r the year 1,735 1,735 - -

Balance at end of the financial year 301,825 92,521 209,304 -

2022

Balance at beginning o f the financia l year 301,825 92,521 209,304 -

Surp lus/(deflc it) fo r the year 1,763 1,763 - -

Balance at end of the financial year 303,588 94,284 209,304 -

2023
Balance at beginning o f the financia l year 303,588 94,284 209,304 -

Surp lus/(defic it) fo r the year 2,219 2,219 - -

Balance at end of the financial year 305,807 96,503 209,304 -
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S ta te m e n t o f  C ash F low s
For the fou r years ending 30 June 2023

Forecast
Actual

Budget Strategic Resource Plan Projections

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Inflows In flo w s Inflows Inflows Inflows
(Outflows) (O u tflo w s ) (Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows)

C ash f lo w s  fro m  o p e ra tin g  a c tiv it ie s

Rates and charges 19,093 19,808 20,556 21,117 21,719

Statutory fees and fines 494 530 550 565 581

User fees 818 771 808 838 870

G rants - operating 3,562 6,015 6,242 6,412 6,595

Grants - capital 7,461 2,173 2,357 2,055 2,415

C ontributions - m onetary 320 222 305 314 324

Interest received 234 220 220 220 220

O ther receipts 611 (26) 206 210 216

Net G ST refund /  paym ent 1,832 829 1,716 1,751 1,854

Em ployee costs (9,735) (10,468) (11,280) (11,631) (11,951)

M ateria ls and services (12,471) (11,429) (12,411) (12,600) (12,965)

O ther paym ents (295) (1,078) (1,198) (1,212) (1,226)

N e t cash  p ro v id e d  by /(used  In) o p e ra tin g  4.4.1 
a c tiv it ie s

11,924 7,567 8,070 8,039 8,653

C ash f lo w s  fro m  in v e s tin g  a c tiv it ie s

Paym ents fo r property, infrastructure, p lant and 
equ ipm ent

(20,156) (9,124) (9,591) (8,033) (9,072)

Proceeds from  sale o f property, infrastructure, p lant and 
equ ipm ent 1,017 474 330 330 330

N et cash  p ro v id e d  b y / (used  in ) in v e s tin g  4.4.2 
a c tiv it ie s

(19,139) (8,650) (9,261) (7,703) (8,742)

C ash f lo w s  fro m  fin a n c in g  a c tiv it ie s

F inance costs (35) (23) - - -

Repaym ent o f borrow ings (137) (125) (49) (49) (49)

N e t cash  p ro v id e d  by /(used  in ) f in a n c in g  4.4.3 
a c tiv it ie s

(172) (148) (49) (49) (49)

N e t in c re a se /fd e c re a se ) in cash  & cash  
e q u iv a le n ts

(7,387) (1,231) (1,239) 287 (138)

Cash and cash equ iva lents at the beginning o f the 
financia l year 14,740 7,353 6,122 4,883 5,170

C ash and  ca sh  e q u iv a le n ts  a t th e  end  o f  th e  
fin a n c ia l yea r 7,353 6,122 4,883 5,170 5,032
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S ta te m en t o f  C a p ita l W o rks
For the four years ending 30 June 2023

F o re ca s t
A c tu a l

B u d g e t S tra te g ic  R e so u rce  P lan  P ro je c tio n s

NOTES
2018/19

$ ’000
2019/20

$ ’000
2020/21

$ ’000
2021/22

$ '000
2022/23

$ ’000

P ro p e rty

Buildings 2,211 531 1,970 1,833 1,453

T o ta l b u ild in g s 2,211 531 1,970 1,833 1,453

T o ta l p ro p e rty 2,211 531 1,970 1,833 1,453

P la n t and e q u ip m e n t

Plant, m achinery and equipm ent 990 580 954 370 301

Fixtures, fittings and furniture 545 255 225 350 350

Com puters and te lecom m unications - - - - -

T o ta l p la n t and e q u ip m e n t 1,535 835 1,179 720 651

In fra s tru c tu re

Roads 8,712 3,897 3,542 3,763 4,017

Bridges 2,352 700 1,000 450 450

Footpaths and cycleways 427 247 303 229 322

Drainage 1,790 516 333 62 345

Parks, open space and streetscapes - 1,569 392 246 1,009

Other infrastructure 1,297 - - - -

T o ta l in fra s tru c tu re 14,578 6,929 5,570 4,750 6,143

T o ta l ca p ita l w o rk s  e x p e n d itu re 4.5.1 18,324 8,295 8,719 7,303 8,247

R ep resen ted  by:

New asset expenditure 2,903 415 436 365 412

A sset renewal expenditure 11,599 5,931 5,929 5,769 6,845

A sset expansion expenditure 725 - - - -

A sse t upgrade expenditure 3,097 1,949 2,354 1,168 990

T ota l ca p ita l w o rk s  e x p e n d itu re 4.5.1 18.324 8,295 8.719 7,303 8,247

F u n d in g  s o u rc e s  re p re se n te d  by:

Grants 8,426

Contributions 136 - - - -

Council cash 9,762 8,295 8,719 7,303 8,247

Borrowings - - - - -

T o ta l ca p ita l w o rk s  e x p e n d itu re 4.5.1 18,324 8,295 8,719 7,303 8,247 -
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a  S ta te m e n t o f  H um an R esou rces

For the four years ending 30 June 2023

Forecast
Actual

2018/19

$’000

Budget

2019/20

$’000

Strategic Resource Plan Projections

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

$’000 $’000 $’000
Staff expenditure

Em ployee costs - operating 9,735 10,468 10,766 11,073 11,389

Total staff expenditure 9,735 10,468 10,766 11,073 11,389

FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE

Staff numbers

Em ployees 103.0 113.0 113.0 113.0 113.0

Tota l s ta ff num bers 103.0 113.0 113.0 113.0 113.0

A  sum m ary o f human resources expenditure categorised accord ing to the organisational structure o f Council is included below:

Department
Budget

2019/20

$’000

Comprises
Permanent

_ .. Casual 
Full Time Part time

$'000 $’000 $'000

Temporary

$'000
Corporate Leadership 348 348 - -

Innovation and Perform ance 2,246 1,888 313 45 -

Com m unity Asse ts 5,533 5,337 140 56 -

Corporate and Com munity 2,341 2,071 214 56

Culture and Leisure - - -

Tota l perm anent s ta ff expenditure 

Casuals, tem porary and other expenditure 

C apita lised labour costs

10,468 9,644 667 101 56

Total expenditure 10,468

A  sum m ary o f the num ber of full time equ iva lent (FTE) Council s ta ff in relation to the above expenditure is included below:
Comprises

Department Budget

2019/20

Permanent
_ „ Casual 
Full Time Part time

Temporary

C orporate Leadership 2 2 - - -

Innovation and Perform ance 25 17 7 1 -

C om m unity Assets 64 59 3 2 -

C orporate and Com munity 22 16 5 0 1

Tota l perm anent s ta ff 113 94 15 3 1

Casuals, tem porary and other expenditure -

Capita lised labour costs -

Total staff 113
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4. Notes to the financial statements

This section presents detailed information on material components of the financial statements. Council needs to assess 
which components are material, considering the dollar amounts and nature of these components.

4.1 Comprehensive Income Statement

r a n  4.1.1 Rates and charges

Rates and charges are required by the Act and the Regulations to be disclosed in Council's annual budget.

In developing the Strategic Resource Plan, rates and charges were identified as an important source of revenue. Planning 
for future rate increases has therefore been an important component of the Strategic Resource Planning process. The 
Fair Go Rates System (FGRS) sets out the maximum amount councils may increase rates in a year. For 2019/20 the 
FGRS cap has been set at 2.5%. The cap applies to both general rates and municipal charges and is calculated on the 
basis of council's average rates and charges.

The level of required rates and charges has been considered in this context, with reference to Council's other sources of 
income and the planned expenditure on services and works to be undertaken for the community.
This will raise total rates and charges for 2019/20 to $19,808,000.

4.1.1(a) The reconciliation of the total rates and charges to the Comprehensive Income Statement is as 
follows:

2018-19
Forecast
Actual
$’000

2019/20
Budget

$'000

Change

$'000

%

General rates* 14,714 16,209 1,495 10.16%

Municipal charge* 1,825 921 904 -49.53%

Waste management charge 2,327 2,484 157 6.75%

Service rates and charges 185 194 9 4.86%

Special rates and charges 42 - 42 -100.00%

Total rates and charges 19,093 19,808 715 3.74%

‘ These items are subject to the rate cap established under the FGRS

4.1.1(b) The rate in the dollar to be levied as general rates under section 158 of the Act for each type or 
class of land compared with the previous financial year ______________________________________

Type or class of land 2018/19
cents/$CIV*

2019/20
cents/$CIV*

Change

General rate for rateable residential properties 0.4830000 0.5019361 0.04

General rate for rateable vacant residential properties 0.8452500 0.8783881 0.04

General rate for rateable farm properties 0.3984750 0.4015488 0.01

General rate for rateable commercial properties 0.5796000 0.6023233 0.04

General rate for rateable vacant commercial properties 1.0143000 1.0540700 0.04
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4.1.1(c) The estimated total amount to be raised by general rates in relation to each type or class of land, and the
estimated total amount to be raised by general rates, compared with the previous financial year

Type or class of land 2018/19
$’000

2019/20
$’000

Change
$’000 %

Residential 6,977 7,761 784 11.24%
Farm 6,923 7,555 632 9.13%
Commercial 814 893 79 9.71%

Total amount to be raised by general rates 14,714 16,209 1,495 10.16%
Municipal Charge revenue has reduced 49.54% to offset this increase
4.1.1(d) The number of assessments in relation to each type or class of land, and the total number of assessments,
compared with the previous financial year

Type or class of land 2018/19
Number

2019/20
Number

Change
Number %

Residential 4,609 4,684 75 1.63%
Residential-Vacant 390 371 - 19 -4.87%
Farm 2,231 2,233 2 0.09%
Commercial 309 309 - 0.00%
Commercial-Vacant 7 9 2 28.57%

Total number of assessments 7,546 7,606 60 0.80%

4.1.1(e) The basis of valuation to be used is Capital Improved Value (CIV)

4.1.1(f) The estimated total value of each type or class of land, and the estimated total value of land, compared with the 
previous financial year

Type or class of land 2018/19
$’000

2019/20
$’000

Change
$’000 %

Residential 1,326,309 1,435,181 108,872 8.21%
Residential-Vacant 64,977 65,298 321 0.49%
Farm 1,727,386 1,867,786 140,400 8.13%
Commercial 136,115 144,004 7,889 5.80%
Commercial-Vacant 1,446 1,756 310 21.44%
Total value of land 3,256,233 3,514,025 257,792 7.92%

4.1.1(g) The municipal charge under Section 159 of the Act compared with the previous financial year

Per Rateable Per Rateable

Type of Charge Property Property Change

2018/19 2019/20
$ $ $ %

Municipal 266 133 - 133 -50.00%

4.1.1(h) The estimated total amount to be raised by municipal charges compared with the previous financial year

2018/19 2019/20 ChangeType of Charge
$ $ $ %

Municipal 1,824,635 920,739 - 903,896 -49.54%
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4.1.1(i) The rate or unit amount to be levied for each type of service rate or charge under Section 162 of the Act 
compared with the previous financial year

Type of Charge

Per Rateable 
Property

2018/19
$

Per Rateable 
Property

2019/20
$

Change

$ %
Kerbside Collection- 80Litre 360 375 15 4.17%

Kerbside Collection- 120Litre 360 375 15 4.17%

Kerbside Collection- 240Litre 720 750 30 4.17%

Recycling-120Litre 171 178 7 4.09%

Recycling-240Litre 171 178 7 4.09%

Recycling-360Litre 171 178 7 4.09%

Kerbside/Recycling/Organics 530 552 22 4.15%

Kerbside/Organics 360 375 15 4.17%

Tree Management Service Charge 27 28 1 3.70%

4.1.10) The estimated total amount to be raised by each type of service rate or charge, and the estimated total amount to 
be raised by service rates and charges, compared with the previous financial year

Type of Charge 2018/19
$

2019/20
$

Change
$ %

Kerbside/Recycling/Organics 1,697,939 1,801,271 103,332 6.09%

Kerbside 464,238 506,596 42,358 9.12%

Recycling 165,037 176,447 11,410 6.91%

Tree Management Service Charge 185,409 194,234 8,825 4.76%
Total 2,512,623 2,678,548 165,925 6.60%

4.1.1 (k) The estimated total amount to be raised by all rates and charges compared with the previous financial year

2018/19 2019/20 Change
$'000 $'000 $'000 %

General Rates 14,714 16,209 1,495 10.16%

Municipal Charges 1,825 921 904 -49.53%

Kerbside Collection/Recycling/Organics 2,327 2,484 157 6.75%

Tree Management Service Charge 185 194 9 4.86%

List rate/charge - - - #DIV/0!

Special Rates 42 - 42 -100.00%
Total Rates and charges 19,093 19,808 715 3.74%

4.1.1(1) Fair Go Rates System Compliance

Strathbogie Shire Council is fully complaint with the State Government's Fair Go Rates System

2018/19 2019/20
Total Rates $ 16,538,067 $ 17,129,941

Number of rateable properties 7,546 7,606

Base Average Rate 2,192 2,252

Maximum Rate Increase (set by the State Government) 2.25% 2.50%

Capped Average Rate $ 2,202 $ 2,257

Maximum General Rates and Municipal Charges Revenue $ 16,626,982 $ 17,169,027

Budgeted General Rates and Municipal Charges Revenue $ 16,387,037 $ 17,003,571

Budgeted Supplementary Rates $ 151,030 $ 126,370

Budgeted Total Rates and Municipal Charges Revenue $ 16,538,067 $ 17,129,941
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There are no known significant changes which may affect the estimated amounts to be raised by rates and charges. 
However, the total amount to be raised by rates and charges may be affected by:

• The making of supplementary valuations

• The variation of returned levels of value (e.g. valuation appeals)

• Changes of use of land such that rateable land becomes non-rateable land and vice versa

• Changes of use of land such that residential land becomes business land and vice versa.

IcTPl 4.1.2 S ta tu to ry  fees and fines

4.1.1 (m) Any significant changes that may affect the estimated amounts to be raised by rates and charges

Forecast
Actual
2018/19
$’000

Budget

2019/20
$’000

Change

$'000 %

Land Information Certificates 20 20 - 0.00%
Subdivision Fees 7 20 13 185.71%
Planning Application Fees 200 200 - 0.00%
Building Fees 50 90 40 80.00%
Building Enforcement 1 1 - 0.00%
Animal Registration 82 110 28 34.15%
Health Registrations 68 89 21 30.88%
Total statutory fees and fines 428 530 102 23.83%

Higher subdivision and building fee income is expected due to the level of activity 

Q Q 4 . 1 . 3  User fees

Forecast „  . 
Actual Bud96t 
2018/19 2019/20 
$’000 $’000

Change

$’000 %
Yard Fees Saleyards Income 170 255 85 50.00%
Debt Collection Expenses Recoverd 93 136 43 46.24%
Tip Fees 148 120 - 28 -18.92%
Lease income 67 57 - 10 -14.93%
Euroa Cinema 60 64 4 6.67%
Cattle Scanning Fees 55 13 - 42 -76.36%
Fire service Property Levy Financial Support 41 26 - 15 -36.59%
Fire Prevention Notice Infringements 26 26 - 0.00%
Septic Tank Fees 20 17 - 3 -15.00%
Truckwash (included in Saleyards income) 20 - - 20 -100.00%
Visitor Guide 16 - - 16 -100.00%
Regatta Centre Events 15 25 10 66.67%
Agent Fees- Saleyards 12 13 1 8.33%
Others 75 19 - 56 -74.67%
Total user fees 818 771 - 47 -5.75%
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i è n a  4.1.4 G rants

Grants are required by the Act and the Regulations to be disclosed in Council's annual budget.
Forecast
Actual
2018/19
$’000

Budget

2019/20
$’000

Change

$’000 %

Grants were received in respect of the following:

Summary of grants
Commonwealth funded grants 3,705 6,015 2,310 62%

State funded grants 2,323 2,173 150 -6%

Total grants received 6,028 8,188 2,160 36%

(a) Operating Grants 
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Victorian Grant Commission 2,715 5,545 2,830 104%

Senior Citizens 20 - 20 -100%

Commonwealth Roads of Access 40 - 40 -100%

Recurrent - State Government 
Maternal and Child Health 130 165 35 27%

Youth 145 145 - 0%

School crossing supervisors 27 25 2 -7%

Community Safety 5 3 2 -40%

Municipal Emergency Resources Program 62 60 2 -3%

Pest and Plants Program 55 55 - 0%

Median Strip Subsidy 7 - 7 -100%

Total recurrent grants 3,206 5,998 2,792 87%

Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government

Recycling 13 - 13 -100%

Building Energy Audit 25 17 8 -32%

Recreation 10 - 10 -100%

Total non-recurrent grants 48 17 31 -65%

Total operating grants 3,254 6,015 2,761 85%

(b) Capital Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Roads to recovery 930 1,152 222 24%

Total recurrent grants 930 1,152 222 24%
Non-recurrent - State Government
Roads 50 . 50 -100%

Bridges 140 - 140 -100%

Drains 557 100 457 -82%

Buildings 646 921 275 43%

Recreation 400 - 400 -100%

Local Govt Energy Saver Project 50 50 -100%

Total non-recurrent grants 1,843 1,021 822 -45%

Total capital grants 2,773 2,173 600 -22%

Total Grants 6,028 8,188 2,160 0
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n g  4.1.5 C on trib u tio n s

Forecast
Actual Budget Change
2018/19 2019/20
$’000 $’000 $’000 %

Monetary 270 221 - 49 -18.15%
Non-monetary - - -

Total contributions 270 221 - 49 -18.15%

The reduction in revenue from contributions reflects the lower level of contributions to capital works projects 2019/20

4.1.6 O ther incom e

Forecast
Actual
2018/19
$’000

Budget

2019/20
$’000

Change

$’000 %
Fire Prevention Notice Infringements 60 20 40 -66.67%
Interest on Investments 234 220 14 -5.98%
Tas Crosbie Trust Income 2 - 2 -100.00%
Interest On Rates 67 70 3 4.48%
Recycling accepting and Sorting 79 40 39 -49.37%
Regional Shared Services 103 - 103 -100.00%
Diesel Fuel Tax Credit Rebate 60 60 - 0.00%
Insurance Recovery - Income Protection 100 - 100 -100.00%
W orkcover Salaries Recovered 50 - 50 -100.00%
Community Education 82 - 82 -100.00%
William Pearson Reserve Grants 3 - 3 -100.00%
Miscellaneous Income 6 6 - 0.00%
Total other income 846 416 430 -50.83%

k £ i£ J 4 .1 7  Em ployee costs

Forecast
Actual

Budget Change
2018/19 2019/20
$’000 $’000 $’000 %

W ages and salaries 8,412 9,236 824.00 9.80%
W orkCover 202 206 4.00 1.98%
Superannuation 713 734 21.00 2.95%
Other 128 292 164.00 128.13%
Total employee costs 9,455.00 10,468 1,013.00 10.71%

Page 26



1 3 0 4 .1 .8  M ateria ls and services

Forecast
Actual
2018/19
$’000

Budget

2019/20
$’000

Change 

$’000 %
Legal Fees 56 58 2 3.57%
Building & Infrastructure maintenance 3,631 2,853 778 -21.43%
Consultancies/Contractors 1,520 2,263 743 48.88%
Community Expenses 815 380 435 -53.37%
Councillors Expenses 49 60 11 22.45%
Materials and Other Contract Payments 856 778 78 -9.11%
Plant Operating 880 1,045 165 18.75%
Insurance 370 360 10 -2.70%
Contractors Labour 20 20 - 0.00%
Utilities 349 381 32 9.17%
Postage 41 30 11 -26.83%
Printing & Stationery 130 110 20 -15.38%
Advertising and Marketing 161 95 66 -40.99%
Information Systems & Communications 698 635 63 -9.03%
Staff Training 196 186 10 -5.10%
W aste Management 2,386 2,175 211 -8.84%
Total materials and services 12,158 11,429 729 -6.00%

B Q 4 . 1 . 9  D epreciation and am ortisa tion

Forecast
Actual
2018/19
$’000

Budget

2019/20
$’000

Change

$’000 %
Property 800 870 70 8.75%
Plant & equipment 760 404 356 -46.84%
Infrastructure 3,499 4,100 601 17.18%
Furniture and Equipments 250 220 30 -12.00%
Total depreciation and amortisation 5,309 5,594 285 5.37%

n n  4.1.10 O ther expenses
Add additional tables for each material component o f the Comprehensive Income Statement

Forecast
Actual
2018/19
$’000

Budget

2019/20
$’000

Change

$’000 %
Councillors' W orkcover 4 4 - 0.00%
Audit Fees- External 41 42 1 2.44%
Audit Fees- Internal 34 35 1 2.94%
Bad Debts and Doubtful Debts 1 - 1 -100.00%
Councillor/Mayor Allowances 184 186 2 1.09%
Councillor/Mayor Superannuation 18 18 - 0.00%
Councillor Travelling 13 15 2 15.38%
Total other expenses 215 300 85 39.53%
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4.2 Balance Sheet
4.2.1 Assets
Current assets are projected to decrease by $1.232m . These resources are used to fund capital works and reflects 
Council's continuing strong commitment to infrastructure asset renewal

4.2.2 L iab ilities

Notwithstanding the continuing reduction in Council borrowings , liabilities are budgeted to be maintained at current levels

Ic T F l 4.2.3 B o rrow ings
The table below shows information on borrowings specifically required by the Regulations.

2018/19
$

2019/20
$

Amount borrowed as at 30 June of the prior year 505 368
Amount proposed to be borrowed - -

Amount projected to be redeemed 137 - 125
Amount of borrowings as at 30 June 368 243

4.3 S tatem ent o f  changes In Equity

4.3.1 Reserves
No material change

4.3.2 Equity
The movement in equity reflects the budgeted operating surplus for 2019/20

4.4 S ta tem ent o f Cash F lows

4.4.1 Net cash flow s provided by/used in opera ting  activ ities 
Net cash provided by operating activities is budgeted to be $7.567m

4.4.2 Net cash flo w s  provided by/used in investing  ac tiv ities

Net cash used in investing activities is budgeted to be $9.124 m .The capital works program of $8.295 m and landfill
rehabilitation of $1 m is partially funded from asset sales of $.474m

4.4.3 Net cash flo w s  provided by/used in financ ing  activ ities

Net cash used by financing activities is budgeted to be $.148m , comprising $.125m in loan redemption and $.023m in
loan interest
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4.5 Capital works program

This section presents a listing of the capital works projects that will be undertaken for the 2019/20 year, classified by expenditure type and 

m  4.5.1 Sum m ary

Forecast
Actual

Budget Change
%

2018/19 2019/20
$’000 $’000 $’000

Property 2,227 431 -  1,796 -80.65%

Plant and equipment 1,611 835 776 -48.17%
Infrastructure 11,601 7,029 -  4 ,572 -39.41%

Total 15,439 8,295 - 7,144 -46.27%

2018/19 included significant amounts for Flood damage repairs to infrastructure

Asset expenditure types Summary of Funding Sources
Council

Cost New Renewal Upgrade Expansion Grants Contrib. Borrowings

$'000 $'000 $’0Q0 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 S'OOO $'000
Property 431 70 50 100 211 - - 431 -

Plant and equipment 835 - - 835 - - - 835 -

Infrastructure 7,029 900 3,331 2,086 712 2,173 25 4,831 -

Total 8,295 970 3,381 3,021 923 2,173 25 6,097 I
4.5.2 Current Budget

Capital Works Area
Project

Cost

Asset expenditure types 

New Renewal Upgrade Expansion

Summary of Funding Sources
^  . .. Council _Grants Contrib. cagh Borrowings

$’000 $ ’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $'000
PROPERTY
Buildings
Avenel, Violet Town & Nagambie 
Pools - replace chlorinators

10 10 - 10

Euroa Tennis Club -  Remove 
existing Cyprus tree & replace

40 40 - 40

Civic Centre Toilet Upgrade 50 50 - 50

Toilets Violet Town Lions Park 
Scoping/Delivery

30 30 - 30

Toilets Graytown Scoping/Delivery 20 20 - 20

Euroa RSL Clubroom Expansion - 
Construction Yr2

150 150 - 150

St. Johns -  Kiss and Go facility on 
Bury St

36 36 - 36

Friendlies Reserve area Master Plan 25 25 - 25

Building Improvements

Euroa Saleyards - PA System 50 50 - 50

Euroa Saleyards - Security System 20 20 20
(cameras)
TOTAL PROPERTY 431 70 50 100 211 - 431 ;

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant, Machinery and Equipment

Plant and Equipment 580 580 - 580

Fixtures, Fittings and Furniture
Computers &
Telecommunications
ICT 255 255 - 255

TOTAL PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 835 835 - 835 j
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Capital Works Area
Project

Cost

Asset expenditure types 

New Renewal Upgrade Expansion

Summary of Funding Sources 

Grants Contrib. Coun^ il Borrowings

$’000 $’000 $ ’000 $’000 $’000 $ ’000 $’000 $’000 $'000
IN FR A STR U C TU R E
Roads

Reseal Program 700 - 700 - 640 - 61 -

Shoulders Pavement Program 400 - 400 - - 400 -

Rehabilitation Program 800 - 800 - 800 - - -

Gravel Road Resheeting Program 600 - 600 - - 600 -

Kerb & Channel 50 - 50 - - 50 -

Zero Class Roads Upgrade Program 400 - - 400 - - 400 -

Shelton Watson Street Corner -
190 190 190

Design and Construct ~ ■ “ -
Euroa Council Kirkland Ave Carpark • 
final seal & line marking

40 - - 40 - 40 -

Euroa Tennis Club -  Car Park
Scoping

5 - - 5 - 5 “

Project Management 250 - - 250 - - 250 -

Euroa Stacksites Clearing -  Future 
Stockpiles of Filling Material 12 - - 12 - - 12 -

Inter Euroa Strath Creek Junction 450 - - 450 300 - 150 -

Bridges

Bridges & Major Culverts 450 - 450 - - - 450 -

Avenel -  Hughes Creek low level
250 250 250

crossing
Footpaths and Cycleways
Footpaths 46 - 46 - - - 46 -

W alking Tracks 10 - 10 - - - 10 -

W atsons St/ Livingston St to 
Kindergarten north side -Avenel

22 22 - - - - 22 -

Rowe Street -  Garrett to Frost St 52 52 52
subway entrance -Euroa
McGregor Ave -  High St (GVHwy) to
Tarquin St/Helena Court. (1.5m 71 71 - - - - 71 -
concrete)
Cowslip St from Hospital to IGA  
south side widen -V/Town

46 46 - - - - 46 -

D rainage

Pit & Pipe Replacement Program 60 - 60 - - - 60 -

Upgrade three existing retarding
basins at McGregor Avenue with a 50 - - 50 - - 50 -
pump system (solar).

Review 1 in 5 STAG E storm event of
the existing stormwater pipe 40 - - 40 - - 40 -
network.
Boundary Rd South Future Open 
Drain -  Stage 2

100 - - 100 - - 100 -

Flood Protection Works 80 - - 80 58 - 22 -

Ballantyne Rd Retention Basin 
design-Nagambie 76 76 - - - - 76 -

Town centre outlet to Lake 60 60 60Nagambie. " " " -

Bank St Survey & Design -Avenel 50 50 - - - - 50 -

R ecreational, Leisure &
C om m unity  Facilities
Swimming Pool- Euroa 195 61 - 134 - - 195 -

Swimming Pool-V/Town 187 137 - 50 - - 187 -

Parks, O pen Space and
Streetscapes
Sporting Fields & Courts 10 - 10 - - - 10 -
Play Space 15 - 15 - - - 15 -
Open Space Amenities 10 - 10 - - - 10 -
Streetscapes 10 - 10 - - - 10 -

Bike Racks 20 - 20 - - - 20 -

Nagambie Recreation Reserve
150 150 100 25 25netball court

Nagambie Recreation Reserve Road 
seal/carpark

100 - - 100 - - 100 -

Town Entry Sign Upgrades 30 - - 30 - - 30 -
E Structure -  W eir Gates -  Flood

15 15 15Damage Prevention Measures - ” - “ “

E Structure -  W eir Gates -  O HS
20 20 20Repairs and Maintenance Measures "
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Project Asset expenditure types Summary of Funding Sources 
Council

Capital Works Area Cost New Renewal Upgrade Expansion Grants Contrib. cash Borrowings

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $'000

G T Building -  Graytown Community 
Hub -  Upgrade access ramp to meet g 9 9
appropriate standard/ Replace 
flashing and guttering

N Building -  Nagambie Regatta
43 43 43

Centre Conference Room Upgrades 

Openspace /Play Recreation frame 450 450 225 225
work -  Nagambie
Play & Recreation- Violet Town 80 _ _ 80 _ - 80 -

Memorial Oval Exercise stations 50 50 - - - - - 50 -
Graytown Solar panels 23 23 - - - - - 23 -
Nagmabie Oval Upgrade additional

150 150 50 100 .
funds
Pavilion additional funds (income -20

100 100 100
spend-80)
Strathbogie Rec Reserve Pizza 3 3 3
Oven cover
TO TAL INFR ASTRU CTU RE 7,029 900 3,331 2,086 712 2,173 25 4,833 -I
TO TAL N E W  CA PITA L W ORKS 8,295 970 4,216 2,186 923 2,173 25 6,099 -
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R H  5. Financial performance indicators

The following table highlights Council’s current and projected performance across a range of key financial performance indicators. These 
indicators provide a useful analysis of Council’s financial position and performance and should be interpreted in the context of the 
organisation’s objectives.

Indicator Measure
(Aa>
o

Actual Forecast Budget
Strategic Resource Plan 

Projections Trend
z 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 +/0/-

Operating position
Adjusted underlying 
result

Adjusted underlying surplus (deficit) / 
Adjusted underlying revenue 1 -6.30% -9.90% 4.80% 4.70% 4.70% 5.90% +

Liqu idity
Working Capital Current assets / current liabilities 2 278.10% 154.90% 140.80% 117.70% 121.70% 120.60% 0

Unrestricted cash Unrestricted cash /  current liabilities 3 0% 110.70% 94.70% 71.40% 75.30% 72.90% 0
Obligations
Loans and borrowings Interest bearing loans and borrowings / 

rate revenue
Interest and principal repayments on

4 3.70% 1.90% 1.20% 1.00% 0.70% 0.40% +

Loans and borrowings Interest bearing loans and borrowings / 
rate revenue

3.10% 0.90% 0.70% 0.20% 0.20% 0.20% +

Indebtedness Non-current liabilities / own source 
revenue 30.10% 24.00% 19.50% 14.30% 9.70% 5.60% +

Asset renewal Asset renewal expenses / Asset 
depreciation 5 147.90% 218.80% 106.00% 101.30% 97.30% 113.40% -

Stability

Rates concentration Rate revenue / adjusted underlying 
revenue 6 62.20% 75.40% 67.80% 67.50% 68.30% 67.60% -

Rates effort Rate revenue /  CIV of rateable properties 
in the municipality

0.60% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0

Indicator Measure
in
£o

Actual Forecast Budget
Strategic Resource Plan 

Projections Trend

z 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 +/0/-

Efficiency 

Expenditure level Total expenses/ no. of property 
assessments $3,814 $3,650 $3,637 $3,704 $3,721 $3,721

Revenue level
Residential rate revenue / no. of 
residential property assessments $1,672 $1,712 $1,739 $1,767 $1,796 $1,796 +

Workforce turnover
No. of permanent staff resignations & 
terminations /  average no. of permanent 
staff for the financial year

% % % % % % +

Key to Forecast 
Trend:
+ Forecasts improvement in Council's financial performance/financial position indicator 

o Forecasts that Council's financial performance/financial position indicator will be steady 
- Forecasts deterioration In Council's financial performance/financial position indicator
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